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Joint Application for Approval to Transfer Control of US LEC of T etzjzessee Inc N

Re:
and for US LEC of Tennessee Inc. and PAETEC Communications, B 105
Participate in Related Debt Financing Arrangements

Dear Ms. Dillon:
Enclosed for filing are an original and thirteen (13) copies of the above referenced
application, which seeks approval by the Tennessee Regulatory Authority (1) of the proposed
transfer of control of US LEC of Tennessee Inc. to PAETEC Corp. and (2) for US LEC of
Tennessee Inc. and PAETEC Communications, Inc. to participate in certain debt financing
arrangements related to the transfer of control. Also enclosed is check in the amount of $50.00

to cover the requisite filing fee for two certificated applicants

Please date-stamp the extra copy of this filing, and retumn it to us in the enclosed self-
addressed stamped envelope. Should you have any questions with respect to this matter, please

do not hesitate to contact us.
Respectfully submitted,

Counsel to PAETEC Corp. and
PAETEC Communications, Inc.

Enclosures



BEFORE THE
TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY

Joint Application for Approval

To Transfer Control of
US LEC OF TENNESSEE INC.

and for Docket No.

US LEC OF TENNESSEE INC.

and

PAETEC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
To Participate in Related Debt Financing
Arrangements
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JOINT APPLICATION

I. INTRODUCTION

1. PAETEC Corp. (“PAETEC”) and US LEC Corp. (“US LEC,” together with
PAETEC, “Applicants™), by and through their undersigned counsel and pursuant to
Sections 65-4-112, 65-4-113 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA), TENN. CODE ANN.
§§ 65-4-112, 65-4-113, hereby request the approval of the Tennessee Regulatory Authority
(“Authority”) of a transaction whereby PAETEC will acquire ultimate, indirect control of
US LEC’s operating subsidiary, US LEC of Tennessee Inc. (“US LEC-TN”) (the “Transfer
of Control”).! This Application also seeks approval, to the extent deemed by the Authority
to be necessary under or required by Section 65-4-109 of the TCA, TENN. CODE ANN. §
65-4-109, for US LEC-TN and PAETEC Communications, Inc. (“PAETEC

Communications™), PAETEC’s operating subsidiary, to participate in certain debt financing

! The Transfer of Control will result from the proposed merger of US LEC and PAETEC. Pursuant
to the terms of the merger agreement, PAETEC and US LEC will become wholly owned subsidiaries of a
new holding company (“New PAETEC”), the majority ownership and control of which will be held by
PAETEC shareholders, as detailed in Section III of this Application.



arrangements related to the Transfer of Control (“Debt Refinancing™). Both US LEC-TN
and PAETEC Communications are authorized to provide intrastate telecommunications
services in the State of Tennessee. Further information regarding Applicants and their
respective operating subsidiaries is set forth below in Section II of this Application.

2. Although the proposed transactions will result in a change in the ultimate
ownership of US LEC-TN, no transfer of certificate, assets or customers will occur as a
consequence of the proposed transactions. Immediately following the closing of the
proposed transactions, US LEC-TN will continue to provide service to its existing customers
in Tennessee under the US LEC name, pursuant to its existing certificates, with no change in
the rates or terms and conditions of service as currently provided. The Transfer of Control
will therefore be transparent to US LEC-TN’s customers in terms of the services they
receive. Similarly, the Debt Refinancing, which will not involve any transfer of certificate,
assets or customers, will be transparent to the respective customers of US LEC-TN and
PAETEC Communications.

3. Further information regarding the Transfer of Control and the Debt
Refinancing is set forth in Section III, below. In addition, organizational charts depicting
the relevant corporate structure of US LEC and PAETEC, respectively, before and after the
merger are attached hereto as Exhibit A. In support of this Application, Applicants state as
follows:

IIL. DESCRIPTION OF THE PARTIES

A. US LEC of Tennessee Inc. and US LEC Corp.
4, US LEC of Tennessee Inc. (“US LEC-TN”), a Delaware corporation, is a

wholly owned subsidiary of US LEC Corp. (“US LEC”), a publicly traded Delaware



corporation (NASDAQ: CLEC). Both companies maintain their principal offices in
Charlotte, North Carolina.

5. US LEC is a leading provider of IP, data and voice solutions to business
customers and enterprise organizations throughout the Eastern United States. Members
of the US LEC family of companies are currently authorized to provide resold and/or
facilities-based telecommunications services in 43 states and the District of Columbia
pursuant to certification, registration or tariff requirements, or on a deregulated basis.

6. In Tennessee, US LEC- is authorized to provide local exchange, exchange
access, and interexchange telecommunications services pursuant to certification granted
by the Authority in Docket No. 97-00387, on September 18, 1997. Further information
regarding US LEC-TN’s legal, technical, managerial and financial qualifications to
provide service was submitted with its application for certification. Such information
therefore is already a matter of public record, and Applicants request that it be
incorporated by reference herein.

7. In addition to Tennessee, US LEC-TN and its affiliates provide local
exchange services in Alabama, Delaware, the District of Columbia, Florida, Georgia,
Indiana, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maryland, Mississippi, New Jersey, New York, North
Carolina, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, and Virginia. US LEC operating subsidiaries are
also authorized by the Federal Communications Commission to provide international and
domestic interstate services as nondominant carriers.

B. PAETEC Corp. and PAETEC Communications, Inc.
8. PAETEC Corp. (“PAETEC”) is a privately held Delaware corporation

headquartered in Fairport, New York. Formed in 1998, PAETEC provides innovative



communications solutions to medium and large businesses and institutions through a full
line of telecommunications and Internet services, enterprise communications
management software, security solutions, and managed services. Through its operating
subsidiaries, PAETEC offers personalized solutions that include a comprehensive suite of
Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) services delivered over its Private-IP MPLS

network.

9. PAETEC operates in Tennessee through its wholly owned subsidiary,
PAETEC Communications, Inc. (“PAETEC Communications”), which is authorized to
provide resold interexchange telecommunications services and operator services pursuant to
certification granted by the Authority in Docket No. 98-00691, on December 1, 1998.

10.  PAETEC has the managerial, technical and financial qualifications to
acquire ultimate control of US LEC-TN. PAETEC is operated by a highly qualified
management team, all of whom have extensive backgrounds in telecommunications. A
list of PAETEC’s officers and directors is attached hereto as Exhibit B. The quality of
PAETEC’s management was recognized in 2005 by the Society of Financial Services
Professionals, which honored PAETEC by making it the recipient of the 2005 American
Business Ethics Award for a mid-size company.

11.  PAETEC also has the technical expertise necessary to acquire indirect
control of US LEC-TN. With more than 1,000,000 access line equivalents in service,
PAETEC currently serves more than 15,000 core business customers in 29 markets,
including Baltimore, Boston, Chicago, Connecticut, Fort Lauderdale/Miami, Long Island,

Los Angeles/Orange County, New Jersey, New York City, Northern Virginia, Orlando,



Philadelphia, Pittsburgh, Rhode Island, San Diego, Tampa, and Washington D.C.
PAETEC is technically well-qualified to acquire control of US LEC-TN.

12.  PAETEC enjoyed unprecedented growth in 2005, reflected in its
communications revenues surpassing the $500 million mark (a year-over-year increase of
23.1%). A copy of PAETEC’s most recent audited consolidated financial statements is
attached as hereto Exhibit C.

13.  With respect to its operations in Tennessee, information concerning
PAETEC’s legal, technical, managerial, and financial qualifications was submitted with
the certification application of PAETEC Communications filed with the Authority and is,
therefore, already a matter of public record. Applicants respectfully request that the
Authority take official notice of this information and incorporate it by reference herein.
Further information regarding PAETEC is available at www.PAETEC.com.

C. Designated Contacts
14.  Questions, correspondence, or other communications concerning this

Application should be directed to:

For PAETEC: For US LEC:
Tony S. Lee Terry Romine
Grace R. Chiu Deputy General Counsel-Regulatory
McGuireWoods LLP US LEC Corp.
1050 Connecticut Avenue, N.W. Morrocroft IIT

Suite 1200
Washington, D.C. 20036

6801 Morrison Blvd.
Charlotte, NC 28211

Tel:  (202) 857-1707 Tel: (704) 319-1119
Fax: (202) 828-2973 Fax: (704) 602-1119
Email: TLee@McGuireWoods.com Email: TRomine@USLEC.com

GChiu@McGuireWoods.com



III. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF TRANSFER OF CONTROL

A. Description of the Transfer of Control

15.  Under the terms of the merger agreement, PAETEC and US LEC will
become wholly owned subsidiaries of a new publicly owned holding company (“New
PAETEC”), which is expected to change its name to “PAETEC Communications Corp.”
For the Authority’s convenience, pre- and post-merger charts depicting the corporate
structure of the parties are attached hereto as Exhibit A. A copy of the Agreement and
Plan of Merger (“Merger Agreement”) is attached hereto as Exhibit D.

16.  Taking into account outstanding rights to acquire shares in the new
holding company in the future, PAETEC shareholders will own approximately 2/3 and
US LEC shareholders will own approximately 1/3 of New PAETEC.?> The Merger
Agreement provides that the board of directors of New PAETEC will have nine directors,
six of which will be appointed by PAETEC, and three appointed by US LEC.*

17. The Merger Agreement also provides for the appointment of certain
officers of New PAETEC. Specifically, PAETEC’s chief executive officer, chief
financial officer and chief operating officer will become chief executive officer, chief
financial officer, and chief operating officer, respectively, of New PAETEC. US LEC’s
chief financial officer will lead the integration efforts as Executive Vice President of

Integration.

: New PAETEC expects to be listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the ticker “CLEC” upon
completion of the transaction.

} Upon closing, PAETEC shareholders will be entitled to receive 1.623 shares in New PAETEC in
exchange for each share of PAETEC that they currently own, and US LEC shareholders will be entitled to
receive one share for each share of US LEC that they currently own.

¢ The ratio of PAETEC directors to US LEC directors shall be maintained at 6:3 for three years
following consummation of the merger. The merger agreement provides for the appointment of PAETEC’s
Chairman as Chairman of New PAETEC, and of US LEC’s Chairman as Vice Chairman of New PAETEC.

-6-



18.  As aresult of the merger, indirect control of US LEC-TN will be
transferred to New PAETEC — which will be majority-owned and controlled by current
PAETEC shareholders and directors and whose executive management team will include
the current CEO, CFO, and COO of PAETEC.’

19.  Consummation of the transaction is contingent upon receipt of necessary
regulatory approvals, approval by a majority of the shareholders of US LEC and
PAETEC, and satisfaction of customary closing conditions.

B. Description of the Debt Refinancing

20. Concurrently with the consummation of the merger, New PAETEC will
enter into senior secured credit facilities in the aggregate principal amount of $850
million (“New Credit Facilities”). Each direct and indirect subsidiary of New PAETEC,
including US LEC-TN and PAETEC Communications, will be required to provide an
unconditional guaranty of all amounts owing under the credit facilities and grant a
security interest in their respective assets to secure all amounts owing under the New
Credit Facilities.

21.  The New Credit Facilities will include a $625 million first-lien term loan
and a $175 million second-lien term loan, both of which will be incurred on the closing
date to fund the Debt Refinancing and to pay the fees and expenses incurred in
connection with the merger and refinancing transactions. More specifically, as of or
concurrently with the closing, all outstanding obligations existing under (i) US LEC’s
Second Priority Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes in the aggregate principal amount of

$150 million, due 2009, and an existing, unused revolving $10 million secured credit

> The merger will not result in a transfer of control of PAETEC Communications because following

consummation of the merger, PAETEC Communications will continue to be majority owned and controlled
by current PAETEC shareholders and directors.

-7



facility; and (ii) PAETEC’s existing First Lien Credit Agreement and Second Lien Credit
Agreement in the total aggregate principal amount of $375 million, will be repaid in full
from the proceeds of the New Credit Facilities. A portion of the proceeds of the New
Credit Facilities will also be used to repurchase US LEC’s outstanding Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock in connection with the merger transactions. The final
maturity date of the first-lien term loan and the second-lien term loan is 6 and 7 years,
respectively, from the date of closing.

22.  The remaining portion of the debt financing consists of a $50 million
revolving credit facility (“Revolver™), which is to be utilized on a going forward basis for
working capital, capital expenditures and general corporate purposes. No portion of the
Revolver, however, may be used to pay amounts owing to finance the Debt Refinancing
or to pay any fees and expenses incurred in connection with the merger and Debt
Refinancing. The maturity date of the Revolver is 5 years from the date of closing.

C. Public Interest Statement

23.  Although the proposed transactions will result in a change in the ultimate
ownership of US LEC-TN, no transfer of certificate, assets or customers will occur as a
consequence of the proposed transactions. Immediately following the closing of the
proposed transactions, US LEC-TN will continue to provide service to its existing
customers in Tennessee under the US LEC name, pursuant to its existing certificate, with
no change in the rates or terms and conditions of service as currently provided.
Therefore, the Transfer of Control will be transparent to US LEC-TN’s customers in

terms of the services they receive. Similarly, the Debt Refinancing, which will not



involve any transfer of certificate, assets or customers, will be transparent to the
respective customers of US LEC-TN and PAETEC Communications.

24.  The proposed transactions, moreover, will serve the public interest by
greatly enhancing the abilities that both US LEC and PAETEC now possess as stand-
alone companies to provide a comprehensive suite of services to customers. The merger
will bring together two companies that have proven themselves in a highly competitive
marketplace, in a manner that will create a stronger and more-enduring competitor than
either company could achieve alone within the same period of time.

25. By combining the complementary strengths, product sets, and geographic
footprints of the two companies, New PAETEC will be positioned to realize substantial
cost savings and achieve synergies that will strengthen its ability to enhance service
offerings and provide more advanced telecommunications services to a broader customer
base. New PAETEC will have the expertise and incentive to identify and develop
significant cross-selling opportunities that will deliver long-term value to customers.

26.  Moreover, the strategic combination will bring together two companies
that share a commitment to building and maintaining solid relationships with their
customers. The parties expect that the merger will enable both US LEC-TN and
PAETEC Communications to strengthen their competitive positions in Tennessee to the
benefit of Tennessee consumers and the State’s telecommunications marketplace.

27.  The proposed transactions will therefore ultimately improve the quality
and variety of telecommunications products and services offered to consumers in the
State of Tennessee. Grant of this Application will therefore serve the public interest of

the State of Tennessee.



IV. CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, Applicants respectfully submit that the public

interest, convenience, and necessity would be furthered by grant of this Application for

approval to transfer of control of US LEC-TN and, to the extent deemed necessary or

required, approval for US LEC-TN and PAETEC Communications to participate in the

related debt refinancing arrangements described herein. Applicants respectfully request

expedited consideration and grant of this Application no later than November 1, 2006.

Terry Romine

Deputy General Counsel-Regulatory
US LEC Corp.

Morrocroft III

6801 Morrison Blvd.

Charlotte, NC 28211

Tel:  (704) 319-1119

Fax: (704)602-1119

Email: TRomine@USLEC.com

Counsel to US LEC CORP. and

US LEC OF TENNESSEE INC.

Dated: August 29, 2006
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Respectfully submitted,

[he—

ony S. Lee
Grgdce R. Chiu
cGuireWoods LLP

Washington Square

1050 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20036

Tel:  (202) 857-1707

Fax: (202) 828-2973

Email: TLee@McGuireWoods.com
GChiu@McGuireWoods.com

Counsel to PAETEC CORP. and

PAETEC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.



LIST OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit A Corporate Structure of PAETEC and US LEC Prior to and

Following the Proposed Merger

Exhibit B Officers and Directors of PAETEC Corp.

Exhibit C Consolidated Financial Statements of PAETEC Corp.

Exhibit D Agreement and Plan of Merger

Verifications



EXHIBIT A

Corporate Structure of PAETEC and US LEC Prior to and
Immediately Following the Proposed Merger



EXHIBIT A-1

Pre-Merger Corporate Structure of
PAETEC Corp. and US LEC Corp.

PAETEC Corp.
| |
New PAETEC Other PAETEC
PAETEC* Communications Subsidiaries
. (not subject to TN
(holding company) (certificated in TN) regulation)
I
I I
Merger Sub U Merger Sub P
US LEC Corp.
I
I |
Other US LEC US LEC of

Subsidiaries

(not subjectto TN
regulation)

Tennessee Inc.

(certificated in TN)

* Legal name of entity is WC Acquisition Holdings Corp.




EXHIBIT A-2

Merger of

PAETEC Corp. and US LEC Corp.

PAETEC Corp,

the merger

US LEC Corp.

Other US LEC
Subsidiaries

(not subject to TN
regulation)

US LEC of
Tennessee Inc.

(certificated in TN)

* Legal name of entity is WC Acquisition Holdings Corp.

merges with and
into Merger Sub
P and will'survive
PAETEC Corp. the merger
[ | k
PAETEC Other PAETEC New
Communications Subsidiaries PAETEC*
(not subject to TN
(certificated in TN) regulation) (holding company)
I
I |
: Merger Sub U Merger Sub P
: SI;{,:US L.EC COI"Q. RO i {
. mergeswithand
_.into-Merger Sub U
~“and will survive -



EXHIBIT A-3

POST-Merger Corporate Structure of
PAETEC Corp. and US LEC Corp.

* Will change its name to PAETEC
Communications Corp.
* Will be majority owned and

controlled by current shareholders
and directors of PAETEC Corp. ; New

PAETEC*
{holding companyy)

» Executive management team will
include current CEO, CFO, and
COO of PAETEC Corp.

- Will be a publicly traded company
(NASDAQ: CLEC) J

US LEC Corp. PAETEC Corp.

Other US LEC US LEC of PAETEC Other PAETEC
Subsidiaries Tennessee Inc. Communications** Subsidiaries
(not subject to TN (not subject to TN
regulation) (certificated in TN) (certificated in TN) regulation)

*Legal name of entity is WC Acquisition Holdings Corp.

** The merger will not result in a transfer of control of PAETEC Communications because ownership and control of
PAETEC Communications will remain with current shareholders and directors of PAETEC. The Application,
therefore, seeks transfer of control approval only as to US LEC of Tennessee.



EXHIBIT B

Officers and Directors
of PAETEC Corp.



PAETEC CORP.

DIRECTORS:

Arunas A. Chesonis
Mark Zupan

James A. Kofalt
William R. McDermott
Keith M. Wilson

OFFICERS:

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and
President
Arunas A. Chesonis

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Keith M. Wilson

Executive Vice President, Secretary and
General Counsel

Daniel J. Venuti, Esq.

Executive Vice President and Treasurer
Timothy J. Bancroft

Executive Vice President
Joseph D. Ambersley

Effective 02.01.06

Executive Vice President
Christopher Bantoft

Executive Vice President
John P. Baron

Executive Vice President
Jeffrey L. Burke

Executive Vice President
Edward J. Butler, Jr.

Executive Vice President
Richard J. Padulo

Controller
Algimantas K. Chesonis

Assistant Secretary
John B. Messenger

S:/Legal/Administrative/Officer Lists/Current



EXHIBIT C

Consolidated Financial Statements
of PAETEC Corp.



Confidential

PAETEC

COMMUNICATIONS

PAETEC Corp.

2005 Audited Financial Statements

Dated: March 14,2006
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INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PAETEC Corp. and Subsidiaries

R Page
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2004 and 2003 F-4
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Confidential
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors and Stockholders
PAETEC Corp.
Fairport, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of PAETEC Corp. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, redeemable
preferred stock and stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005.
Our audit also included the consolidated financial statement schedule at page II-1. These consolidated financial statements
and consolidated financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
PAETEC Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects
the information set forth therein.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Rochester, New York
March 14, 2006

F-2



Confidential

PAETEC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND 2004

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA)

December 31,
2005 2004
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 49,394 $ 45,882
Aocounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
acoounts of $6,335 and $6,461, respectively 68,313 55,961
Deferred income taxes 19,505 21,875
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4704 3,258
Total current assets 141,916 126,976
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 151,994 132,776
GOODWILL 35,082 36,695
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net of accumulated amortization
of $4,731 and $1,605, respectively 9,725 9,408
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 13,359 23,967
OTHER ASSETS, net 3.154 4.751
TOTAL ASSETS $ 355,230 $ 334573
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 20,328 $ 21,102
Aocrued expenses 13,246 13,376
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 8,032 5,702
Accrued taxes 10,021 9,505
Accrued commissions 8,282 6,085
Accrued capital expenditures 7,583 1,549
Deferred revenue 18,923 14,706
Current portion of long-term debt 12,186 7,682
Total current liabilities 98,601 79,707
LONG-TERM DEBT 99,700 124,444
FAIR VALUE OF SERIES A CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERRED
STOCK CONVERSION RIGHT 10,778 -
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 3,605 1,404
TOTAL LIABILITIES 212,684 205,555
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 11}
SERIES A CONVERTIBLE, REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK:
Series A convertible, redeermable preferred stock, $.01 par value, 134,000
shares authorized, issued and outstanding ($195,675 and $181,180
liquidation value at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively,
inclusive of accrued dividends of $61,675 and $47,180 respectively) 193,164 178,067
STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT:
Class A common stock, $.01 par value; 75,000,000 authorized shares;
26,679,258 and 26,664,258 shares issues and outstanding, respectively 267 267
Class B common stock, $.01 par value; 7,500,000 authorized shares; |
2,635,000 shares issued and outstanding at each period 26 26
Additional paid-in capital 24,459 39,998
Deferred stock-based compensation 81 (549)
Accumulated other comprehensive income - 972
Accumulated deficit (75,289) (89,763)
Total stockholders' deficit (50.618) (49.049)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT b 355230 $ 334573

See notes to consolidated financial statements

F-3



Confidential PAETEC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003
{AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

REVENUE:
Network services revenue
Carrier services revenue
Integrated solutions revenue
TOTAL REVENUE

COST OF SALES (exclusive of depreciation

and amortization shown separately below)
RETROACTIVE NETWORK COST DISCOUNT
LITIGATION SETTLEMENT

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES (exclusive of depreciation and
amortization shown separately below and inclusive of
stock-based compensation)
WITHDRAWN INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING AND RELATED
TERMINATED NEW SENIOR SECURED CREDIT FACILITY EXPENSES

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF SERIES A CONVERTIBLE
REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK CONVERSION
RIGHT

OTHER INCOME, net

INTEREST EXPENSE

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAXES
NET INCOME

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Change in market value of hedge instruments

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(LOSS) INCOME ALLOCATED TO COMMON
STOCKHOLDERS (NOTE 9)

(LOSS) INCOME PER COMMON SHARE - BASIC (NOTE 9)
(LOSS) INCOME PER COMMON SHARE - DILUTED (NOTE 9)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON
SHARES OUTSTANDING

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON
SHARES OUTSTANDING INCLUDING DILUTIVE
EFFECT OF POTENTIAL COMMON SHARES

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004 2003
400,717 $ 316,731 263,929
76,685 70,767 72,066
32,022 26,173 27,675
509,424 413,671 363,670
237,809 168,115 143,132
(1,750) - -
(860) - -
193,846 172,075 155,177
4,553 - -
29,076 22,808 19,871
46,750 50,673 45,490
10,778 - -
(3,098) {715) (407)
10,472 10,911 10,737
28,598 40,477 35,160
14,124 (37,158) 685
14,474 77,635 34,475
360 1,438 1,456
14,834 _$ 79,073 35,931
(623) $ 39,495 13,298
(0.02) _§ 1.35 0.46
0.02) § 1.25 0.44
29.312.020 29.259.615 29,107,330
29,312,020 31,657,760 30,163,364




Confidential PAETEC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT SHARE AMOUNTS)

Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Common Stock Accumulated
Redeemable Additional Deferred Other
Preferred Paid-In Stock-Based  Comprehensive  Accumulated
Stock Class A Class B Capital Compensation  (Loss)/Income Deficit Total

BALANCE, January 1, 2003 $ 151,017 $ 263§ 26§ 66,213 § (555) § (1,922) $ (201,873) $ (137,848)
Accretion of preferred stock to

redemption value 603 — — (603) — — — (603)
Dividends on preferred stock 12,423 — — (12,423) — — — (12,423)
Exercise of stock options, 234,943

shares — 3 — 100 — — — 103
Forfeited stock-based

compensation related to

options and warrants — — — (6) 6 — — —
Amortization of deferred stock-

based compensation — — —_ — 328 — — 328
Change in deferred compensation

related to outstanding warrant

grants — — — 60 (60) — — —
Net income — — — — — — 34,475 34,475
Other comprehensive income — — — — — 1,456 — 1,456
BALANCE, December 31, 2003 $ 164,043 § 266 $ 26§ 53,341 §$ (281) § (466) $ (167,398) $ (114,512)
Accretion of preferred stock to

redemption value 603 — — (603) — — — (603)
Dividends on preferred stock 13,421 —_ — (13,421) — — — (13,421)
Exercise of stock options, 113,109

shares — 1 — 48 — — — 49
Amortization of deferred stock-

based compensation — — — 160 205 — — 365
Change in deferred compensation

related to outstanding warrant

grants — — —_— 473 (473) — — —
Net income — — — — — — 77,635 77,635
Other comprehensive income — — — — — 1,438 — 1,438
BALANCE, December 31, 2004 $ 178,067 § 267 $ 26§ 39998 $ (549) $ 972§ (89,763) $§ (49,049)
Accretion of preferred stock to

redemption value 603 — — (603) — — — (603)
Dividends on preferred stock 14,494 — — (14,494) — — — (14,494)
Exercise of stock options, 15,000

shares — — — 5 — — — 5
Forfeited stock-based
compensation related to options
and warrants — — — (11) 11 — — —
Amortization of deferred stock-

based compensation — — — (23) 44 — — 21
Change in deferred compeasation

related to outstanding warrant

grants — — — (413) 413 — — —
Net income — _ — —_ — — 14,474 14,474
Change in fair value of interest rate

swaps for the three months

ended March 31, 2005 — — — — — 360 — 360
Reclassification due to

discontinuance of hedge

accounting — — — — — (1,332) — (1,332)
BALANCE, December 31, 2005 $.193,164 $ 267 § 26§ 24459 $ NV — 3 (75,289) $ (50,618)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Confidential

PAETEC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004 2003
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 14474 $ 77635 § 34,475
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 29,076 22,808 19,871
Amortization of debt issuance costs 2,108 1,794 846
Stock-based compensation expense 21 365 328
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 4 5 27
Deferred income taxes 12,978 (38,235) -
Change in fair value of Series A convertible redeembable preferred
stock conversion right 10,778 - -
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps (1,449) 178 113
Change in assets and liabilities which provided (used) cash:
Acoounts receivable 9,447 (8,857) 3,969
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (761) (862) (362)
Other assets 15 68 44)
Acoounts payable (2,39%0) 2,968 (2,065)
Accrued expenses 364 (1,204) 2,336
Deferred revenue 4358 4,476 3,335
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 2,330 (2,553) 2,107
Accrued commissions 1,856 704) 41
Accrued taxes 96 12 2,205
Net cash provided by operating activities 64,451 57,894 67,100
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (29,607) (24,034) (23,956)
Acquisitions, net of cash received (NOTE 13) (2,201) (14,566) -
Cash used by investing activities (31,808) (38,600) (23,956)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments of long-term debt (28,789) (22,558) (15,711)
Payment for debt issuance costs (347 2,727 -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 5 49 103
Net cash used by financing activities (29,131) (25,236) (15,608)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,512 (5,542) 27,536
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 45,882 51,824 24,288
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 49394 § 45882 § 51,824
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest § 9929 § 9091 $§ 8161
Cash paid for income taxes § 1302 § 148 § 685
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING TRANSACTIONS:
Deferred consideration in connection with a business acquisition $§ 2161 $ 281 § -
Property and equipment acquired under capital lease obligations $ 8549 $ 9511 § 4773
Property and equipment expenditures included in accrued expenses § 7583 § 1549 § 3008
Tenant incentive leasehold improvements $ 01§ - 8 -

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Confidential PAETEC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of PAETEC Corp. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, PAETEC
Communications, Inc., PAETEC Capital Corp., PAETEC Communications of Virginia, Inc., PAETEC Software Corp.,
PAETEC Integrated Solutions Group, Inc. and, effective February 28, 2005, American Long Lines, Inc. (Note 13)
(collectively “the Company™).

The Company operates in one business segment and is an integrated communications provider that offers broadband
communications solutions, including voice, data, application and network integration services, primarily to business and
institutional customers.

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolidation—The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of PAETEC Corp. and its
subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—The Company includes as cash and cash equivalents, cash, marketable securities and
commercial paper with original maturities of three months or less.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—To determine its allowance for bad debts, the Company uses estimates based on its
historical collection experience, its assessment of current industry trends and its credit policies.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets—Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of prepaid services,
insurance, maintenance contracts and refundable deposits. Prepayments are expensed on a straight-line basis over the
corresponding life of the underlying agreements.

Property and Equipment—Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Interest is capitalized in
connection with the installation of integrated network and related equipment. The capitalized interest is recorded as part of
such assets and is amortized over the asset’s estimated useful life. Interest cost capitalized in 2005, 2004 and 2003 was not
material.

Software development costs incurred subsequent to establishing technological feasibility through general release of the
software products are capitalized in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 86
Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed. Capitalized costs will be
amortized on a product-by-product basis, with annual amortization being the greater of (a) the ratio of current product gross
revenues to the total of current and anticipated future product gross revenues or (b) the straight-line method over the
product’s remaining estimated economic life, including the current reporting period. Amortization will begin once the
associated software product is available for general release to customers. There was no amortization of these costs in 2005 or
2004. The unamortized balance of capitalized software was $0.1 million and $0 at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the property and equipment as
follows:

Switches and switch-related equipment 5 - 12 years
Computer hardware and purchased software 3 - 10 years
Equipment 4-10 years
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-7 years
Leasehold improvements 3 - 20 years

Included within depreciation expense is amortization of property and equipment under capital lease agreements. For
leasehold improvements and property and equipment under capital lease agreements, depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the lease term.

Goodwill—Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, the Company does not amortize
goodwill or other acquired intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. The Company has identified two reporting units as
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Confidential PAETEC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

defined in SFAS No. 142. Goodwill is assessed for impairment at least annually, based upon the Company’s estimate of the
fair value of each reporting unit. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company did not have any intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives.

The Company assesses the carrying value of its goodwill as of July 1 of each fiscal year. In accordance with SFAS No. 142,
goodwill of a reporting unit will also be tested for impairment between annual tests if a triggering event occurs, as defined by
SFAS No. 142, that could potentially reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying value. The 2005, 2004 and
2003 annual assessment of the carrying value of the Company’s reporting units indicated that the value of the remaining
goodwill was not impaired as of July 1, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

Long-Lived Assets—The Company has a policy to review the carrying value of its long-lived assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable. For
purposes of evaluating and measuring impairment, the Company groups a long-lived asset or assets with other assets and
liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and
liabilities. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to
future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of
the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. No
impairment charge for long-lived assets has been recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 or 2003.

Deferred Income Taxes—The Company recognizes deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of transactions and events. Under this method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based
on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the
year in which the differences are expected to reverse. If necessary, deferred income tax assets are reduced by a valuation
allowance to an amount that is determined to be more likely than not recoverable. The Company must make significant
estimates and assumptions about future taxable income and future tax consequences when determining the amount of the
valuation allowance. In accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, the Company records tax contingencies
when the exposure item becomes probable and reasonably estimable. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had tax
contingency reserves of approximately $0.3 million.

Other Assets—Other assets consist primarily of debt issuance costs, deposits and miscellaneous other assets. Debt issuance
costs are amortized over the term of the related debt instruments, which is recorded as interest expense.

Self- insurance reserve—The Company is self-insured for certain losses related to insurance, although it maintains stop-loss
coverage with third party insurers to limit exposures. The estimate of its self-insurance liability contains uncertainty since the
Company must use judgment to estimate the ultimate cost that will be incurred to settle reported claims and claims for
incidents incurred but not reported as of the balance sheet date. When estimating its self-insurance liability, the Company
considers a number of factors which include, but are not limited to, historical claim experience, and known claims not yet
paid. The Company has not made any material changes in the accounting methodology used to establish its self-insurance
liabilities during the past three fiscal years.

Legal and contingency reserves—The Company accounts for legal and other contingencies in accordance with SFAS No. 5.
Loss contingencies are accrued by a charge to income if both of the following conditions are met: 1) information prior to
issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred
at the date of the financial statements. It is implicit in this condition that it must be probable that one or more future events
will occur confirming the fact of the loss; and 2) the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Redeemable preferred stock—Redeemable preferred stock is reflected in the consolidated balance sheets at amounts that
include cumulative dividends due on the preferred stock through the balance sheet date and accretion to the mandatory
redemption date of the direct costs associated with obtaining the preferred stock utilizing the straight-line method. The
Company currently believes that it is not probable that the preferred stock will become redeemable prior to the mandatory
redemption date. This is due to the Company’s current belief that it is reasonably possible that it could consummate a
transaction prior to the voluntary redemption date that would extinguish the Series A stockholders' rights to voluntarily
redeem their preferred stock. If the Company determines that it is probable that the preferred stock will become redeemable
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prior to the mandatory redemption date, the Company will accrete the remaining unaccreted direct costs associated with
obtaining the preferred stock from the date that it becomes probable to the earliest redemption date.

Revenue Recognition—The Company derives its revenue primarily from sales of telecommunications services, principally
usage fees and monthly recurring fees. Usage fees consist of fees paid by customers for each call made, access fees paid by
carriers for long distance calls that the Company originates and terminates and fees paid by the incumbent carriers as
reciprocal compensation when the Company terminates local calls made by their customers. Revenue related to usage fees is
recognized when the service is provided. Usage fees are billed in arrears and estimates are used to recognize revenue for
unbilled usage fees. The Company’s ability to generate access revenue including reciprocal compensation revenue is subject
to numerous regulatory and legal proceedings. Until these proceedings are ultimately resolved, the Company’s policy is to
recognize access revenue including reciprocal compensation revenue only when it is concluded that realization of that
revenue is reasonably assured.

Monthly recurring fees include the fees paid for lines in service and additional features on those lines. Monthly recurring fees
are paid by end-user customers and are primarily billed in advance. This revenue is recognized during the period in which it
is earned.

Management makes estimates of future customer credits through the analysis of historical trends and known events. The
provisions for revenue adjustments are recorded as a reduction of revenue when incurred. Since any revenue allowances are
recorded as an offset to revenue, any future increases or decreases in the allowances will positively or negatively affect
revenue by the same amount.

The Company has certain arrangements where it recognizes revenue in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin
(“SAB”) No. 104, Revenue Recognition, which requires certain non-recurring service activation and installation fee revenues
that become payable at the time service is initiated to be deferred over the average customer life. In accordance with SAB No.
104, the Company defers service activation and installation fee revenues and related costs and amortizes them over the
average customer life, primarily three years.

The Company also derives revenue from sales of telecommunications equipment and software. Equipment revenue consists
of fees paid for equipment and for system design and installation services. Equipment revenue is recognized upon delivery
and acceptance of the equipment. Software revenue is derived through selling and supporting the Company’s proprietary
telecommunications software. Revenue related to software sales is recognized upon delivery and acceptance of the software
in accordance with SOP 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition and related interpretations. Support fees include fees for
maintenance of the Company’s telecommunications software and fees for training the end user in the proper use of the
telecommunications software. Maintenance fees are recognized pro rata over the length of the underlying maintenance
contract. Training fees are recognized after the training obligation has been fulfilled.

Arrangements with multiple deliverables are accounted for in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Bulletin
00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables. EITF 00-21 provides additional guidance on revenue recognition
for transactions that may involve the delivery or performance of multiple products, services or rights to use assets, and
performance that may occur at different points in time or over different periods of time. Arrangements with multiple
deliverables are reviewed and the elements separated into units of accounting under the provisions of EITF 00-21, with the
total consideration received allocated over the relative fair value of the units of accounting. Revenue is recognized as the
elements are delivered, assuming all the other conditions for recognition of revenue discussed above have been met.

Deferred Revenue—Deferred revenue as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 is comprised of the following:

December 31,

(in thousands)

2005 2004
Monthly recurring transport charges billed in advance $ 13,627 $§ 10,595
Deferred software maintenance revenue 2,163 1,985
Non-recurring service activation and installation fees revenue 2,242 1,526
Other deferrals 891 600
Current deferred revenue 18,923 14,706
Other non-current deferred revenue 2,297 1,695
Total deferred revenue $ 21,220 $§ 16,401
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Cost of Sales—Cost of sales consists primarily of leased transport charges, usage costs for local and long distance calls, and
costs associated with equipment sales. Leased transport charges are the payments the Company makes to lease the telephone
and data transmission lines it uses to connect customers to the Company’s network and to connect the Company’s network to
the networks of other carriers. Usage costs for local and long distance are the costs incurred to connect the Company’s
switching centers to each other, or for calls made by customers that are terminated on the networks of other carriers. These
costs include an estimate of charges for which invoices have not yet been received, and are based upon the estimated number
of transmission lines and facilities in service, estimated minutes of use and estimated amounts accrued for pending disputes
with other carriers, as well as upon the contractual rates charged by the Company’s service providers. Subsequent
adjustments to these estimates may occur after the bills are received for the actual costs incurred, but these adjustments are
generally not expected to be material to operating results. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had $5.1 million
and $8.7 million, respectively, of disputed network invoices and recorded reserves of approximately $2.5 million and $3.5
million, respectively, related to disputed balances in accounts payable on the consolidated balance sheet.

In 2005, cost of sales included a credit of approximately $2.5 million from one of the Company’s largest suppliers for a
network services discount based on cumulative purchases from June 1, 2004 through March 31, 2005. Approximately $0.7
million of the credit was based on purchases during 2005. The Company did not recognize approximately $1.8 million of the
credit over the discount period, because prior to the recognition of the credit, the Company did not believe it would achieve
the level of cumulative purchases required to earn the credit, and therefore, the Company did not believe that the amount of
the credit was fixed or determinable. During the three months ended March 31, 2005, the Company executed a new
agreement with this supplier related to discounts on future purchases of network services. At that same time, the Company
reached an agreement regarding the criteria required to earn the credit as defined in the prior year’s agreement. As a result of
that agreement, the Company believed that the amount of the credit related to past purchases of network services was fixed
and determinable and, accordingly, recognized a credit of $2.5 million in its results of operations for 2005.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses—The Company’s selling, general and administrative expenses include selling
and marketing, customer service, billing, corporate administration, engineering personnel and other personnel costs.

Withdrawn Initial Public Offering and Related Terminated New Senior Secured Credit Facility Expenses—The Company
accounts for specific incremental costs directly attributable to a proposed offering of securities in accordance with SAB Topic
5A, Expenses of Offering. Under SAB Topic 5A, specific incremental costs directly attributable to a proposed or actual
offering of securities may be deferred and charged against the gross proceeds of the offering. On September 16, 2005, the
Company requested the withdrawal of its Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 22, 2005. Therefore, the Company’s 2005 operating expenses include a charge of approximately $4.6
million for costs related to the withdrawn initial public offering, including costs associated with the related terminated new
senior secured credit facility.

The Company’s Stock Option Plans—Employees of the Company participate in the PAETEC Corp. 2001 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan (the “2001 Option Plan”) and the PAETEC Corp. 1998 Incentive Compensation Plan (the “1998 Option Plan”
and, together with the 2001 Option Plan, the “Option Plans”). The Company accounts for compensation cost under the
Option Plans using the intrinsic value method of accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. When appropriate, compensation expense is recorded for awards of options over
the period earned. However, in most cases the Company has not recognized any compensation expense in connection with
option awards to employees, since the exercise price of the option on the date of grant generally approximates the fair market
value of the Company’s underlying Class A common stock on that date.

In July 2005, the Company’s board of directors increased the number of shares authorized for issuance pursuant to the 2001
Option Plan by 10 million shares of Class A common stock.

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, as
amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition Disclosure. Except for options described
in Note 8, the Company has not recognized any compensation cost with respect to the Option Plans in connection with
awards to employees, since the exercise price of the options on the date of grant approximated fair market value of the
underlying common stock. In accordance with SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148, the Company estimates the fair
value of each option grant on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and using assumed risk-free
interest rates ranging from 2.84% to 6.67% and expected lives of seven years. The volatility factor assumptions used in the
Company’s fair value model ranged from 71% to 99%.
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If the Company had recorded compensation cost for the Option Plans based on the fair value of the awards on the date of
grant, the Company’s net income and net (loss) income per common share in the years ended 2005, 2004 and 2003 would
have been as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per share data)
2005 2004 2003
Net income $ 14474 $ 77,635 $ 34475
Plus: Stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported net income, net of income taxes (10) 185 150
Less: Stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all
awards, net of income taxes (5,712) (7,753) (8,748)
Net income—pro forma $ 8752 § 70,067 $§ 25877
(Loss) income per common share (basic)—as reported $ (002 § 135 $ 0.46
(Loss) income per common share (diluted)—as reported $ .02 § 125 § 0.44
(Loss) income per common share (basic)—pro forma $ ©022) ¢ 1.19 $ 0.27
(Loss) income per common share (diluted}—pro forma $ (©022) % 1.10 $ 0.26

Agent Warrant Plan—The Company’s independent sales agents participate in the PAETEC Communications, Inc. Agent
Incentive Plan (the “Warrant Plan”). Warrants granted under the Warrant Plan are recorded at fair value and are accounted
for under the provisions of SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148 and EITF Issue 96-18, Accounting for Equity
Investments that are Issued to Other than Employees or in Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services. In accordance with
SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148, the Company estimates the fair value of each warrant grant on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and using assumed risk-free interest rates ranging from 2.84% to 6.67%
and expected lives of ten years. The volatility factor assumptions used in the Company’s fair value model ranged from 71%
to 99%. The Company accrues compensation expense during the service period and adjusts the value attributable to unvested
warrants in subsequent periods to the measurement date for increases or decreases in the fair value of the shares of common
stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants. In accordance with EITF Issue 96-18, the measurement date is the date at which
the agent’s performance is complete.

Concentration of Credit Risk—Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash, cash
equivalents and accounts reccivable. Exposure to losses on accounts receivable is principally dependent on each customer’s
financial condition. The Company monitors its exposure for credit losses and maintains allowances for anticipated losses. As
of December 31, 2005 and 2004, cash and cash equivalents of $25.2 million and $21.2 million, respectively, were held by a
major financial institution, and the remaining cash and cash equivalents of $24.2 million and $24.7 million, respectively,
were held at various financial institutions and banks.

Concentration of Suppliers—The Company currently leases its transport capacity from a limited number of suppliers and is
dependent upon the availability of transmission facilities owned by the suppliers. The Company is vulnerable to the risk of
renewing favorable supplier contracts, timeliness of the supplier in processing the Company’s orders for customers and is at
risk related to regulatory agreements that govern the rates to be charged to the Company.

Financial Instruments—The fair value of a financial instrument represents the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation. The fair values of the
Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

*  The amount of long-term debt reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets approximates the fair value of
these instruments. Fair value is based on the Company’s review of market values associated with comparable debt
instruments.

The Company is also a party to letters of credit totaling $3.5 million and $3.1 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Management does not believe it is practicable to estimate the fair value of these financial instruments and
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does not expect any material losses from their resolution since performance under these letters of credit is not likely to be
required.

Basic and Diluted Income Per Common Share—Basic income per common share is calculated utilizing the “two-class”
method by dividing income allocated to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period.

In March 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues
Task Force (EITF), on EITF Issue 03-06, Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method under FASB Statement No. 128.
EITF 03-06 provides additional guidelines related to the calculation of earnings per share under SFAS No. 128, Earnings per
Share, which includes application of the “two-class” method in computing earnings per share, identification of participating
securities, and requirements for the allocation of undistributed earnings (and losses) to participating securities.

The Company currently has 134,000 outstanding shares of Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock that meet the
criteria of a participating security in the calculation of basic income per common share using the “two-class” method of
SFAS No. 128. Therefore, EITF 03-06 requires that earnings be allocated between common stock and the participating
security.

Diluted income per common share is computed by dividing income allocated to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of shares of Class A common stock, Class B common stock and potential common stock outstanding during
the period. Potential common stock consists of common stock issuable under the assumed exercise of stock options and
warrants, computed based on the treasury stock method, and the assumed conversion of the issued and outstanding Series A
convertible redeemable preferred stock using the “if-converted™ method. Diluted income per common share includes the
effect of potentially dilutive issuances of securities. Potential common stock is not included in the calculations of diluted
income per common share to the extent its inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

Use of Estimates in Financial Statements—The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Derivatives—SFAS. No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended by SFAS No. 138,
Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities, and SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement
133 an Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, allows the gains and losses of a derivative to offset related results on
the hedged item in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income, and requires the Company to
formally document, designate and assess the effectiveness of transactions that receive hedge accounting.

Derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. The Company’s freestanding derivative instruments are
evaluated for hedge accounting at inception and evaluated for effectiveness at least quarterly throughout the hedge period.
These derivatives are designated as hedges of the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset
or liability (cash flow hedge). The effective portion of the derivative’s gain or loss is initially reported as a component of
comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction affects earnings. The
ineffective portion of the gain or loss is reported in earnings immediately.

The Company formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as the risk-
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. This process includes linking all derivatives
that are designated as cash flow hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it is determined that the derivative is no longer effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of a hedged item, the derivative or hedged item expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised,
or management determines that it is no longer appropriate to designate the derivative as a hedge instrument.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had no freestanding derivative instruments that qualified for hedge accounting.

The Company has determined that the conversion right of the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stockholders

combined with the cash repurchase right of the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stockholders represents an
embedded derivative as defined in SFAS No.133. The Company has valued and bifurcated the embedded derivative from the
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host contract. At each balance sheet date, the embedded derivative is recorded at fair value, with any change in fair value
recognized in current operations. The fair value of the embedded derivative is determined based on a number of assumptions
including the liquidity and volatility of the Company’s common stock (See Note 7).

Comprehensive Income—Comprehensive income includes all changes in stockholders’ equity during a period, except for
changes resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners. In 2005, 2004 and 2003, comprehensive income
includes the Company’s net income and also includes the change in the market value of derivative hedge instruments of $0.4
million, $1.4 million and $1.5 million, respectively.

During the second quarter of 2005, the Company concluded that the projected cash flows of its existing variable rate debt
were no longer probable of occurring due to the Company’s planned refinancing of its senior secured credit facility. As a
result, the interest rate swaps outstanding as of June 30, 2005 no longer qualified for cash flow hedge accounting and the
Company reclassified $1.3 million, which was previously recorded in other comprehensive income, to interest expense
during the three months ended June 30, 2005. The change in fair value of the outstanding interest rate swaps from June 30,
2005 to December 31, 2005 was recorded in interest expense.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards—In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs—an
amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4. ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, Inventory Pricing, discusses the general principles applicable
to the pricing of inventory. Paragraph 5 of ARB 43, Chapter 4, provides guidance on allocating certain costs to inventory.
SFAS No. 151 amends ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, to clarify that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling
costs and wasted materials (spoilage) should be recognized as current-period charges. In addition, SFAS No. 151 requires
that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production
facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005.
Management is currently in the process of evaluating the potential effect of the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 151 and
does not believe that it will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment. SFAS No. 123(R) is a revision of SFAS No.
123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees. SFAS No. 123(R) requires the measurement of the cost of employee services received in exchange for
an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award. The cost will be recognized over the period
during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. No compensation cost is recognized for
equity instruments for which employees do not render service. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for public entities that do not
file as small business issuers as of the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. SFAS
No. 123(R) is effective for nonpublic entities as of the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins after
December 15, 2005. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006, using the modified prospective
transition method. This method requires compensation cost to be recognized as expense for all awards granted after the date
of adoption as well as for the portion of outstanding awards that are unvested as of the date of adoption, based on the grant-
date fair value of those awards calculated using an option pricing model under SFAS No. 123 for pro forma disclosures. The
modified prospective method also requires that prior periods not be restated. Based on unvested options outstanding as of
December 31, 2005, and applying the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, the Company estimates that its adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R) will reduce its net income by approximately $4.0 million for 2006. This amount is not necessarily the actual
amount that the Company will record in 2006 because this amount does not include the effect of any options the Company
grants after December 31, 2005.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143. FIN No. 47 clarifies that an entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair
value of a legal obligation to perform asset-retirement activities that are conditional on a future event if the liability’s fair
value can be reasonably estimated. The interpretation also clarifies when an entity would have sufficient information to
reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation. FIN No. 47 is effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2005, with earlier application permitted. The adoption of FIN No. 47 did not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. SFAS No. 154 is a replacement
of APB No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3. SFAS No. 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of
accounting changes and error corrections. It establishes retrospective application as the required method for reporting a
change in accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 provides guidance for determining whether retrospective application of a
change in accounting principle is impracticable and for reporting a change when retrospective application is impracticable.
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SFAS No. 154 also addresses the reporting of a correction of an error by restating previously issued financial statements.
SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after
December 31, 2005. The Company will adopt this pronouncement beginning in fiscal year 2006.

In June 2005, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF), on EITF Issue 05-6,
Determining the Amortization Period for Leasehold Improvements Purchased after Lease Inception or Acquired in a
Business Combination. This issue addresses the amortization period for leasehold improvements in operating leases that are
either (a) placed in service significantly after and not contemplated at or near the beginning of the lease term or (b) acquired
in a business combination. EITF Issue 05-6 requires that leasehold improvements acquired in a business combination or
purchased significantly after lease inception, and not contemplated at the beginning of the lease term, be amortized over the
lesser of the asset’s useful life or a term that includes renewals that are reasonably assured at the date of acquisition or
purchase. This issue does not apply to preexisting leasehold improvements, and is effective for leasehold improvements
acquired or purchased in periods beginning after June 29, 2005. The adoption of EITF 05-6 did not have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

In September 2005, the EITF revised Topic D-98, Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities. The revision
provides guidance on the application of Topic D-98 to share-based payment arrangements with employees and is consistent
with the guidance in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) 107. The revision also introduces a new method, akin to the two-
class method, to calculate earnings per share when a class of common stock is redeemable at other than fair value. The
guidance regarding share-based payments should be applied concurrently with the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). The
changes related to redeemable common shares are effective for the first fiscal period beginning after September 15, 2005.
The Company will adopt the guidance in EITF revised Topic D-98 regarding share-based payments on January 1, 2006.
Management does not expect EITF revised Topic D-98 to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In October 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position (FSP) FAS 13-1, Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred During a
Construction Period. FSP FAS 13-1 addresses the accounting for rental costs associated with operating leases that are
incurred during a construction period, and requires that such costs be expensed. FSP FAS 13-1 is effective for the first
accounting period beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company does not expect that the adoption of FSP FAS 13-1 will
have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP FIN 45-3, Application of FASB Interpretation No. 45 to Minimum Revenue
Guarantees Granted to a Business or Its Owners, which amends paragraph three of FIN 45, Guarantor's Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, to include minimum
revenue guarantees. FSP FIN 45-3 requires that a liability be recognized at inception for the fair value of the obligation to
stand ready to perform under the guarantee, even if it is not probable that the contingent events that would cause payment
will occur. FSP FIN 45-3 is effective for new minimum revenue guarantees issued or modified on or after the beginning of
the first fiscal quarter following November 10, 2005, with disclosure requirements for any minimum revenue guarantee
issued prior to the initial application of the FSP. The Company is currently evaluating the potential effect of the adoption of
FSP FIN 45-3 and does not believe that it will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications—Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior periods to conform to the current period
presentation.
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3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 consisted of the following:

December 31,
2005 2004

(in thousands)
Switches and switch-related equipment $ 196,612 §$ 161,909
Computer hardware and purchased software 42,720 38,578
Equipment 16,283 14,202
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 14,478 12,438
Construction-in-progress 1,484 25
Capitalized software 114 —

271,691 227,152

Accumulated depreciation (119,697) (94,376)
Property and equipment, net $ 151,994 $ 132,776

Construction-in-progress as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted primarily of costs associated with the build-out of the
Company’s network switch sites. Depreciation expense for 2005, 2004 and 2003 totaled $26.0 million, $21.9 million, and
$19.8 million, respectively.

4. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill— The changes in the carrying value of goodwill in 2004 and 2005 were as follows (in thousands):

Balance as of December 31, 2003 $ 39,765
Goodwill related to acquisition of assets from Covista Communications, Inc. (Note 13) 4,349
Recognition of acquired net operating losses (Note 6) (7,419)
Balance as of December 31, 2004 $ 36,695
Goodwill related to acquisition of American Long Lines, Inc. (Note 13) 1,471
Purchase accounting adjustment — Covista Communications, Inc. (Note 13) (3,084)
Balance as of December 31, 2005 $ 35,082

F-15



Confidential PAETEC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Other Intangible Assets

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization by major intangible asset category for December 31, 2005 and
2004 were as follows:

As of December 31, 2005 Weighted-
(in thousands) Average
Gross Carrying Accumulated Amortization
Amount Amortization Net Period
Customer-related $ 13,803 $ 4,078 $ 9,725 4 years
Technology-based 653 653 — 3 years
Total 3 14,456 $ 4,731 $ 9,725 3 years
As of December 31, 2004 Weighted-
(in thousands) Average
Gross Carrying Accumulated Amortization
Amount Amortization Net Period
Customer-related $ 10,360 $ 952 $ 9,408 4 years
Technology-based 653 653 — 3 years
Total $ 11,013 $ 1,605 $ 9,408 3 years

The increase in intangible assets during 2005 was primarily attributable to the Company’s acquisition of American Long
Lines, Inc., which increased intangible assets by $2.6 million (Note 13). The remaining increase was attributable to a
purchase accounting adjustment related to the acquisition of assets from Covista Communications, Inc. (Note 13). The
aggregate amount of intangible assets acquired during 2004 of $10.4 million was attributable to the acquisition of assets from
Covista Communications, Inc. (Note 13). Intangible asset amortization expense for the years ended 2005, 2004 and 2003 was
$3.1 million, $1.0 million, and $0.1 million, respectively.

The Company estimates that future aggregate amortization expense related to purchased intangible assets as of December 31,
2005 will be as follows for the periods presented (in thousands):

Year Ending Decembher 31,
2006 $ 3,227
2007 2,790
2008 2,060
2009 1,546
2010 102
Total $ 9,725
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5. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

December 31,

2005 2004
(in thousands)
Senior secured debt, as described below $ 99048 §$ 121,516
Note payable to a commercial lender assumed by the Company in an acquisition,
payable in monthly installments of $90 including interest at 11.4%, maturing
in 2005 — 933
Capital lease agreement (Anaheim Switch), payable in monthly installments of
$83, including interest at 5.8%, maturing in 2009 2,868 3,671
Capital lease agreement (New Jersey Switch), payable in monthly installments of
$72, including interest at 7.3%, maturing in 2010 2,896 —
Other capital leases 7,074 6,006
Total debt 111,886 132,126
Less: current portion (12,186) (7,682)
Long-term debt $ 99,700 $ 124444
Principal payments on long-term debt are as follows (in thousands):
Year Ending December 31,
2006 $ 12,186
2007 21,601
2008 30,243
2009 38,594
2010 9,262
Thereafter —_
Total $ 111,886

Senior Secured Debt— The Company amended and restated its senior secured credit facility as of March 31, 2004 and
further amended the facility as of April 22, 2005. Under the March 2004 amendment and restatement, the term loan was
reduced to $90.0 million and the reducing revolving credit facility was reduced to $49.5 million. Borrowings under the senior
credit agreement are secured by substantially all of the Company’s assets.

Under the 2004 amendment, lenders representing approximately 90% of the outstanding principal balance as of March 31,
2004 agreed to the deferral of their principal payments as a result of this amendment. Lenders in the syndicate that did not
agree to deferred repayment terms were governed by the terms that were in effect immediately preceding the effective date of
this amendment.

As part of this amendment, the applicable margin used to calculate interest rates on outstanding balances under the senior
credit facility also was amended effective March 31, 2004, Amounts borrowed under the amended agreement bore interest at
the Company’s option at a rate equal to the sum of LIBOR, a specified prime rate or the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, and an
applicable margin of 4.25% or 3.25%, respectively. The applicable margin remained constant for the life of the amended
facility. Prior to this amendment, the applicable margin under the credit facility was 3.00% for LIBOR based loans and
2.00% for prime or federal funds rate based loans. The term of the Company’s credit facility was not affected by this
amendment.

As a result of scheduled repayments on the Company’s $100.0 million term loan, and of scheduled reductions to the
maximum amount available under the Company’s $55.0 million reducing revolving credit facility, on December 31, 2005,
maximum borrowings under the Company’s senior credit agreement were limited to $133.5 million. As of that date, a total of
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$99.0 million in borrowings were outstanding. As of December 31, 2005, borrowing rates under the senior credit agreement
averaged 8.56%. As of December 31, 2004, a total of $121.5 million in borrowings were outstanding under the senior credit
agreement and borrowing rates averaged 6.6%. During 2005 and 2004, the Company made voluntary payments against the
principal amount outstanding under the reducing revolving portion of its senior secured credit facility of $20.0 million and
$15.0 million, respectively.

On February 21, 2006, the Company amended and restated its existing senior secured credit facility. Under this amendment
and restatement, the term loan was increased to $100.0 million and the reducing revolving credit facility was reduced to
$25.0 million. As of February 21, 2006, the Company had $25.0 million in borrowings available under the revolving portion
of the credit facility. The outstanding principal balance of the term loan is payable in fifteen quarterly installments
commencing on June 30, 2006, and a final installment payment on January 31, 2010. Each quarterly installment payable
during the period from June 30, 2006 through and including March 31, 2007 is equal to $2.5 million. Each quarterly
installment payable during the period from June 30, 2007 through and including March 31, 2008 is equal to $5.0 million.
Each quarterly installment payable during the period from June 30, 2008 through and including March 31, 2009 is equal to
$7.5 million. Each quarterly installment payable during the period from June 30, 2009 through and including December 31,
2009 is equal to $10.0 million, and the final installment payable on January 31, 2010 is equal to the remaining unpaid portion
of the term loan. In accordance with SFAS No. 6, Classification of Short-Term Obligations Expected to be Refinanced, the
Company's long-term debt obligations have been adjusted to reflect the terms of the amended senior secured credit facility.

As of February 21, 2006, amounts borrowed under the Company’s amended senior secured credit facility bear interest at the
Company’s option at a LIBOR rate, which is approximately equal to LIBOR plus an applicable margin, or a base rate. The
base rate is equal to the greater of a specified prime rate plus an applicable margin, or the federal funds rate plus 0.50% plus
an applicable margin. The applicable margin varies from 4.00% to 2.00% based on a formula tied to our level of indebtedness
from time to time.

The senior credit agreement contains covenants that require the Company to maintain certain financial ratios and restrict the
Company’s ability to pay cash dividends and to incur additional indebtedness. The Company was in compliance with all of
its covenants as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, which included the following financial ratios and financial
covenants on a consolidated basis:

. a maximum operating leverage ratio and consolidated leverage ratio;

. a minimum interest coverage ratio;

. a minimum debt service coverage ratio;

. a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio (from September 30, 2004); and

. a minimum consolidated cash balance requirement of $3.0 million, as determined in accordance with GAAP.

On November 1, 2005 the Company amended its senior secured credit facility to exclude costs incurred in association with its
withdrawn initial public offering and related terminated new senior secured credit facility when calculating its compliance
with the senior credit facility's financial covenants.

Under the Company’s amended senior secured credit facility, as of February 21, 2006, the Company is subject to the
following financial covenants:

. a minimum interest coverage ratio;

. a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio;

. a maximum operating leverage ratio; and

. a minimum consolidated cash balance requirement of $10.0 million, as determined in accordance with GAAP.
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Capital Leases—As of December 31, 2005, the Company had capital lease obligations of $12.8 million. During 2005, the
Company acquired a new switch in Newark, New Jersey, under a five-year capital lease agreement that provides for monthly
payments of $0.1 million, including interest at an annual rate of 7.3%, over the term of the lease. During 2005, the Company
also entered into 75 additional capital lease agreements for equipment and automobiles with a variety of rates and terms. As
of December 31, 2005, $7.1 million remained outstanding on other capital leases, including $4.1 million relating to the leases
executed during 2005.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had capital lease obligations of $9.7 million. In March 2004, the Company acquired
a new switch in Anaheim, California, under a five-year capital lease agreement that provides for monthly payments of $0.1
million, including interest at an annual rate of 5.8%, over the term of the lease. During 2004, the Company entered into 48
additional capital lease agreements for equipment and automobiles with a variety of rates and terms. As of December 31,
2004, $6.0 million remained outstanding on other capital leases, including $4.3 million relating to the leases executed during
2004.

Scheduled lease payments under capital lease obligations as of December 31, 2005 were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

2006 $ 5,362

2007 4,545

2008 2,928

2009 1,146

2010 218
Thereafter —

14,199

Less amount representing interest 1,361

Present value of net scheduled lease payments 12,838

Less amounts due in one year 4,686

Long-term capital lease obligations $ 8,152

Interest Rate Swap Agreements—In order to reduce the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, the Company
periodically enters into interest rate swap agreements. These agreements effectively convert a portion of the Company’s
floating-rate debt to fixed-rate debt. Such agreements involve the exchange of fixed-rate and floating-rate payments over the
life of the agreement without the exchange of the underlying principal amounts. The Company’s policy is to enter into swap
agreements only with creditworthy counterparties. Swap agreements in effect as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as
follows:

Notional Weighted

Amount Average
(in thousands) Maturities Strategy LIBOR Rate Fixed Rate
December 31, 2005 $ 45,000 09/30/2006 Cash Flow Hedge 4.36% 2.96%
$ 25,000 04/01/2007 Cash Flow Hedge 4.36% 423%
December 31, 2004 $ 45,000 09/30/2006 Cash Flow Hedge 2.36% 2.96%
$ 25,000 04/01/2005 Cash Flow Hedge 2.36% 2.06%

Weighted-average variable rates are subject to change over time as LIBOR fluctuates. Notional amounts do not represent
amounts exchanged by the parties and, thus, are not a measure of the Company’s interest rate exposure.

Neither the Company nor the counterparty is required to collateralize its obligations under the swap agreements. The
Company is exposed to loss if the counterparty defaults. Management does not anticipate any non-performance by counter-
parties to the Company’s swap agreements as all counterparties have investment grade credit ratings. Risk management
strategies, such as interest rate swaps, are reviewed and approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The Company’s
policy is to limit the maximum amount of positions that can be taken in any given instruments.

At December 31, 2004, the swap agreements represented an asset with a fair value of $0.3 million. Accumulated other
comprehensive income and other liabilities were adjusted based on the fair value at December 31, 2004. The Company
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concluded that the swap agreements do not qualify as a 100% effective hedge, and the ineffective portion of the hedge was
recorded in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

As of June 30, 2005, the Company concluded that the projected cash flows of its existing variable rate debt were no longer
probable of occurring due to the Company’s planned refinancing of its senior secured credit facility. As a result, the interest
rate swaps outstanding as of June 30, 2005 no longer qualified for hedge accounting. As such, the Company reclassified $1.3
million, which was previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income, to interest expense during the three
months ended June 30, 2005. At December 31, 2005, the swaps represented an asset with a fair value of $0.7 million. The
adjustment to fair value from June 30, 2005 to December 31, 2005 was recorded in interest expense.
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6. INCOME TAXES
Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following:

2005 2004 2003

(amounts in thousands)

Current income tax expense:

U.S. Federal $ 650 $ 450 $ 188
U.S. State 497 627 685
Total $ 1,147 § 1,077 § 873
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense:
U.S. Federal $ 12,795  § (38,360) § (188)
U.S. State 182 125 —
Total $ 12977 $  (38235) $ (188)
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 14,124 §  (37,158) $ 685

Income tax expense for each of the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 differs from the expected income tax
expense calculated using the statutory U.S. Federal income tax rate as follows:

2005 2004 2003
($ amounts in thousands)

Federal provision (benefit) at statutory rate  $ 10,010 35% $ 14,167 35% $ 12,306 35%
State taxes, net of Federal provision

(benefit) 711 2% 1,195 3% 685 2%
Fair value of Series A convertible

redeemable preferred stock conversion

right 3,772 13% — — — —
Acquired net operating loss carryforwards — — 7,419 18% — —
Other 37 0% (395) ()% (657) )%
Change in valuation allowance (406) (1)% (59,544) (147)% (11,649) (33)%
Income tax expense $§ 14,124 49% $ (37,158) (92)% $ 685 2%

Deferred Income Taxes—Deferred income tax assets or liabilities reflect temporary differences between amounts of assets
and liabilities, including net operating loss carryforwards, for financial and tax reporting. Such amounts are adjusted as
appropriate to reflect changes in the tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary differences reverse. A valuation
allowance is established for any deferred income tax asset for which realization is not more likely than not.

The Company considers all available evidence, both positive and negative, to determine whether, based on the weight of that
evidence, a valuation allowance is needed for some portion or all of a net deferred income tax asset. Judgment is used in
considering the relative impact of negative and positive evidence. In arriving at these judgments, the weight given to the
potential effect of negative and positive evidence is commensurate with the extent to which it can be objectively verified.

In the third quarter of 2004, the Company performed its regular assessment of its deferred income tax asset valuation
allowance and determined that portions of the allowance should be reversed. The evaluation considered profitability of the
business, the ability to use these deferred income tax assets against future profitable amounts, and possible restrictions on use
due to limits as to the number of years over which the deferred income tax assets can be carried forward and to annual use
limits associated with Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Based on the information available, the Company
determined that it is more likely than not that it will be able to make use of approximately $48.8 million of the remaining net
deferred income tax assets. The reversal of substantially all of the valuation allowance resulted in a non-cash net deferred
income tax benefit for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004 of approximately $38.2 million and a reduction of
goodwill by $7.4 million in connection with acquired net operating losses. As of December 31, 2005, the Company
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maintained a valuation allowance of approximately $3.1 million, which primarily relates to state net operating loss
carryforwards that the Company does not believe it is more likely than not to realize.

The Company’s deferred income tax assets (liabilities) as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

December 31,

(amounts in thousands)

2005 2004
Current:
Net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards $ 13,828 $ 15929
Acquired NOL carryforwards 598 598
Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,804 2,851
Other accruals and deferrals 2,257 2,791
Deferred revenue 896 687
Valuation allowance (878) (981)
Net current deferred income tax asset $ 19505 $ 21,875
Non-current:
NOL carryforwards $ 42438 §$§ 53,611
Acquired NOL carryforwards 3,110 3,709
Federal AMT credit carryforward 1,287 593
Basis difference in property and equipment and intangible assets (31,785) (32,218)
Other 529 794
Valuation allowance (2,220) (2,522)
Net non-current deferred income tax asset $ 13359 § 23,967

The Company recorded a tax provision of $14.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, which represented an
effective tax rate of 49.4%. Excluding the $10.8 million charge in 2005 that resulted from the change in the fair value of the
Series A preferred stock conversion right, which is not deductible for tax purposes, the effective income tax rate would have
been 35.9%. The Company expects that this rate may increase in future periods if it is successful in expanding its profitable
operations in states that have higher income tax rates.

Through December 31, 2004, the Company had accumulated a total of $192.6 million in net operating loss carryforwards.
The Company used $36.7 million of net operating loss carryforwards to offset taxable income during the year ended
December 31, 2005. As a result, on December 31, 2005, the Company has approximately $155.9 million in net operating loss
carryforwards remaining. Of these remaining net operating loss carryforwards, approximately $10.3 million are subject to
annual use limitations under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. The Company expects that its net operating losses, to
the extent not subject to the limitation of Internal Revenue Code Section 382, will be fully used by approximately 2009.

7. REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK

On February 4, 2000, the Company completed a private equity transaction that resulted in proceeds of $134.0 million before
issuance costs of approximately $6.0 million. The private equity transaction consisted of the sale of 134,000 shares of the
Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock. The shares of Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock are
convertible at any time at the holder’s option into shares of the Class A common stock at a price equal to $7.50 per share of
Class A common stock. This $7.50 conversion price may be reduced because of antidilution adjustments and other specified
events. The Company has the right to require all holders of the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock to convert
their shares into Class A common stock upon the completion of a qualified initial public offering, as defined in the terms of
the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock. At any time after February 4, 2007, but not after the consummation of a
qualified public offering or a specified sale of the Company, any holder of the Series A convertible redeemable preferred
stock has the right to require the Company to repurchase for cash any or all of the outstanding shares of the Series A
convertible redeemable preferred stock at fair market value, as defined in the agreement pursuant to which the Series A
convertible redeemable preferred stock was issued. The Company determined that the conversion right combined with the
cash repurchase right of the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stockholders represented an embedded derivative.
Subsequent to the end of the second quarter of 2005, but prior to the issuance of the Company’s second quarter financial
statements, the Company withdrew its registration statement that it filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
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April 22,2005, and ceased its current effort to become a public company. Prior to the second quarter of 2005, the Company
did not ascribe any value to the conversion right, as it believed the Company would be able to convert the Series A
convertible redeemable preferred stock into common stock before the preferred shareholders would be able to require the
Company to repurchase the preferred stock at fair value. The Company currently believes that it is reasonably possible that it
will not be able to convert the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock to common stock prior to the mandatory
redemption date. As such, the Company adjusted its probability-weighted calculation of fair value of the conversion right to
reflect this change in assumption.

The Company valued this embedded derivative at December 31, 2005 based on a Black-Scholes probability weighted
calculation using a 78% volatility factor assumption, a 4.4% risk-free interest rate and a $2.22 December 31, 2005 fair value
of the Company’s common stock. The Company concluded that the fair market value of the embedded derivative was $10.8
million and was recorded as a liability as of December 31, 2005. The change in this liability from December 31, 2004 was
recorded as an expense in the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2005. The holders of the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock have a mandatory
right to redeem the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock on the tenth anniversary of the issue date for a
redemption price equal to $1,000 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends. Dividends, at an annual rate of 8%, are
cumulative, accrue on a daily basis, and are charged against additional paid-in capital. These dividends began to accrue on
February 4, 2001. See Note 9 for a description of the conversion of dividends into Class A common stock.

Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock amounts on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December
31, 2005 and 2004 have been reduced by direct costs associated with this transaction totaling approximately $6.0 million.
The Company currently believes that it is not probable that the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock will become
redeemable prior to the mandatory redemption date. This is due to the Company’s current belief that it is reasonably possible
that it could consummate a transaction prior to the voluntary redemption date that would extinguish the Series A
stockholders' rights to voluntarily redeem their preferred stock. Therefore, the Company accretes these costs to the mandatory
redemption date of the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock, in accordance with EITF D-98, Classification and
Measurement of Redeemable Securities. In addition, the Company records accumulated dividends on the Series A convertible
redeemable preferred stock amount on the consolidated balance sheets each period so that the carrying amount of the Series
A convertible redeemable preferred stock will equal the mandatory redemption amount at the mandatory redemption date.
Accordingly, the Company has recorded $61.7 million and $47.2 million of accumulated preferred stock dividends and $3.5
million and $2.9 million of accumulated accretion of direct costs in the preferred stock balance as of December 31, 2005, and
2004, respectively. Including accumulated dividends and unaccreted direct costs, the total liquidation value of the Series A
convertible redeemable preferred stock was $195.7 million and $181.2 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

In April 2005, the Company entered into a Series A stockholder agreement with the holders of the Series A convertible
redeemable preferred stock pursuant to which, among other provisions, the Series A convertible redeemable preferred
stockholders approved an amendment to the definition of “qualified public offering.” The amended provisions, only effective
upon the Company’s completion of an initial public offering, would have replaced the optional conversion right with
mandatory automatic conversion upon completion of a qualified public offering, as defined, and replaced the minimum
public offering price requirement with a formula that would have permitted any initial public offering price to qualify as a
qualified public offering, as long as the existing requirement for a minimum of $50.0 million in gross proceeds was satisfied.
On September 16, 2005, the Company requested the withdrawal of its Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 22, 2005. The amended provisions expired on December 31, 2005.

8. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock—The authorized capital stock of the Company consists of two classes of common stock designated as Class
A common stock and Class B common stock. The shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock are identical
in all respects, except for voting rights and certain conversion rights and obligations with respect to the shares of Class B
common stock. Shares of Class B common stock may be owned only by the current holders of Class B common stock and
their permitted transferees, as defined in the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation. Any share of Class B common stock
transferred to any other person will automatically convert into one share of Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis. 1n
addition, any holder of Class B common stock may elect at any time to convert the holder’s shares into Class A common
stock on a one-for-one basis. The Class A common stock has no conversion rights. The Class A common stock and the Class
B common stock are entitled to vote, together with the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock voting on an as-
converted basis, on substantially all matters which come before the stockholders and as otherwise required by law. Each
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share of Class A common stock has one vote and each share of Class B common stock has 20 votes on all matters on which
holders of common stock are entitled to vote. Holders of Class B common stock are entitled to elect three members of the
Board of Directors and to vote with the holders of Class A common stock to elect any additional directors.

Holders of common stock are entitled to share ratably in dividends when and as declared by the Company’s Board of
Directors out of funds legally available. On liquidation and dissolution of the Company, each holder of common stock is
entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of all liabilities and all obligations with respect to the Series A
convertible redeemable preferred stock.

The Company'’s Stock Option Plans—The 1998 Option Plan provides for the issuance of up to an aggregate of 5,300,000
shares of Class A common stock. The 1998 Option Plan was designed to create an incentive for the Company’s employees
and is administered by a committee of the Company’s Board of Directors. Although the 1998 Option Plan remains in effect
and options under the plan remain outstanding, the Company ceased making awards under the plan as of February 28, 2001.

In March 2001, the Company adopted the 2001 Option Plan in order to enhance the Company’s ability to attract and retain
the Company’s employees. The 2001 Option Plan is administered by a committee of the Company’s Board of Directors and
provides for the issuance, as of December 31, 2005, of up to an aggregate of 18,700,000 shares of Class A common stock,
plus (1) the number of shares of Class A common stock that were available for future awards under the 1998 Option Plan on
the date immediately preceding the date the Company first made awards under the 2001 Option Plan and (2) any shares of
Class A common stock that are represented by awards granted under the 1998 Option Plan or which have been assumed by
the Company, which are forfeited, expire or are canceled without the delivery of shares of Class A common stock or which
result in the forfeiture of shares of Class A common stock.

Under both Option Plans, options are granted primarily at fair market value upon hire, and vest over a four-year term from
the date of grant. Options granted are not exercisable after the expiration of ten years from the date of grant of the options.

During 2000, the Company granted certain options below fair market value, and recorded the intrinsic value as deferred stock
compensation. The balance of deferred stock compensation was amortized to expense in the consolidated statement of

operations and comprehensive income over the vesting period, which ended in 2004,

A summary of activity under the Option Plans for 2005, 2004 and 2003 follows:

Shares of Class A
Common Stock
Underlying Weighted-Average
Options Exercise Price

Shares under outstanding options, January 1, 2003 8,566,942 $ 4.61
Shares under options granted during 2003 2,716,104 $ 3.16
Shares issued upon exercise of options during 2003 (234,943) $ 045
Shares under options forfeited during 2003 (372,748) $ 423
Shares under outstanding options, December 31, 2003 10,675,355 $ 434
Shares under options granted during 2004 1,515,616 $ 5.62
Shares issued upon exercise of options during 2004 (113,109) $ 0.43
Shares under options cancelled during 2004 (300) $ 5.50
Shares under options forfeited during 2004 (190,726) $ 4.69
Shares under outstanding options, December 31, 2004 11,886,836 $ 4.54
Shares under options granted during 2005 884,649 $ 3.39
Shares issued upon exercise of options during 2005 (15,000) $ 0.40
Shares under options cancelled during 2005 (600) 3 6.25
Shares under options forfeited during 2005 (143,081) $ 485
Shares under outstanding options, December 31, 2005 12,612,804 $ 4.46

The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable options as of December 31, 2005:
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Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Raage of Number Contractual Exercise : Number Exercise
Exercise Price Qutstanding Life-Years Price Exercisable Price

$0.00 - $2.50 1,551,464 5.5 $ 1.66 1,746,354 $ 1.10
$2.51 - $4.99 5,631,978 6.8 $ 3.28 4,261,885 $ 3.33
$5.00 - $9.99 5,356,163 59 $ 6.41 3,749,401 $ 6.71
$10.00 - $12.00 73,199 4.6 $ 11.51 157,112 $ 11.48
12,612,804 9,914,752 3 4.35

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2005, 2004 and 2003 amounted to $2.54, $4.06 and $2.36, respectively.
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had outstanding exercisable options to purchase 6,973,975 shares of Class
A common stock and 5,941,942 shares of Class A common stock, respectively, with a weighted-average exercise price per
share of $4.70 and $4.44, respectively.

The following table summarizes options to purchase Class A common stock awarded during each fiscal quarter during the
year ended December 31, 2005:

Shares of
Class A Weighted- Weighted-
Common Stock Average Average
Underlying Fair Market Exercise
Options Awarded During The Three Moaths Ended Options Value Price
March 31, 2005 288,639 $ 625 $ 625
June 30, 2005 69,760 $ 201 $ 201
September 30, 2005 50,900 $ 2.00 $ 2.00
December 31, 2005 475,350 $ 2.00 $ 200

On the date of grant for each of these options, the exercise price equaled the fair market value of the Class A common stock.
As aresult, the options granted during this period had no intrinsic value.

Determining the fair market value of common stock for a private company, such as the Company, requires making complex
and subjective judgments. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, the Company used concurrent internal
valuation analyses to determine the fair market value of the Class A common stock. These analyses used the Company’s
projected future cash flows, discounted at a rate that reflects both the Company’s weighted average cost of capital and the
illiquid nature of the Company’s stock, and an implied market value analysis based on the stock price performance of the
Company’s most comparable public peers within the competitive local exchange carrier industry to develop the Company’s
estimate of the fair value of the Class A common stock. Based on these analyses, the Company’s Board of Directors
determined that the fair market value of the Class A common stock was equal to $6.25 per share, $2.01 per share, $2.00 per
share and $2.00 per share for the three month periods ended March 31, 2005, June 30, 2005, September 30, 2005 and
December 31, 2005, respectively.

Rescission—Following an initial public offering of common stock, the Company plans to make a rescission offer to certain
employees pursuant to the securities laws of the State of California that may result in the Company repurchasing stock
options previously granted to affected employees. The maximum amount of payments that the Company could make is
approximately $1.7 million, which has not been recorded because the liability is not probable or estimable as of December
31, 2005 and December 31, 2004.

The Warrant Plan—The Warrant Plan provides for the issuance of up to 500,000 shares of Class A common stock based
upon the achievement and maintenance of certain revenue goals by the Company’s independent sales agents. The Warrant
Plan is designed to create an incentive for the sales agents and is administered by the Company’s senior management.

Warrants issuable under the Warrant Plan vest with respect to 20% of the shares of Class A common stock subject to such
warrants in the first year. Vesting with respect to the remaining 80% of the shares subject to such warrants is dependent upon

the generation and maintenance of certain revenue levels by the warrant holder. Warrants are not exercisable until after the
Company completes an initial public offering of the Class A common stock.

The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable warrants as of December 31, 2005:
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Shares of Class A Weighted- Weighted-
Common Stock Average Average
Underlying Exercise Number Exercise
Warrants Price Exercisable Price

Shares under outstanding warrants, December 31, 2003
300,666 $ 5.40 — —

Shares under outstanding warrants, December 31, 2004
383,166 $ 542 — —

Shares under outstanding warrants, December 31, 2005 395,666 $ 542 — —

The weighted average fair value of warrants granted in 2005, 2004 and 2003 amounted to $4.37, $4.50 and $3.86,
respectively.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded less than $0.1 million, $0.2 million,
and $0.2 million, respectively, in compensation expense related to the issuances of warrants within the Warrant Plan.

The following table summarizes warrants to purchase Class A common stock awarded during each fiscal quarter during the
12 months ended December 31, 2005:

Shares of
Class A Weighted- Weighted-
Common Stock Average Average
Underlying Fair Market Exercise
Warrants Awarded During The Three Months Ended Warrants Value Price
March 31, 2005 10,000 $ 625 § 6.25
June 30, 2005 — $ — 3 _
September 30, 2005 — $ — 3 —
December 31, 2005 2,500 $ 200 $ 2.00

On the date of grant for each of these warrants, the exercise price equaled the fair market value of the Class A common stock.
As a result, the warrants granted during this period had no intrinsic value.

9. (LOSS) INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

The Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock is deemed to be a participating security that is entitled to participate in
any dividend that is declared or paid on the common stock, as if the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock had
been converted into common stock immediately prior to the record date for such dividend. Basic income per share for
common stock is calculated using the “two-class” method by dividing income allocated to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Based on the contractual terms of the
participating security, the security does not participate in net losses.

Diluted income per share is calculated by dividing income allocated to common stockholders by the sum of the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding plus the dilutive effect of outstanding stock options and warrants using the
“treasury stock” method and convertible preferred stock using the “if-converted” method, which treats contingently-issuable
shares of Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock as common stock (Note 7).
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The computation of basic and diluted (loss) income per common share for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003 was as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004 2003
Basic (loss) income per common share (in thousands, except share and per share data)
Net income $ 14474 $ 77635 $ 34,475
Less: accretion on preferred stock 603 603 603
Less: cumulative preferred stock dividends 14,494 13,421 12,423
Undistributed (loss) income (623) 63,611 21,449
Income allocated to participating preferred stockholders - 24,116 8,151
(Loss) income allocated to common stockholders $ (623) $§ 39495 § 13,298
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic 29,312,020 29,259,615 29,107,330
(Loss) income per common share - basic $ (002 $ 135 ¢ 0.46
Diluted (loss) income per common share
(Loss) income allocated to common stockholders $ (623) § 39495 § 13,298
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic 29,312,020 29,259,615 29,107,330
Dilutive effect of warrants - treasury stock method - 69,161 14,912
Dilutive effect of stock options - treasury stock method - 2,328,984 1,041,122
Weighted average common shares outstanding - diluted 29,312,020 31,657,760 30,163,364
(Loss) income per common share - diluted $ 002 $ 125 ¢ 0.44

For 2005, a total of 36,832,660 shares of Class A common stock, which were issuable as of December 31, 2005 upon
conversion of the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock, including dividends accumulated on the Series A
convertible redeemable preferred stock through December 31, 2004, and a total of 909,726 shares of common stock issuable
under the assumed exercises of stock options and warrants computed based on the treasury stock method, were not included
in the as reported calculation of diluted (loss) income per common share. Such shares were not included in the calculation of
diluted (loss) income per common share as the effect of including these shares would have been anti-dilutive.

For 2004, a total of 23,268,174 shares of Class A common stock, which were issuable as of December 31, 2004 upon
conversion of the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock, including dividends accumulated on the Series A
convertible redeemable preferred stock through December 31, 2003, were not included in the as reported calculation of
diluted (loss) income per common share. Such shares were not included in the calculation of diluted (loss) income per
common share as the effect of including these shares would have been anti-dilutive.

For 2003, a total of 22,357,782 shares of Class A common stock, which were issuable as of December 31, 2003 upon
conversion of the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock, including dividends accumulated on the Series A
convertible redeemable preferred stock through December 31, 2002, were not included in the as reported calculation of
diluted (loss) income per common share. Such shares were not included in the calculation of diluted (loss) income per
common share as the effect of including these shares would have been anti-dilutive.

In connection with any conversion of shares of Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock, the Company has the right to
issue additional shares of Class A common stock, valued at the then-current market value of the Class A common stock (as
determined in accordance with the terms of the Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock), as payment of accumulated
dividends on the shares of Series A convertible redeemable preferred stock being converted. Because the Company’s senior
credit facility (Note 5) restricts the payment of cash dividends by the Company, in cases where such share amounts are not
anti-dilutive, the foregoing share amounts include the additional shares of Class A common stock that the Company would
issue in payment of accumulated dividends in connection with the conversion of the Series A convertible redeemable
preferred stock.
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has a 401(k) retirement savings plan, pursuant to section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, under which
employees can contribute up to 25% of their annual salary. Employees are eligible for participation upon employment. The
Company’s discretionary matching contributions for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 totaled
$1.8 million, $1.5 million and $0.9 million, respectively.

11. COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases—The Company has entered into various non-cancelable operating lease agreements, with expiration dates
through 2021, for office space and equipment. Some of these leases have free or escalating rent payment provisions. The
Company recognizes rent expense under these leases on a straight-line basis. The Company began occupying a new corporate
headquarters in January 2001 under a 20-year lease agreement, and expects that annual rent payments under the lease will
increase to approximately $2.0 million for the last ten years of the lease term. The Company’s annual rental payments under
the lease were $1.8 million for 2005, 2004, and 2003.

Total rent expense for 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $11.3 million, $9.9 million and $6.9 million, respectively. Future minimum
lease obligations related to the Company’s operating leases as of December 31, 2005 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,
2006 $ 10,092
2007 8,001
2008 6,421
2009 4,291
2010 3,623
Thereafter through 2021 24,660

s 57,088

Purchase Commitments—As of December 31, 2005, the Company had entered into agreements with vendors to purchase
approximately $7.5 miilion of equipment and services, of which we expect $6.9 million to be delivered and payable in 2006,
$0.5 million to be delivered and payable in 2007, and $0.1 million to be delivered and payable in 2008.

Data and Voice Services—The Company has various agreements with certain carriers for data and voice services. As of
December 31, 2005, our minimum commitments under these agreements were $25.2 million, which expire through
September 2007. Related expenses for the periods ended in 2005, 2004 and 2003 were included in cost of sales in our
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Regulation—The Company’s services are subject to varying degrees of federal, state and local regulation. These regulations
are currently subject to changes by federal and state administrative agencies, judicial proceedings and proposals that could
change, in varying degrees, the manner in which the Company operates. The Company cannot predict the outcome of these
proceedings or their effect on the Company’s industry generally or upon the Company specifically.

Interconnection Agreements—The Company is dependent on the cooperation of the incumbent local exchange carriers in its
service area to provide service for the origination and termination of its local and long distance traffic. Historically, charges
for these services have made up a significant percentage of the overall cost of providing these services. The Company incurs
costs through the use of services agreed to in its contracts with these incumbent local exchange carriers. These costs are
recognized in the period in which the service is delivered and are included as a component of the Company’s cost of sales.

Litigation—The Company is party to various legal proceedings, most of which relate to routine matters incidental to the
Company’s business. The result of any current or future litigation is inherently unpredictable; however, management believes
there is no litigation asserted or pending against the Company that could have, individually or in the aggregate, a material
adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows, except for the matters described below.

MCI-WorldCom Network Services, Inc. sued the Company in an attempt to recover approximately $5.6 million in access
charges that the carrier paid to the Company between October 2003 and June 2004. The challenged charges were imposed by
the Company for the use of its network to route calls from end user customers of various wireless companies to the
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interexchange carrier for completion to its subscribers’ toll-free numbers. The carrier claims that the access service performed
by the Company in connection with these calls was unnecessary, unwanted and without justification in the Company’s
applicable access tariffs. The Company has denied these claims, and contends that the services it performed were legitimate,
beneficial and appropriate under the Company’s tariffs, FCC rulings and other applicable authority, and that the access
charges assessed were therefore properly collected and retained. The Company has counterclaimed to recover approximately
$2.0 million in other access charges that the interexchange carrier has withheld in connection with its dispute. In November
2005, a ruling in favor of MCI reduced the amount owed to MCI to $3.5 million. This ruling is currently under appeal, with a
final resolution anticipated during 2006.

In accordance with its revenue recognition policy, the Company has delayed recognition of a portion of these disputed
revenues until it is concluded that realization of that revenue is reasonably assured.

The Company initiated suit against the Southern New England Telephone Company (SNET) in which the Company sought to
collect over $2.0 million in unpaid bills for compensation for calls originated by SNET’s subscribers and terminated by the
Company to various Internet service providers. Southern New England Telephone Company had counterclaimed to collect
between $2.0 million and $3.0 million in switched access charges it claimed the Company owed for the same calls, on the
grounds that the Internet service providers were outside the local calling area of the subscribers placing the calls. In June
2005, the Company signed a settlement agreement with SNET under which SNET has agreed to pay the Company
approximately $1.3 million and to release the Company from any and all claims that SNET had or could have asserted
against the Company in this proceeding. The Company has agreed to a similar release of SNET. The Company recognized
approximately $0.9 million reduction to cost of sales related to this settlement in the consolidated statement of operations and
comprehensive income , which is reported in a separate line item for the year ended December 31, 2005. In July 2005, the
Company received the $1.3 million payment from SNET related to this settlement.

12. RELATED PARTIES

During 2005, 2004 and 2003, in connection with the Company’s senior secured credit facility, the Company made interest
payments of $1.7 million, $1.4 million and $1.0 million, respectively, to an affiliate of an investor of the Company.

The Company employs two immediate family members of its Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer. The
Company made total salary and bonus payments to them of $282,411 for 2005, $277,668 for 2004 and $242,392 for 2003.
The Company also issued these individuals options to purchase a total of 56,600 shares of Class A common stock at exercise
prices ranging from $2.00 to $6.25 per share for the period from January 1, 2003 to December 31, 2005. In addition, from
time to time, another immediate family member of the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer performs consulting
services for the Company. For these services, the Company has paid this individual $13,669 for 2005, $14,020 for 2004 and
$21,932 for 2003.

13. ACQUISITIONS

Covista— On May 27, 2004, the Company announced that it had agreed with Covista Communications, Inc. (“Covista”), a
facilities-based provider of telecommunications services, to purchase a base of commercial customers, switches and related
facilities of Covista. Subject to final adjustment, the Company was obligated to pay a cash amount of approximately $17.5
million, inclusive of transaction costs, which is based on a multiple of monthly operating revenue of approximately $2.7
million associated with the acquired Covista customers, assets and facilities. Due to the nature of this acquisition, the primary
component of which was a group of Covista customers that met certain criteria at a specific moment in time, the Company
concluded that it was not practicable to provide historical pro forma financial statements with respect to the acquisition.
Payment of the purchase price was due in three installments within 270 days after closing, with the majority payable upon
closing. As part of the acquisition, the Company assumed operating leases for existing Covista switch facilities in New York
and Philadelphia, as well as office locations in Bensalem, PA and Paramus, NJ. Covista also executed a wholesale service
agreement to purchase $12.0 million of services from the Company over 24 months. The terms of this wholesale agreement
are consistent with current market rates and terms.

The transaction closed on August 18, 2004, and the results of operations of the Covista business are included in the
Company’s consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income from August 18, 2004. The fair values of the
assets acquired, including intangible assets, were determined by management with assistance from an advisor. Of the $17.5
million in purchase price, approximately $4.3 million represented goodwill, which is deductible for tax purposes,
approximately $10.4 million was allocated to customer-related intangible assets, which have useful lives ranging from three
to five years, approximately $2.4 million represented accounts receivable, and approximately $0.4 million was allocated to

F-29



Confidential PAETEC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

other tangible assets. The final payment to Covista was contingent upon the average monthly revenue run rate of the
customers during the seventh, eighth and ninth months following the closing and the amount of cash collected from the
accounts receivable acquired from Covista. -

As of December 31, 2005, the Company paid a total of approximately $15.0 million in cash for the purchase of assets from
Covista. The purchase price was reduced by approximately $2.5 million during 2005 primarily as a result of a reduction in
the customer revenue run rates that determined the final purchase price and a reduction in the cash collected from the
accounts receivable. The reduction in purchase price, as well as other adjustments to the purchase price allocation, resulted in
the following changes in the allocation of purchase price: approximately $3.1 million reduction to goodwill, approximately
$0.8 million increase to customer-related intangible assets, and approximately $0.2 million reduction to accounts receivable.
The purchase price and purchase price allocation was finalized during the third quarter of 2005.

American Long Lines—On February 28, 2005, the Company announced its purchase of American Long Lines, Inc., a
privately owned telecommunications company serving primarily small and medium-sized business customers in the mid-
Atlantic region for approximately $4.3 million in cash of which approximately $2.0 million was paid at closing and
approximately $2.3 million is expected to be paid over the next two years. Of the $2.3 million of purchase price that is
expected to be paid over the next two years, approximately $1.0 million is contingent upon EBITDA, which represents net
income before interest, provision for (benefit from) income taxes, depreciation, and amortization, of the acquired company
over the next two years. This acquisition will further increase the Company’s penetration in existing Metro New York, New
Jersey and Philadelphia markets.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition. The preliminary allocation of the purchase price presented below is subject to refinement as the Company
finalizes certain aspects of the acquisition valuation. The Company anticipates finalizing the purchase price allocation during
the first quarter of 2007, once the final contingent payment is determined.

At February 28, 2005

(amounts in thousands)

Accounts receivable $ 2,905
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 97
Property and equipment 121
Goodwill 1,471
Other intangible asset (customer list) 2,603
Other assets 29
Total assets acquired $ 7,226
Accounts payable $ 1,616
Accrued expenses 412
Accrued usage taxes 420
Accrued commissions 341
Deferred revenue 461
Total liabilities acquired $ 3,250
Total purchase price, net of cash acquired $ 3,976

Goodwill includes but is not limited to the synergistic value and potential competitive benefits that could be realized by the
Company from the acquisition as well as American Long Line’s workforce. The goodwill amount is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Other intangible asset consists of a customer-related intangible asset with a useful life of five years.
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Commencing on February 28, 2005, the results of operations for the American Long Lines business have been included as
part of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company. The following unaudited pro forma financial
information represents the combined results of operations for the Company and American Long Lines for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, as if American Long Lines had been acquired at the beginning of the respective period:

For the year ended
December 31,
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

2005 2004
Total revenue $ 512,865 $ 437,931
Net income $ 14,244 $ 77,877
(Loss) income per common
share:
Basic $ (0.03) $ 135
Diluted $ (0.03) $ 1.25

The pro forma results include the amortization of the intangible assets presented above. The pro forma results are not
necessarily indicative of what actually would have occurred if the acquisition had been completed as of the beginning of each
fiscal period presented, nor are they necessarily indicative of future consolidated results.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Effective January 30, 2006, Bradford Bono resigned as Executive Vice President and director of the Company. The Company
anticipates that it will record a charge in 2006 related to his employment agreement.

On February 21, 2006, the Company amended and restated its existing senior secured credit facility. Under this amendment

and restatement, the term loan was increased to $100.0 million and the reducing revolving credit facility was reduced to
$25.0 million (Note 5).
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The following consolidated financial statement schedule is filed herewith:
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. All other schedules have been omitted as they are not required

under the related instructions, are inapplicable, or because the information required is included in the consolidated financial
statements or related notes thereto.

PAETEC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions/
(Reductions)
Balance at Charged to Balance
Beginning Costs and at End
of Year Expenses Deductions of Year
Year Ended December 31, 2003
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 7,339 $ 3014 $ 3822 $ 6,531
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets $74,696 $(11,649) $ — $ 63,047
Year Ended December 31, 2004
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 6,531 $ 1,487 $ 1,557 $ 6461
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets $63,047 $(59,544) $ — $ 3,503
Year Ended December 31, 2005
‘Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 6,461 $ 2,584 $ 2710 $ 6335
Valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets $ 3,503 $ 424 $ 829 $ 3,098
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (this "Agreement") is made and
entered into as of August 11, 2006, by and among US LEC Corp., a Delaware corporation ("US
LEC"), PAETEC Corp., a Delaware corporation ("PAETEC"), WC ACQUISITION HOLDINGS
CORP., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of PAETEC (the
"Company"), WC ACQUISITION SUB U CORP., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned
direct subsidiary of the Company ("Merger Sub U"), and WC ACQUISITION SUB P CORP., a
Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of the Company ("Merger Sub P").

WHEREAS, the respective Boards of Directors of US LEC and PAETEC have
deemed it advisable and fair to and in the best interests of their respective corporations and their
respective stockholders that US LEC, PAETEC and the other parties engage in a business
combination in order to advance their respective long-term strategic business interests; and

WHEREAS the respective Boards of Directors of US LEC, PAETEC, the
Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P have approved the consummation of the business
combination upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement and in
accordance with the provisions of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the
"DGCL"), pursuant to which Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P will merge, respectively, with and
into US LEC and PAETEC, respectively, whereby, subject to the terms of Article II, each share
of Class A Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, of US LEC (the "US LEC Common Stock™)
will be converted into the right to receive the US LEC Merger Consideration (as defined in
Section 2.1(a)) and each share of Class A Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, of PAETEC
(the "PAETEC Common Stock") will be converted into the right to receive the PAETEC Merger
Consideration (as defined in Section 2.1(d)) (such transactions are referred to herein individually
as the "US LEC Merger" and the "PAETEC Merger," respectively, and collectively as the
"Mergers"), as a result of which the holders of US LEC Common Stock and PAETEC Common
Stock will together own all of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share,
of the Company (the "Company Common Stock") (and the Company will, in turn, own all of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, of the surviving corporation in
the US LEC Merger (the "Surviving US LEC Common Stock") and all of the outstanding shares
of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, of the surviving corporation in the PAETEC Merger
(the "Surviving PAETEC Common Stock"));

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of PAETEC has determined that this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby are in the best interests of PAETEC and its
stockholders and has determined to recommend to its stockholders adoption of this Agreement
and approval of the transactions contemplated hereby (the "PAETEC Stockholder Approval");
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Preferred Stock Repurchase Agreement, dated as of the
date hereof, among the holders of the US LEC Preferred Stock (as defined in Section 3.2(b)(1)),
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US LEC, (for the limited purposes set forth therein) PAETEC, and (for the limited purposes set
forth therein) the Former Class B Stockholders (as defined therein), attached hereto as Exhibit R-
1 (the "Repurchase Agreement"), immediately prior to or as of the Effective Time (as defined in
Section 1.3), US LEC shall repurchase all of the issued and outstanding US LEC Preferred Stock;
and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of US LEC has determined that this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby are in the best interests of US LEC and its
stockholders and has determined to recommend to its stockholders (together with the
recommendation of the Board of Directors of PAETEC, the "Recommendations") adoption of
this Agreement and approval of the transactions contemplated hereby, the Company Charter
Amendment (as defined in Section 1.7(a)) and the New Equity Plan (as defined in Section
5.11(e)) (the "US LEC Stockholder Approval™); and

WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Agreement and
as a condition and inducement to the parties' willingness to enter into this Agreement, (a) certain
stockholders of US LEC have entered into the Repurchase Agreement, pursuant to which, among
other things, each such stockholder has agreed with US LEC and PAETEC, subject to the terms
and conditions set forth in the Repurchase Agreement, to vote in favor of the US LEC
Stockholder Approval matters (the "US LEC Voting Agreements") and (b) certain stockholders
of PAETEC have entered into the voting agreements attached hereto as Exhibit R-2 (the
"PAETEC Voting Agreements") pursuant to which-each such stockholder has agreed with
PAETEC and US LEC, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, to vote in favor of
the PAETEC Stockholder Approval matters; and

WHEREAS, for United States federal income tax purposes, it is intended that the
US LEC Merger together with the PAETEC Merger shall qualify as an integrated series of
transfers to which Section 351 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"),
shall apply;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the representations,
warranties, covenants and agreements set forth herein, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as
follows:

ARTICLE 1

THE MERGERS
SECTION 1.1 The Mergers.

(a) Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this
Agreement, at the US LEC Effective Time (as defined in Section 1.3), Merger Sub U shall be
merged with and into US LEC in accordance with Section 251 of the DGCL. In the US LEC
Merger, US LEC shall be the surviving corporation and shall continue its corporate existence
under the laws of the State of Delaware and shall succeed to and assume all of the rights and
obligations of US LEC and Merger Sub U in accordance with the DGCL (the "US LEC
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Surviving Corporation"), and the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub U shall cease. As a
result of the US LEC Merger, US LEC shall become a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of the
Company. '

(b) Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this
Agreement, at the PAETEC Effective Time (as defined in Section 1.3), Merger Sub P shall be
merged with and into PAETEC in accordance with Section 251 of the DGCL. In the PAETEC
Merger, PAETEC shall be the surviving corporation and shall continue its corporate existence
under the laws of the State of Delaware and shall succeed to and assume all of the rights and
obligations of PAETEC and Merger Sub P in accordance with the DGCL (the "PAETEC
Surviving Corporation"), and the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub P shall cease. As a
result of the PAETEC Merger, PAETEC shall become a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of the
Company.

SECTION 1.2 Closing. The closing of the Mergers (the "Closing") shall take
place at 10:00 a.m., New York time, on a date to be specified by the parties, which shall be no
later than the second business day after satisfaction or waiver of all of the conditions set forth in
Article VI (other than delivery of items to be delivered at the Closing and other than those
conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the Closing, it being understood that the
occurrence of the Closing shall remain subject to the delivery of such items and the satisfaction
or waiver of such conditions at the Closing) at the offices of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher &
Flom LLP, Four Times Square, New York 10036-6522, unless another time, date or place is
agreed to in writing by the parties hereto. The date on which the Closing occurs is referred to
herein as the "Closing Date.”

SECTION 1.3 Effective Time of the US LEC Merger and the PAETEC
Merger. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, as soon as practicable on the
Closing Date, US LEC shall cause the US LEC Merger to be consummated by filing a certificate
of merger in such form as required by, and executed in accordance with, the relevant provisions
of the DGCL (the "US LEC Certificate of Merger") with the Secretary of State of the State of
Delaware and shall make all other filings or recordings required under the DGCL and PAETEC
shall cause the PAETEC Merger to be consummated by filing a certificate of merger in such
form as required by, and executed in accordance with, the relevant provisions of the DGCL (the
"PAETEC Certificate of Merger") with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware and shall
make all other filings or recordings required under the DGCL. The US LEC Merger shall
become effective at such time as the US LEC Certificate of Merger is duly filed with the
Secretary of State of the State of Delaware or at such subsequent date or time as US LEC and
PAETEC shall agree and specify in the US LEC Certificate of Merger, which date shall be not
more than 90 days after the date the US LEC Certificate of Merger is received for filing (the time
the US LEC Merger becomes effective being hereinafter referred to as the "US LEC Effective
Time") and the PAETEC Merger shall become effective at such time as the PAETEC Certificate
of Merger is duly filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware or at such subsequent
date or time as US LEC and PAETEC shall agree and specify in the PAETEC Certificate of
Merger, which date shall be not more than 90 days after the date the PAETEC Certificate of
Merger is received for filing (the time the PAETEC Merger becomes effective being hereinafter
referred to as the "PAETEC Effective Time"). The parties shall cause the PAETEC Effective
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Time and the US LEC Effective Time to occur simultaneously, and such time shall hereinafter be
referred to as the "Effective Time."

SECTION 1.4 Effects of the Mergers. At the US LEC Effective Time, the US
LEC Merger shall have the effects set forth in this Agreement and in the applicable provisions
of the DGCL. At the PAETEC Effective Time, the PAETEC Merger shall have the effects set
forth in-this Agreement and in the applicable provisions of the DGCL. PAETEC and its
subsidiaries hereby disclaim any intent to subject themselves to any ongoing liabilities or
obligations under any agreement to which US LEC or any of its subsidiaries is a party, except as
may occur by operation of law as a result of the Mergers.

SECTION 1.5 Organizational Documents of US LEC, PAETEC and the

Company.

(a) At the US LEC Eftective Time, (i) the certificate of incorporation
of US LEC, as in effect immediately prior to the US LEC Effective Time, shall be the certificate
of incorporation of the US LEC Surviving Corporation until.thereafter changed or amended as
provided therein or by Applicable Laws (as defined in Section 3.1(g)(ii)) and (ii) the by-laws of
US LEC, as in effect immediately prior to the US LEC Effective Time, shall be the by-laws of
the US LEC Surviving Corporation until thereafter changed or amended as provided therein, in
the certificate of incorporation of the US LEC Surviving Corporation or by Applicable Laws.

(b) At the PAETEC Effective Time, (i) the certificate of incorporation
of PAETEC, as in effect immediately prior to the PAETEC Effective Time, shall be the
certificate of incorporation of the PAETEC Surviving Corporation until thereafter changed or
amended as provided therein or by Applicable Laws and (i1) the by-laws of PAETEC, as in effect
immediately prior to the PAETEC Effective Time, shall be the by-laws of the PAETEC
Surviving Corporation, until thereafter changed or amended as provided therein, in the certificate
of incorporation of the PAETEC Surviving Corporation or by Applicable Laws.

SECTION 1.6 Directors and Officers of the US LEC Surviving Corporation
and the PAETEC Surviving Corporation.

(a) The directors of US LEC at the US LEC Effective Time shall,
from and after the US LEC Effective Time, be the directors of the US LEC Surviving
Corporation until their successors have been duly elected or appointed and qualified.

(b) The officers of US LEC at the US LEC Effective Time shall, from
and after the US LEC Effective Time, continue to be the officers of the US LEC Surviving
Corporation until their successors have been duly elected or appointed and qualified.

(c) The directors of PAETEC at the PAETEC Effective Time shall,
from and after the PAETEC Effective Time, be the directors of the PAETEC Surviving
Corporation until their successors have been duly elected or appointed and qualified.

(d) The officers of PAETEC at the PAETEC Effective Time shall,
from and after the PAETEC Effective Time, continue to be the officers of the PAETEC
Surviving Corporation until their successors have been duly elected or appointed and qualified.

4
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SECTION 1.7 Governance of the Company.

(a) PAETEC and the Company shall take all appropriate action so that,
immediately prior to the Effective Time, subject to US LEC obtaining such vote of its
stockholders as shall be necessary to approve the Company Charter (as defined in this Section
1.7(a)) (such matter, the "Company Charter Amendment"), (i) the certificate of incorporation of
the Company shall be in the form attached as Exhibit 1.7(a)-1 hereto (the "Company Charter")
and (ii) the by-laws of the Company shall be in the form attached as Exhibit 1.7(a)-2 hereto (the
"Company By-Laws").

(b) The Company shall cause Mr. Arunas A. Chesonis to be appointed
as the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Mr. Richard T. Aab
to be appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Board of the Company, and the individuals listed on
Exhibit 1.7(b) hereto to be appointed to the positions with the Company set forth therein, in each
case, effective as of the Effective Time. Among the responsibilities of the Vice Chairman of the
Board of the Company shall be participation in all corporate governance-related matters. Except
as provided in the first sentence of this Section 1.7(b), Officer (as such term is defined for
purposes of Rule 16a-1(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act")) and other key management positions at the Company and, subject to Section
1.6, its Subsidiaries (as defined in Section 8.3(s)), shall be filled effective as of the Effective
Time at the discretion of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company as of the Effective Time,
subject to approval (i) by the Vice Chairman of the Board of the Company (which approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned) and (ii) to the extent required by
Applicable Laws or the Company's by-laws, by the Company's Board of Directors after the
Effective Time. After the Effective Time, changes in Officer and other key management
positions at the Company and its Subsidiaries shall be made in accordance with Applicable Laws
and the Company's by-laws as in effect from time to time.

() Prior to the Effective Time, PAETEC and the Company shall cause
the Company to change its name to PAETEC Communications Corp.

SECTION 1.8 Directors of the Company at the Effective Time.

(a) As of the Effective Time, the Board of Directors of the Company
shall cause the number of directors that shall constitute the full Board of Directors of the
Company at the Effective Time to be nine and the number of directors that shall constitute each
committee of the Board of Directors of the Company in full to be at least three. Eight of the
members of the Board of Directors of the Company, and the class of the Board of Directors of
the Company to which each such member shall be appointed or elected, at the Effective Time
shall be as provided in Exhibit 1.8 attached hereto. Prior to the Effective Time, the Board of
Directors of PAETEC shall designate the ninth member of the Board of Directors of the
Company to be appointed or elected as of the Effective Time pursuant to this Section 1.8(a) and,
upon delivery of such designation to the Board of Directors of US LEC, Exhibit 1.8 shall be
deemed amended to include the name of such designee. Such ninth member of the Board of
Directors of the Company to be so designated shall qualify as an "independent director" with
respect to the Company within the meaning of Rule 4200(a)(15) of the Marketplace Rules of The
NASDAQ Stock Market LLC (an "Independent Director").
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(b) As of the Effective Time, and continuing until the third
anniversary of the Effective Time: (i) the number of Continuing PAETEC Directors and
Continuing US LEC Directors (each as defined in this Section 1.8(b)) serving on the Board of
Directors of the Company shall be maintained at six and three, respectively, and the ratio of
Continuing PAETEC Directors to Continuing US LEC Directors serving on each committee of
the Board of Directors of the Company, other than the Continuing PAETEC Directors
Committee (as defined in this Section 1.8(b)) and the Continuing US LEC Directors Committee
(as defined in this Section 1.8(b)), shall be maintained at two to one, respectively; (ii) all
vacancies on the Board of Directors of the Company or on a committee thereof created by the
cessation of service of a Continuing PAETEC Director for any reason shall be filled by a
nominee designated to the Board of Directors of the Company by a committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company constituted solely of the Continuing PAETEC Directors (the
"Continuing PAETEC Directors Committee"); and (iii) all vacancies on the Board of Directors
of the Company or on a committee thereof created by the cessation of service of a Continuing
US LEC Director for any reason shall be filled by a nominee designated to the Board of
Directors of the Company by a committee of the Board of Directors of the Company constituted
solely of the Continuing US LEC Directors (the "Continuing US LEC Directors Committee").
The terms "Continuing PAETEC Directors" and "Continuing US LEC Directors" shall for
purposes of this Agreement mean, respectively, the directors of PAETEC or US LEC, as the case
may be, who were appointed or designated to serve as directors of the Company as of the
Effective Time pursuant to Section 1.8(a), and any other directors of the Company who take
office after the Effective Time and prior to the third anniversary of the Effective Time who are
nominated or designated to the Board of Directors of the Company by the Continuing PAETEC
Directors Committee or the Continuing US LEC Directors Committee, as the case may be.

(c) The provisions of Sections 1.8(a) and 1.8(b) shall be incorporated
into the Company By-Laws. Following the Effective Time, the provisions of Sections 1.8(a) and
1.8(b) as so incorporated shall be subject to amendment in accordance with the terms of the
Company Charter and the Company By-Laws, as each may thereafter be changed and amended
as provided therein or by Applicable Laws, and upon the effectiveness of the Company By-Laws,
such provisions hereof shall no longer be operative and binding with respect to the Company
other than as provisions of the Company By-Laws.

ARTICLE II

EFFECTS OF THE MERGERS; EXCHANGE OF CERTIFICATES

SECTION 2.1 Effect on Capital Stock. Subject to the terms and conditions of
this Agreement, at the US LEC Effective Time or the PAETEC Effective Time, as applicable, by
virtue of the US LEC Merger or the PAETEC Merger, as applicable, and without any action on
the part of any party or the holders of any shares of capital stock of any party:

(a) Conversion of US LEC Common Stock. Subject to Sections 2.1(g)
and 2.1(h), each share of US LEC Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to
the US LEC Effective Time, other than any shares of US LEC Common Stock to be canceled
pursuant to Section 2.1(b), shall be automatically converted into and become the right to receive
one (the "US LEC Exchange Ratio") fully paid and nonassessable share of Company Common
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Stock (the "US LEC Merger Consideration"). As a result of the US LEC Merger, at the US LEC
Effective Time, each holder of a US LEC Certificate (as defined in Section 2.2(b)) shall cease to
have any rights with respect thereto, except that such US LEC Certificate shall represent only the
right to receive the US LEC Merger Consideration deliverable in respect of the shares of US
LEC Common Stock represented by such US LEC Certificate immediately prior to the US LEC
Effective Time, any cash in lieu of fractional shares payable pursuant to Section 2.1(g) and any
dividends or other distributions payable pursuant to Section 2.2(c), all to be issued or paid,
without interest, in consideration therefor upon the surrender of such US LEC Certificate in
accordance with Section 2.2(b) (or, in the case of a lost, stolen or destroyed US LEC Certificate,
Section 2.2(1)).

(b) Cancellation of Shares. Each share of US LEC Common Stock
that is owned by US LEC, PAETEC or the Company shall automatically be canceled and retired
and shall cease to exist, and no consideration shall be delivered in exchange therefor.

(©) Conversion of Merger Sub U Common Stock. Each share of
Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of Merger Sub U issued and outstanding immediately
prior to the US LEC Effective Time shall be automatically converted into one newly and validly
issued, fully paid and nonassessable share of Common Stock of the US LEC Surviving
Corporation.

(d) Conversion of PAETEC Common Stock. Subject to Sections
2.1(g), 2.1(h) and 2.1(i), each share of PAETEC Common Stock issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time, other than any shares of PAETEC Common Stock to be
canceled pursuant to Section 2.1(e), shall be automatically converted into and become the right
to receive 1.623 (the "PAETEC Exchange Ratio") fully paid and nonassessable shares of
Company Common Stock (the "PAETEC Merger Consideration"” and together with the US LEC
Merger Consideration, the "Merger Consideration"). As a result of the PAETEC Merger, at the
PAETEC Effective Time, each holder of a PAETEC Certificate (as defined in Section 2.2(b))
shall cease to have any rights with respect thereto, except that such PAETEC Certificate shall
represent only the right to receive the PAETEC Merger Consideration deliverable in respect of
the shares of PAETEC Common Stock represented by such PAETEC Certificate immediately
prior to the PAETEC Effective Time, any cash in lieu of fractional shares payable pursuant to
Section 2.1(g) and any dividends or other distributions payable pursuant to Section 2.2(c), all to
be issued or paid, without interest, in consideration therefor upon the surrender of such PAETEC
Certificate in accordance with Section 2.2(b) (or, in the case of a lost, stolen or destroyed
PAETEC Certificate, Section 2.2(1)).

(e) Cancellation of Shares. Each share of PAETEC Common Stock
that is owned by US LEC, PAETEC or the Company shall automatically be canceled and retired
and shall cease to exist, and no consideration shall be delivered in exchange therefor.

() Conversion of Merger Sub P Common Stock. Each share of
Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of Merger Sub P issued and outstanding immediately
prior to the PAETEC Effective Time shall be automatically converted into one newly and validly
issued, fully paid and nonassessable share of Common Stock of the PAETEC Surviving
Corporation.
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(2) Fractional Shares. No fraction of a share of Company Common
Stock shall be issued by virtue of the Mergers, but in lieu thereof each holder of shares of
PAETEC Common Stock or US LEC Common Stock who would otherwise be entitled to a
fraction of a share of Company Common Stock (after aggregating all shares of Company
Common Stock that otherwise would be received by such holder) shall, upon surrender of such
holder's Certificate or Certificates (as defined in Section 2.2(b)), receive from the Company an
amount of cash (rounded to the nearest whole cent), without interest, equal to the product of: (i)
the fractional share interest (after aggregating all shares of Company Common Stock that would
otherwise be received by such holder) which such holder would otherwise receive, multiplied by
(11) the average of the closing prices of one share of US LEC Common Stock on the NASDAQ
Global Market ("NASDAQ") for the five consecutive trading days immediately prior to the
Closing Date.

(h) Adjustments to Exchange Ratios.

(1) So as to maintain the relative proportionate interests of the
holders of the PAETEC Common Stock and the US LEC Common Stock in the Company
Common Stock immediately following the Effective Time intended by this Agreement as of the
date hereof, the PAETEC Exchange Ratio, the PAETEC Merger Consideration, the US LEC
Exchange Ratio and the US LEC Merger Consideration shall be adjusted to reflect fully the
appropriate effect of any stock split, split-up, reverse stock split, stock dividend (including any
dividend or distribution of securities convertible into, or exercisable or exchangeable for,
PAETEC Common Stock, US LEC Common Stock or Company Common Stock),
reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification, combination or exchange of shares, or other
similar change with respect to PAETEC Common Stock, US LEC Common Stock or Company
Common Stock having a record date occurring on or after the date hereof and prior to the
Effective Time.

(11) US LEC and PAETEC agree that they will review together
the trading prices in the US LEC Common Stock in the period following public announcement of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement with a view to assessing the ability of the
Company Common Stock to satisty the $5.00 per share minimum bid price requirement for
initial listing of the Company Common Stock on NASDAQ (the "Minimum Trading Price Test").
If, based on such trading prices, it appears reasonably likely that the trading prices of the
Company Common Stock would appear to fail to meet the Minimum Trading Price Test, US
LEC and PAETEC will decrease both the US LEC Exchange Ratio and the PAETEC Exchange
Ratio, in such a manner as shall maintain the relative proportionate interests of the holders of the
PAETEC Common Stock and the US LEC Common Stock in the Company Common Stock
immediately following the Effective Time intended by this Agreement as of the date hereof, so
as to decrease the total number of shares of Company Common Stock to be issued in the Mergers
and thereby increase the expected trading prices for the Company Common Stock to a level
reasonably sufficient to meet the Minimum Trading Price Test. More than one adjustment to the
US LEC Exchange Ratio and the PAETEC Exchange Ratio may be made under this Section
2.1(h)(ii). US LEC and PAETEC will determine whether any such adjustment should be made
both before the mailing of the Joint Proxy Statement (as defined in Section 3.1(e)) and before the
US LEC Stockholders' Meeting (as defined in Section 5.1(b)) and the PAETEC Stockholders'
Meeting (as defined in Section 5.1(b)) are held, and may make any such adjustment even if such
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an adjustment would require a postponement of the US LEC Stockholders' Meeting and the
PAETEC Stockholders' Meeting and the preparation, clearance with the SEC (as defined in
Section 3.1(d)) and mailing of supplemental proxy materials.

(1) Dissenting Shares. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section
2.1(d), each share of PAETEC Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the
PAETEC Effective Time and held by a holder who has not voted in favor of the PAETEC
Merger or consented thereto in writing and who has demanded appraisal for such share of
PAETEC Common Stock in accordance with the DGCL shall not be converted into a right to
receive the PAETEC Merger Consideration to be paid with respect to such share of PAETEC
Common Stock pursuant to Section 2.1(d) but shall be converted into the right to receive such
consideration as may be determined to be due with respect to such share pursuant to the DGCL,
unless such holder fails to perfect, withdraws or otherwise loses such holder's right to appraisal.
If, after the PAETEC Effective Time, such holder fails to perfect, withdraws or loses such
holder's right to appraisal, such share shall be deemed to have been converted as of the PAETEC
Effective Time into a right to receive the PAETEC Merger Consideration to be paid with respect
to such share pursuant to Section 2.1(d). PAETEC shall give US LEC prompt notice of any
demands received by PAETEC for appraisal of shares of PAETEC Common Stock, and US LEC
shall have the right to participate in all negotiations and proceedings with respect to such
demands. Except with the prior written consent of US LEC, PAETEC shall not make any
payment with respect to, or settle or offer to settie, any such demands.

SECTION 2.2 Exchange of Shares and Certificates.

(a) Exchange Agent. As of the Effective Time, the Company shall
engage an institution reasonably satisfactory to US LEC and PAETEC (and US LEC's transfer
agent shall be deemed satistactory to US LEC and PAETEC) to act as exchange agent in
connection with the Mergers (the "Exchange Agent"), pursuant to an agreement reasonably
satisfactory to US LEC and PAETEC. At the Effective Time, the Company shall deposit with
the Exchange Agent, in trust for the benefit of the holders of shares of PAETEC Common Stock
and US LEC Common Stock immediately prior to the PAETEC Effective Time and the US LEC
Effective Time, respectively, certificates representing the shares of Company Common Stock
issuable pursuant to Sections 2.1(a) and 2.1(d). In addition, the Company shall make available
by depositing with the Exchange Agent, as necessary from time to time after the Effective Time,
cash in an amount sufficient to make the payments in lieu of fractional shares pursuant to Section
2.1(g) and any dividends or distributions to which former holders of shares of PAETEC
Common Stock and of US LEC Common Stock may be entitled pursuant to Section 2.2(c). All
cash and certificates representing shares of Company Common Stock deposited with the
Exchange Agent shall hereinafter be referred to as the "Exchange Fund."

(b) Exchange Procedures. Promptly after the Effective Time, and in
any event within ten business days after the Effective Time, PAETEC shall cause the Exchange
Agent to mail to each holder of record of a certificate or certificates which immediately prior to
the PAETEC Effective Time or the US LEC Effective Time, as applicable, represented
outstanding shares of PAETEC Common Stock (the "PAETEC Certificates") or of US LEC
Common Stock (the "US LEC Certificates" and together with the PAETEC Certificates, the
"Certificates"), which at the PAETEC Effective Time or the US LEC Effective Time, as
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applicable, were converted into the right to receive the Merger Consideration pursuant to Section
2.1, () a letter of transmittal (which shall specify that delivery shall be effected, and that risk of
loss and title to the Certificates shall pass, only upon delivery of the Certificates to the Exchange
Agent and which shall be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to US LEC and
PAETEC) and (ii) instructions for use in effecting the surrender of the Certificates in exchange
for certificates representing whole shares of Company Common Stock, cash in lieu of any
fractional shares pursuant to Section 2.1(g) and any dividends or other distributions payable
pursuant to Section 2.2(c). Upon surrender of Certificates for cancellation to the Exchange
Agent, together with such letter of transmittal, duly completed and validly executed in
accordance with the instructions thereto, and such other documents as may reasonably be
required by the Exchange Agent, the holder of such Certificates shall be entitled to receive in
exchange therefor a certificate representing that number of whole shares of Company Common
Stock (after taking into account all Certificates surrendered by such holder) to which such holder
is entitled pursuant to Section 2.1 (which shall be in uncertificated book entry form unless a
physical certificate is requested), payment by cash or check in lieu of fractional shares which
such holder is entitled to receive pursuant to Section 2.1(g) and any dividends or distributions
payable pursuant to Section 2.2(c), and the Certificates so surrendered shall forthwith be
canceled. In the event of a transfer of ownership of shares of PAETEC Common Stock or US
LEC Common Stock which is not registered in the transfer records of PAETEC or US LEC,
respectively, a certificate representing the proper number of shares of Company Common Stock
may be issued to a Person (as defined in Section 8.3(q)) other than the Person in whose name the
Certificate so surrendered is registered, if such Certificate shall be properly endorsed or
otherwise be in proper form for transfer and the Person requesting such issuance shall pay any
transfer or other Taxes (as defined in Section 3.1(j}(x1)) required by reason of the issuance of
shares of Company Common Stock to a Person other than the registered holder of such
Certificate or establish to the reasonable satisfaction of the Company that such Taxes have been
paid or are not applicable. Until surrendered as contemplated by this Section 2.2(b), each
Certificate shall be deemed at any time after the PAETEC Effective Time or the US LEC
Effective Time, as applicable, to represent only the right to receive the Merger Consideration
(and any amounts to be paid pursuant to Section 2.1(g) or Section 2.2(c)) upon such surrender.
No interest shall be paid or shall accrue on any amount payable pursuant to Section 2.1(g) or

Section 2.2(¢).

(©) Distributions with Respect to Unexchanged Shares: Voting. All
shares of Company Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the Mergers shall be deemed issued
and outstanding as of the Effective Time and whenever a dividend or other distribution is
declared by the Company in respect of Company Common Stock, the record date for which
dividend or other distribution is after the Effective Time, such declaration shall include dividends
or other distributions in respect of all shares issuable pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no dividends or other distributions with respect to shares of
Company Common Stock with a record date after the Effective Time shall be delivered to the
holder of any unsurrendered Certificate with respect to the shares of Company Common Stock
represented thereby, and no cash payment in lieu of fractional shares shall be paid to any such
holder pursuant to Section 2.1(g), until such Certificate has been surrendered in accordance with
this Article II. Subject to Applicable Laws, foliowing surrender of any such Certificate, there
shall be delivered to the record holder thereof, without interest, (i) promptly after such surrender,
the number of whole shares of Company Common Stock issuable in exchange therefor pursuant
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to this Article I, together with any cash payable in lieu of a fractional share of Company
Common Stock to which such holder is entitled pursuant to Section 2.1(g) and the amount of
dividends or other distributions with a record date after the Effective Time theretofore paid with
respect to such whole shares of Company Common Stock, and (ii) at the appropriate payment
date, the amount of dividends or other distributions with a record date after the Effective Time
and a payment date subsequent to such surrender payable with respect to such whole shares of
Company Common Stock. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in Section 2.1(a),
2.1(d) or 2.2(b), holders of unsurrendered Certificates shall be entitled to vote after the Effective
Time at any meeting of Company stockholders that number of whole shares of Company
Common Stock represented by such Certificates, regardless of whether such holders have
exchanged their Certificates.

(d) No Further Ownership Rights in PAETEC Common Stock or US
LEC Common Stock. All shares of Company Common Stock issued upon the surrender for
exchange of Certificates in accordance with the terms of this Article II and any cash paid
pursuant to Section 2.1(g) or Section 2.2(c) shall be deemed to have been issued (or paid) in full
satisfaction of all rights pertaining to the shares of PAETEC Common Stock or US LEC
Common Stock, as applicable, previously represented by such Certificates. After the PAETEC
Effective Time and the US LEC Effective Time, the stock transfer books of PAETEC and US
LEC, respectively, shall be closed and there shall be no further registration of transfers on the
stock transfer books of the PAETEC Surviving Corporation or the US LEC Surviving
Corporation, respectively, of the shares of PAETEC Common Stock or US LEC Common Stock,
respectively, which were outstanding immediately prior to the PAETEC Effective Time or the
US LEC Effective Time, respectively. If, after the PAETEC Effective Time or the US LEC
Effective Time, respectively, Certificates are presented to the PAETEC Surviving Corporation or
the US LEC Surviving Corporation, respectively, or the Exchange Agent for any reason, they
shall be canceled and exchanged as provided in this Article II.

(e) Termination of Exchange Fund. Any portion of the Exchange
Fund which remains undistributed to the holders of Certificates one year after the Effective Time
shall be delivered to the Company, upon demand, and any holders of Certificates who have not
theretofore complied with this Article Il shall thereafter look only to the Company for delivery of
their claim for the Merger Consideration, any cash in lieu of fractional shares of Company
Common Stock pursuant to Section 2.1(g) and any dividends or distributions pursuant to Section
2.2(c).

) No Liability. None of the Company, PAETEC, US LEC or the
Exchange Agent or any of their respective directors, officers, employees or agents shall be liable
to any Person in respect of any shares of Company Common Stock (or dividends or distributions
with respect thereto) or cash from the Exchange Fund delivered to a public official pursuant to
any applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar law. If any PAETEC Certificate or US
LEC Certificate shall not have been surrendered prior to seven years after the PAETEC Effective
Time or the US LEC Effective Time, respectively, or immediately prior to such earlier date on
which any shares of Company Common Stock, any cash in lieu of fractional shares of Company
Common Stock or any dividends or distributions with respect to Company Common Stock
issuable in respect of such Certificate would otherwise escheat to or become the property of any
Governmental Entity (as defined in Section 8.3(f)), any such shares, cash, dividends or
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distributions in respect of such Certificate shall, to the extent permitted by Applicable Laws,
become the property of the Company, free and clear of all claims or interests of any Person
previously entitled thereto.

(g) Investment of Exchange Fund. The Exchange Agent shall invest
any cash included in the Exchange Fund as directed by the Company, provided that no such
investment or loss thereon shall affect the amounts payable to former stockholders of PAETEC
or US LEC after the Effective Time pursuant to this Article II. Any interest and other income
resulting from such investment shall become a part of the Exchange Fund, and any amounts in
excess of the amounts payable pursuant to this Article II shall promptly be paid to the Company.

(h) Withholding Rights. The Company and the Exchange Agent shall
be entitled to deduct and withhold from any consideration payable pursuant to this Agreement to
any Person who was a holder of PAETEC Common Stock or US LEC Common Stock
immediately prior to the PAETEC Effective Time or the US LEC Effective Time, respectively,
such amounts as the Company or the Exchange Agent may be required to deduct and withhold
with respect to the making of such payment under the Code or any other provision of federal,
state, local or foreign Tax law. To the extent that amounts are so withheld by the Company or
the Exchange Agent, such withheld amounts shall be treated for all purposes of this Agreement
as having been paid to the Person to whom such consideration would otherwise have been paid.

(1) Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates. In the event any
Certificates shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, the Exchange Agent shall issue in exchange
for such lost, stolen or destroyed Certificates, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the
holder thereof, such shares of Company Common Stock as may be required pursuant to Section
2.1(a) or 2.1(d), cash in lieu of fractional shares pursuant to Section 2.1(g) and any dividends or
distributions payable pursuant to Section 2.2(c); provided, however, that the Company may, in
its discretion and as a condition precedent to the issuance thereof, require the owner of such lost,
stolen or destroyed Certificates to deliver an agreement of indemnification in form reasonably
satistactory to the Company, or a bond in such sum as the Company may reasonably direct as
indemnity, against any claim that may be made against the Company or the Exchange Agent in
respect of the Certificates alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed.

ARTICLE III

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

SECTION 3.1 Representations and Warranties of PAETEC. Except as
disclosed in the disclosure schedule dated as of the date of this Agreement and executed and
delivered by PAETEC to US LEC concurrently with or prior to the execution and delivery by
PAETEC of this Agreement, which shall make reference to the particular section or subsection
of this Agreement to which exception is being taken (it being agreed that any information set
forth in one section of such disclosure schedule shall be deemed to apply to each other section
thereof to which its relevance is reasonably apparent on its face) (the "PAETEC Disclosure
Schedule™)), PAETEC represents and warrants to US LEC as follows:
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(a) Organization, Standing and Corporate Power; Charter Documents;

Subsidiaries.

(1) Organization, Standing and Corporate Power. PAETEC
and each of its Subsidiaries is a corporation or other legal entity duly organized, validly existing
and in good standing (with respect to jurisdictions which recognize such concept) under the laws
of the jurisdiction in which it is incorporated or otherwise organized and has the requisite
corporate (or similar) power and authority and all necessary government approvals to own, lease
and operate its properties and to carry on its business as currently conducted, except for those
jurisdictions in which the failure to have such power, authority or government approvals and to
be so organized, existing or in good standing would not, individually or in the aggregate, have or
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect (as defined in Section 8.3(1)) on
PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. Each of PAETEC and each ofits Subsidiaries is
duly qualified or licensed to do business as a foreign corporation or other legal entity and is in
good standing (with respect to jurisdictions which recognize such concept) in each jurisdiction in
which the nature or conduct of its business or the ownership, leasing or operation of its
properties makes such qualification, licensing or good standing necessary, except for those
jurisdictions where the failure to be so qualified or licensed or to be in good standing would not,
individually or in the aggregate, have or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(11) Charter Documents. Except as may be disclosed in the
PAETEC Reports (as defined in Section 3.1(f)), PAETEC has delivered or made available to US
LEC prior to the execution of this Agreement complete and correct copies of (A) the Restated
Certificate of Incorporation of PAETEC (including all certificates of designation), as amended
and currently in effect (the "PAETEC Charter"), and the Amended and Restated Bylaws of
PAETEC, as amended and currently in effect (the "PAETEC By-Laws," and, together with the
PAETEC Charter, the "PAETEC Organizational Documents"), and (B) the articles or certificate
of incorporation and bylaws or like organizational documents of each Subsidiary of PAETEC,
including the Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P, as amended and currently in effect
(collectively, the "PAETEC Subsidiary Organizational Documents”), and each such instrument is
in full force and effect. PAETEC is not in material violation of the PAETEC Organizational
Documents and no Subsidiary of PAETEC is in material violation of its PAETEC Subsidiary
Organizational Documents. PAETEC has made available to US LEC complete and accurate
minute books of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, except for documents with respect to
consideration and/or approval of the transactions contemplated hereby.

(iii))  Subsidiaries. Except as may be disclosed in the PAETEC
Reports, Section 3.1(a)(iii) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule lists each of the Subsidiaries of
PAETEC, including the name of each such entity, the state or jurisdiction of its incorporation or
organization and PAETEC's direct or indirect interest therein. All the outstanding shares of
capital stock of, or other equity interests in, each Subsidiary of PAETEC have been validly
issued and are fully paid and, with respect to the corporate Subsidiaries of PAETEC,
nonassessable and are owned directly or indirectly by PAETEC, free and clear of all mortgages,
pledges, claims, restrictions, infringements, liens, charges, encumbrances and security interests
and claims of any kind or nature whatsoever (collectively, "Liens") and free of any other
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restriction (including preemptive and similar rights and any restriction on the right to vote, sell or
otherwise dispose of such capital stock or other ownership interests).

(b) Capital Structure.

(1) The authorized capital stock of PAETEC consists of
100,000,000 shares of PAETEC Common Stock and 10,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, par
value $0.01 per share ("PAETEC Preferred Stock"). At the close of business on August 9, 2006,
(A) 30,168,997 shares of PAETEC Common Stock were issued and outstanding; (B) 6,546,526
shares of PAETEC Common Stock were held by PAETEC in its treasury; (C) no shares of
PAETEC Preferred Stock were issued and outstanding; (D) warrants to purchase 355,666 shares
of PAETEC Common Stock (the "PAETEC Plan Warrants") were issued and outstanding under
the PAETEC Communications, Inc. Agent Incentive Plan (the "PAETEC Agent Plan"); (E)
12,974,939 shares of PAETEC Common Stock were reserved for issuance in respect of
outstanding options to acquire PAETEC Common Stock pursuant to the PAETEC 2001 Stock
Option and Incentive Plan (the "PAETEC 2001 Plan") and the PAETEC 1998 Incentive
Compensation Plan (the "PAETEC 1998 Plan") (such options are collectively referred to as the
"PAETEC Plan Options")); (F) 14,015 shares of PAETEC Common Stock were reserved for
issuance in respect of outstanding options to purchase PAETEC Common Stock (in addition to
the shares of PAETEC Common Stock reserved in respect of outstanding PAETEC Plan Options)
(the "PAETEC Non-Plan Options")) pursuant to the agreements set forth in Section 3.1(b)(i) of
the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule (the PAETEC Plan Options and PAETEC Non-Plan Options,
together with all other options to acquire shares of PAETEC Common Stock issued pursuant to
the PAETEC 2001 Plan after August 9, 2006 and prior to the Effective Time, are collectively
referred to as the "PAETEC Options"); (G) 4,552,834 shares of PAETEC Common Stock were
reserved for issuance in respect of outstanding PAETEC Unit Awards (as defined in Section
5.11(a)(i1)) pursuant to the PAETEC Executive Incentive Plan (the "PAETEC Executive Plan”
and, collectively with the PAETEC Agent Plan, the PAETEC 2001 Plan and the PAETEC 1998
Plan, the "PAETEC Stock Plans") and the PAETEC 2001 Plan; (H) 40,000 shares of PAETEC
Common Stock were reserved for issuance in respect of outstanding warrants to purchase
PAETEC Common Stock (in addition to the shares of PAETEC Common Stock reserved for
issuance pursuant to the PAETEC Plan Warrants) pursuant to the agreements set forth in Section
3.1(b)(1) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule (the "PAETEC Non-Plan Warrants" and,
collectively with the PAETEC Plan Warrants, the "PAETEC Warrants"); and (1) 3,400,000
shares of PAETEC Common Stock were reserved for issuance pursuant to the Conversion and
Exchange Agreement, dated as of June §, 2006, as amended, among PAETEC and the Persons
set forth on the signature pages thereof (the "Conversion Agreement” and, collectively with the
PAETEC Stock Plans and the agreements evidencing the PAETEC Non-Plan Options and
PAETEC Non-Plan Warrants, the "PAETEC Stock Agreements"). Each outstanding share of
capital stock of PAETEC is duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid, nonassessable and free of
preemptive rights.

(i1) All shares of PAETEC Common Stock subject to issuance
under the PAETEC Stock Agreements, upon issuance on the terms and conditions specified in
the instruments pursuant to which they are issuable, shall be duly authorized, validly issued, fully
paid and nonassessable and free of preemptive or similar rights.
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(iili)  No bonds, debentures, notes or other evidences of
indebtedness having, or exercisable, convertible or exchangeable for or into other securities
having, the right to vote on any matters on which stockholders of PAETEC may vote (the
"PAETEC Voting Debt") are issued or outstanding as of the date of this Agreement.

(iv)  Asof August 9, 2006, except as set forth in Section 3.1(b)(i)
or as may be disclosed in the PAETEC Reports, there are no securities, options, warrants, calls,
rights, commitments, agreements, arrangements or undertakings of any kind to which PAETEC
or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any of them is bound obligating PAETEC or any
of its Subsidiaries to issue, deliver or sell, or cause to be issued, delivered or sold, additional
shares of capital stock, PAETEC Voting Debt or other voting securities of PAETEC or any of its
Subsidiaries, or obligating PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries to issue, grant, extend or enter into
any such security, option, warrant, call, right, commitment, agreement, arrangement or
undertaking. All outstanding shares of PAETEC Common Stock, all outstanding PAETEC
Options and PAETEC Unit Awards, all outstanding PAETEC Warrants and all outstanding
shares of capital stock of each Subsidiary of PAETEC have been issued and granted in
compliance in all material respects with (A) all applicable securities laws and all other
Applicable Laws and (B) all requirements set forth in applicable material Contracts (as defined

in Section 8.3(c)).

(v) Except as may be disclosed in the PAETEC Reports,
neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any currently effective agreement (A)
restricting the purchase or transfer of, (B) relating to the voting of, (C) requiring the repurchase,
redemption or disposition of, or containing any right of first refusal with respect to, (D) requiring
registration of or (E) granting any preemptive or antidilutive rights with respect to any capital
stock of PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries or any securities of the type referred to in Section

3.1(b)(1v).

(vi)  Other than in Subsidiaries of PAETEC, or as may be
disclosed in the PAETEC Reports, as of the date hereof, neither PAETEC nor its Subsidiaries
directly or indirectly beneficially owns (as such term is defined in Rule 13d-3 under the
Exchange Act) any securities or other beneficial ownership interests in any other entity except
for non-controlling investments made in the ordinary course of business consistent with past
practice and which are not individually or in the aggregate material to PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. There are no outstanding contractual obligations of PAETEC or
any of its Subsidiaries to make any loan to, or any equity or other investment (in the form of a
capital contribution or otherwise) in, any Subsidiary of PAETEC or any other Person, other than
(A) guarantees by PAETEC of any indebtedness or other obligations of any wholly-owned
Subsidiary of PAETEC and (B) loans made in compliance with Applicable Laws in the ordinary
course consistent with past practice to employees of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries.

(vi)  Each of the Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P
was formed at the direction of PAETEC prior to the date hereof, solely for the purposes of
effecting the Mergers and the other transactions contemplated hereby. Except as required by or
provided for in this Agreement, each of the Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P (A) does
not hold, nor has it held, any assets, (B) does not have, nor has it incurred, any liabilities and (C)
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has not carried on any business activities other than in connection with the Mergers and the
transactions contemplated hereby.

(viii)) Neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries owns any
shares of capital stock of US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries.

(ix)  Each share of Company Common Stock to be issued in
either the US LEC Merger or the PAETEC Merger shall be duly authorized, validly issued, fully
paid and non-assessable and free and clear of any Liens.

(c) Authority; Board Approval; Voting Requirements; No Conflict;
Regquired Filings and Consents.

(1) Authority. Each of PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U
and Merger Sub P has all requisite corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement, to
perform its obligations hereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.
PAETEC has all requisite corporate power and authority to enter into the US LEC Voting
Agreements, the PAETEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Ancillary Agreement (as defined in
Section 8.3(r)), the Commitment Letter (as defined in Section 5.14(a)) and the Conversion
Agreement, to perform its obligations thereunder and to consummate the transactions
contemplated thereby. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by PAETEC, the Company,
Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P, and the consummation by PAETEC, the Company, Merger
Sub U and Merger Sub P of the transactions contemplated hereby, have been duly and validly
authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Boards of Directors of PAETEC,
the Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P, and no other corporate proceedings on the part
of PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P and, subject to compliance by
PAETEC and the Company with Section 5.18, no other stockholder votes or consents are
necessary under the DGCL for PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P to
authorize this Agreement, to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby or to approve the
other matters being considered by stockholders of US LEC at the US LEC Stockholders' Meeting,
other than, with respect to adoption of this Agreement and approval of the PAETEC Merger and
the other transactions contemplated hereby and the approval of the other matters being
considered by stockholders of US LEC at the US LEC Stockholders’ Meeting, the PAETEC
Stockholder Approval and the filing of the PAETEC Certificate of Merger with the Secretary of
State of the State of Delaware. The execution and delivery of the US LEC Voting Agreements,
the PAETEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Ancillary Agreement, the Commitment Letter
and the Conversion Agreement by PAETEC, and the consummation by PAETEC of the
transactions contemplated thereby, have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary
corporate action on the part of PAETEC, and no other corporate proceedings on the part of
PAETEC are necessary to authorize the US LEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Voting
Agreements, the PAETEC Ancillary Agreement, the Commitment Letter or the Conversion
Agreement or to consummate the transactions contemplated thereby. This Agreement has been
duly executed and delivered by PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub’ U and Merger Sub P. The
US LEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Ancillary
Agreement, the Commitment Letter and the Conversion Agreement have been duly executed and
delivered by PAETEC. Assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery of this
Agreement by US LEC, this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of each
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of PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P, enforceable against PAETEC, the
Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P, in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws relating to or affecting the
rights and remedies of creditors generally and to general principles of equity (regardless of
whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law) (collectively, "Creditors' Laws").
Assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery of the US LEC Voting Agreements, the
PAETEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Ancillary Agreement, the Commitment Letter and
the Conversion Agreement by the counterparties thereto, the US LEC Voting Agreements, the
PAETEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Ancillary Agreement, the Commitment Letter and
the Conversion Agreement constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of PAETEC
enforceable against PAETEC in accordance with their terms, subject to Creditors' Laws.

(i1) Board Approval. The Board of Directors of PAETEC has
(A) determined that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby are advisable and
fair to and in the best interests of PAETEC and its stockholders, (B) duly approved this
Agreement, the US LEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC
Ancillary Agreement, the Commitment Letter and the Conversion Agreement, and duly
approved the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, which approval has not been
rescinded or modified, (C) resolved to recommend this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby to its stockholders for adoption and approval and (D) subject to Section
5.1(b), directed that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby be submitted to
PAETEC's stockholders for consideration and adoption and approval at a duly held meeting of
such stockholders in accordance with this Agreement.

(1))  Voting Requirements. The affirmative vote of holders of a
majority of the outstanding shares of PAETEC Common Stock is the only vote of the holders of
any class or series of PAETEC capital stock necessary to approve and adopt this Agreement, and
approve and consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, and no vote of stockholders of
PAETEC is necessary to approve the other matters being considered by stockholders of US LEC
at the US LEC Stockholders' Meeting.

(iv)  No Conflict. The execution and delivery of this Agreement,
the US LEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Ancillary
Agreement, the Commitment Letter and the Conversion Agreement by PAETEC, the Company,
Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P (as applicable) do not, and the consummation by PAETEC, the
Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P (as applicable) of the transactions contemplated
hereby and thereby and compliance by PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub
P (as applicable) with the provisions hereof and thereof will not, violate any provision of law, or
any order, judgment or decree of any Governmental Entity, conflict with, result in any violation
or breach of or default (with or without notice or lapse of time, or both) under, require any
consent, waiver or approval under, give rise to any right of termination or cancellation or
acceleration of any right or obligation or loss of a benefit under, or result in the creation of any
Lien upon any of the properties or assets of PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries or any restriction
on the conduct of PAETEC's business or operations under, (A) the PAETEC Organizational
Documents or the PAETEC Subsidiary Organizational Documents, (B) subject to the
governmental filings and other matters referred to in Section 3.1(c)(v), any Contract to which
PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or PAETEC Licenses or Permits (as defined in

17

553062.07-New York Server 3A - MSW



Section 3.1(g)(i)) or (C) subject to the governmental filings and other matters referred to in
Section 3.1(c)(v), any judgment, order, decree, statute, law, ordinance, rule or regulation
applicable to PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective propetrties or assets, other
than, in the case of clauses (B) and (C) above, any such conflicts, violations, defaults, rights,
losses, restrictions or Liens, or failure to obtain consents, waivers or approvals, which,
individually or in the aggregate, would not have or reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(v) Required Filings or Consents. No consent, waiver, order,
authorization or approval of any Governmental Entity, and no declaration or notice to or filing or
registration with any Governmental Entity or any other Person is required to be made, obtained,
performed or given with respect to PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries in connection with the
execution and delivery of this Agreement, the US LEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Voting
Agreements, the PAETEC Ancillary Agreement, the Commitment Letter and the Conversion
Agreement by PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U or Merger Sub P (as applicable) or the
consummation by PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U or Merger Sub P (as applicable) of the
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, except for:

(A)  the filing of a pre-merger notification and report
form by PAETEC under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as
amended (the "HSR Act");

(B) the filing of the PAETEC Certificate of Merger and
the US LEC Certificate of Merger with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware
and appropriate documents with NASDAQ and the relevant authorities of other states in
which PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U or Merger Sub P is qualified to do
business, such filings as may be necessary in accordance with state securities or other
"blue sky" laws, and such filings as may be necessary to record or perfect security
interests or mortgages in personal or real property;

(C)  the PAETEC Stockholder Approval and the
delivery of documents or information to the PAETEC Stockholders as may be required
by Delaware law in connection therewith;

(D)  thereports, filings, registrations, consents,
approvals, permits, authorizations and/or notices to the Federal Communications
Commission (the "FCC");

(E)  thereports, filings, registrations, consents,
approvals, permits, authorizations and/or notices with or to those state public service or
public utility commissions or similar state regulatory bodies set forth in Section
3. 1(c)XvXE) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule;

(F) the consents, waivers,. approvals, orders or
authorizations set forth in Section 3.1(c)(v)(F) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule;

(G) the filing with the SEC of:
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(1) The Form S-4 (as defined in
Section 3.1(e)), including the Joint Proxy Statement; and

(2) such reports and filings under
Section 12(b), 13(a), 13(d), 15(d) or 16(a) of the Exchange Act and
the rules and regulations thereunder as may be required in
connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated
hereby; and

(H)  any consent, waiver, approval, order or
authorization of, or declaration, registration or filing with, or notice to any Governmental
Entity (other than any of the foregoing addressed in clauses (A) through (G) above), the
failure of which to be made or obtained, individually or in the aggregate, would not have,
or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(vi)  Independent Directors. As of the date of this Agreement,
assuming the consummation as of such date of the Mergers and the other transactions
contemplated hereby in accordance with the terms hereof, the two individuals listed in Exhibit
3.1(c)(vi) attached hereto would qualify as Independent Directors and, with respect to the
Company, would be considered to be independent directors within the meaning of Rule 10A-
3(b)(1) under the Exchange Act.

(d) Financial Statements. Neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries
is subject to the periodic reporting requirements of the Exchange Act. PAETEC is in compliance
in all material respects with its undertakings set forth in the no action letter issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on July 16, 2002 regarding PAETEC, and has
been in such compliance therewith since such date.

(1) PAETEC has delivered to US LEC true and complete
copies of the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries as of March
31, 2006, and the related unaudited statements of income and cash flows for the quarterly period
ended as of such date (the "PAETEC Unaudited Financial Statements"). PAETEC has delivered
to US LEC true and complete copies of (A) the audited consolidated balance sheets of PAETEC
and its Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, and (B) the related
audited statements of cash flows and the related audited statements of income for the fiscal years
ended as of such dates (the "PAETEC Audited Financial Statements,” and together with the
PAETEC Unaudited Financial Statements, the "PAETEC Financial Statements"). The PAETEC
Financial Statements have been prepared and the Prospective PAETEC Financial Statements (as
defined in Section 4.1(¢)) will be prepared from the books and records of PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles
consistently applied ("GAAP") (except as may otherwise be noted therein), and the PAETEC
Financial Statements fairly present and the Prospective PAETEC Financial Statements will fairly
present the consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows of PAETEC and
its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates and for the periods indicated (subject, in the case of
the PAETEC Unaudited Financial Statements and the Prospective PAETEC Financial Statements,
to normal year-end audit adjustments and the lack of footnote disclosure). The financial books
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and records of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, are true and correct in all material
respects. There has been no change in PAETEC accounting policies from January 1, 2004
through the date hereof except as described in the notes to the financial statements included in
the PAETEC Financial Statements or the Prospective PAETEC Financial Statements.

(11) Except as reflected or reserved against in the balance sheet
of PAETEC as of March 31, 2006 (including the notes thereto, the "PAETEC Balance Sheet"),
neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has any liabilities or obligations of any nature
(whether absolute, accrued, known or unknown, contingent or otherwise) nor, to the Knowledge
(as defined in Section 8.3(i)) of PAETEC, does any basis exist therefor, other than liabilities or
obligations that (A) were incurred since April 1, 2006 in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice and, individually or in the aggregate, have not had and would not
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole, (B) individually or in the aggregate, have not had and would not reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole or
(C) were incurred pursuant to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.

(1)  Except as set forth on the PAETEC Balance Sheet or as
may be disclosed in the PAETEC Reports, neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is directly
or indirectly liable upon or with respect to (by discount, repurchase agreements or otherwise), or
obligated in any other way to provide funds in respect of, or to guarantee or assume, any debt,
obligation or dividend of any Person (other than PAETEC or another Subsidiary of PAETEC),
except endorsements in the ordinary course of business in connection with the deposit, in banks
or other financial institutions, of items for collection.

(e) Information Supplied. None of the information supplied or to be
supplied by or on behalf of PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U or Merger Sub P for
inclusion or incorporation by reference in (i) the registration statement on Form S-4 to be filed
with the SEC by the Company in connection with the registration and issuance of Company
Common Stock to PAETEC stockholders and US LEC stockholders in the Mergers and the
registration and issuance of warrants to purchase Company Common Stock (the "Company
Warrants") to holders of PAETEC Warrants and holders of US LEC Warrants (as defined in
Section 3.2(b)(i)) as of the date of the Mergers (including any amendments or supplements
thereto, the "Form S-4") shall, at the time the Form S-4 becomes effective under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein not misleading or (ii) the joint proxy statement relating to the US LEC Stockholders'
Meeting and prospectus relating to the registration and issuance of shares of Company Common
Stock to PAETEC stockholders and US LEC stockholders in the Mergers and the registration
and issuance of Company Warrants to holders of PAETEC Warrants and holders of US LEC
Warrants as of the date of the Mergers, in each case as amended or supplemented from time to
time (the "Joint Proxy Statement") will, at the date it is first mailed to PAETEC's stockholders or
at the time of the PAETEC Stockholders' Meeting, contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make
the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, not
misleading. The Joint Proxy Statement and the Form S-4 shall comply as to form in all material
respects with the requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and

20

553062.07-New York Server 3A - MSW



regulations thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 3.1(g), no
representation or warranty is made by PAETEC with respect to information or statements made
or incorporated by reference in the Form S-4 or the Joint Proxy Statement which were not
supplied in writing by or on behalf of PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U or Merger Sub P.

(1) Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Except as disclosed in the
PAETEC Quarterly Report for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2006 and the PAETEC
2005 Annual Information Statement provided by PAETEC to US LEC (collectively, the
"PAETEC Reports"):

(1) Since December 31, 2005 through the date hereof, except
for liabilities incurred pursuant to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby:

(A)  PAETEC and its Subsidiaries have conducted their
business only in the ordinary course consistent with past practice;

(B)  there has not been any split, combination or
reclassification of any of PAETEC's capital stock or any declaration, setting aside or
payment of any dividend on, or other distribution (whether in cash, stock or property) in
respect of, in lieu of or in substitution for, shares of PAETEC's capital stock; .

(C)  except as required by a change in GAAP, there has
not been any change in financial accounting methods, principles or practices (including
any change in depreciation or amortization policies or rates) by PAETEC;

(D)  there has not been any action taken by PAETEC or
any of its Subsidiaries that, if taken during the period from the date of this Agreement
through the Effective Time, would constitute a breach of Section 4.1(a), other than
actions in connection with entering into this Agreement;

(E)  neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has sold
or transferred any of its material assets, including any sale, license or lease of any
Network Facilities (as defined in Section 8.3(m)), indefeasible rights of use of capacity or
infrastructure ("IRUs"), or cancelled any material debts or claims or waived any material
rights; and

(F) neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has
discontinued the offering of any material services or material products.

(11) Since December 31, 2005 through the date hereof, there
have not been any changes, circumstances or events that, individually or in the aggregate, have
had, or would reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(g2) Compliance with Applicable [.aws; Permits; Litigation. Except as
may be disclosed in the PAETEC Reports:
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(1) PAETEC, its Subsidiaries and their respective employees
hold all authorizations, permits, licenses, certificates, easements, concessions, franchises,
variances, exemptions, orders, consents, registrations, approvals and clearances of all
Governmental Entities and third Persons which are required for PAETEC and its Subsidiaries to
own, lease and operate their properties and other assets and to carry on their respective
businesses as they are being conducted as of the date hereof (collectively, the "PAETEC
Licenses or Permits"), and all PAETEC Licenses or Permits are valid and in full force and effect,
except where the failure to have, or the suspension or cancellation of, or the failure to be valid or
in full force and effect of, any such PAETEC Licenses or Permits, individually or in the
aggregate, would not have, or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on
PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(i1) PAETEC and its Subsidiaries are, and have been at all
times since January 1, 2004, in compliance with the terms of the PAETEC Licenses or Permits
and all laws, statutes, orders, rules, regulations, policies or guidelines promulgated, or judgments,
decisions or orders entered by any Governmental Entity (all such laws, statutes, orders, rules,
regulations, policies, guidelines, judgments, decisions and orders, collectively, "Applicable
Laws") relating to PAETEC and its Subsidiaries or their respective businesses, assets or
properties, except where the failure to be in compliance with the terms of the PAETEC Licenses
or Permits or such Applicable Laws, individually or in the aggregate, would not have, or
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole. Since January 1, 2004, neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has
received any written notification from any Governmental Entity (A) asserting that PAETEC or
any of its Subsidiaries is not in compliance with, or at any time since such date has failed to
comply with Applicable Laws (except for any such lack of compliance which, individually or in
the aggregate, would not have, or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on
PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole) or (B) threatening to revoke any PAETEC
Licenses or Permits (except for any such revocation which, individually or in the aggregate,
would not have, or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and
its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole) nor, to the Knowledge of PAETEC, does any basis exist
therefor. As of the date hereof, no investigation or review by any Governmental Entity is
pending or, to the Knowledge of PAETEC, has been threatened in writing against PAETEC or
any of its Subsidiaries which, individually or in the aggregate, would have, or reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(iii))  Except as may be disclosed in the PAETEC Reports, no
action, audit, demand, claim, suit, proceeding, requirement or investigation by any Governmental
Entity, and no suit, action, mediation, arbitration or proceeding by any Person, against or
affecting PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective properties, including
Intellectual Property (as defined in Section 8.3(h)}), is pending or, to the Knowledge of PAETEC,
threatened which, individually or in the aggregate, would reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(iv)  Neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries 1s, or at any
time since January 1, 2004 has been, subject to any outstanding order, injunction or decree which,
individually or in the aggregate, has had or would reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.
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(v) There are no material unresolved complaints, claims or
disputes, or litigation or threatened litigation, between PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries and
any inter-exchange carrier, local exchange carrier, wireless carrier or Voice over Internet
Protocol provider, challenging any access charges or other inter-carrier compensation billed,
allegedly owed, or paid, by or to PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries for the origination or
termination of any interstate, intrastate, or local telecommunications traffic, including any traffic
received from or delivered to any third-party carrier or provider or its end user(s).

(vi)  No material PAETEC Licenses or Permits will be
terminated or impaired or become terminable, in whole or in part, as a result of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, provided that the notices and approvals set forth in Section
3.1(c)(v)(E) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule have been given or received, as appropriate.

(vit) The revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities on the books
of PAETEC and any of its Subsidiaries (including any related adjustments or reserves)
accurately reflect, subject to GAAP, the reasonable likelihood and extent, under applicable tariffs,
agreements and Communications Laws (as defined in Section 3.1(n)(i)), that any intercarrier
compensation billed or anticipated by PAETEC or its Subsidiaries will be collected, and the
reasonable likelihood that, and the extent to which, PAETEC or its Subsidiaries will be required
to pay any intercarrier compensation (whether or not already billed or claimed), including
whether PAETEC or its Subsidiaries will be required to refund any material intercarrier
compensation amounts previously billed and collected or anticipated to be billed and collected
by PAETEC or its Subsidiaries as a result of their operations.

(h) Labor and Other Employment Matters. Except as may be
disclosed in the PAETEC Reports, neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to, or
bound by, any collective bargaining agreement. Except as would not have, or reasonably be
expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole: (i) PAETEC and its Subsidiaries are in compliance in all material
respects with all Applicable Laws respecting employment and employment practices and terms
and conditions of employment; (ii) neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has received
written notice of any charge or complaint against PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries pending
before the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the National Labor Relations Board, or
any other Governmental Entity regarding an unlawful employment practice; (iii) there is no labor
strike, lockout, slowdown or stoppage pending or, to the Knowledge of PAETEC, threatened or
being carried out against PAETEC or its Subsidiaries; and (iv) neither PAETEC nor any of its
Subsidiaries has received written notice that any representation or certification petition
respecting the employees of PAETEC or its Subsidiaries has been filed with the National Labor
Relations Board or analogous Governmental Entity.

(1) Benefit Plans. Except as may be disclosed in the PAETEC Reports
with respect to the matters set forth in this Section 3.1(i) (other than the first sentence of Section
3.10)1):

(1) Section 3.1(i)(i) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule sets
forth a true and complete list of each material bonus, pension, profit sharing, deferred
compensation, incentive compensation, stock ownership, stock purchase, stock option or other
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equity compensation, phantom stock, stock-related or performance award, retirement, vacation,
severance or termination pay, change in control, retention, disability, death benefit,
hospitalization, medical, life insurance, loan, disability, and other similar material plan,
agreement, policy or arrangement, including each "employee benefit plan" within the meaning of
Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"),
each material employment agreement, consulting agreement, termination or severance agreement,
and each other employee benefit plan, fund, program, agreement or arrangement, in each case,
that is sponsored, maintained or contributed to or required to be contributed to by PAETEC or by
any trade or business, whether or not incorporated (an "ERISA Affiliate"), of PAETEC, or to
which PAETEC or an ERISA Affiliate of PAETEC is party, whether written or oral, for the
benefit of any current or former employee, officer or director of PAETEC or any of its
Subsidiaries (the "PAETEC Benefit Plans"). No PAETEC Benefit Plan is subject to Title IV or
Section 302 of ERISA. With respect to the PAETEC Benefit Plans, no event has occurred, and
there exists no condition or set of circumstances, which has or would reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. Neither
PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries nor, to the Knowledge of PAETEC, any other Person, has
any express commitment, whether legally enforceable or not, to modify, change or terminate any
PAETEC Benefit Plan, other than with respect to a modification, change or termination required
by ERISA or the Code, or any other Applicable Law or administrative changes that do not
increase the liabilities or obligations under any such plans.

(i1) Each PAETEC Benefit Plan has been, in all material
respects, administered and operated in accordance with its terms and Applicable Laws, including
ERISA and the Code. Each PAETEC Benefit Plan intended to be "qualified" within the meaning
of Section 401(a) of the Code is so qualified and the trusts maintained thereunder are exempt
from taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code, and, to the Knowledge of PAETEC, no
condition exists that would reasonably be expected to adversely affect such qualification.

(ii1))  As of the date hereof, to the Knowledge of PAETEC, no
oral or written representation or commitment with respect to any material aspect of any PAETEC
Benefit Plan has been made to an employee or former employee of PAETEC or any of its
Subsidiaries by an authorized PAETEC employee that is not materially in accordance with the
written or otherwise pre-existing terms and provisions of such PAETEC Benefit Plan.

(iv)  There are no material unresolved claims or disputes under
the terms of, or in connection with, any PAETEC Benefit Plan (other than routine claims for
benefits), and no action, legal or otherwise, has been commenced or, to the Knowledge of
PAETEC, threatened with respect to any material claim or otherwise in connection with a
PAETEC Benefit Plan.

(v) No PAETEC Benefit Plan provides health benefits
(whether or not insured) with respect to employees or former employees of PAETEC or any of
its Subsidiaries after retirement or other termination of service, other than coverage mandated by
Applicable Law or benefits the full cost of which is borne by the employee or former employee.

(vi)  Neither the negotiation and execution of this Agreement
nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby shall (either alone or upon the
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occurrence of any additional or subsequent events) constitute an event under any PAETEC
Benefit Plan that will or may result in any payment (whether of severance pay or otherwise),
acceleration of payment, forgiveness of indebtedness, vesting, distribution, increase in benefits
or obligation to fund benefits with respect to any employee or former employee of PAETEC or
any of its Subsidiaries or limit the ability to amend or terminate any PAETEC Benefit Plan or
related trust. There is no contract, agreement, plan or arrangement with an employee or former
employee of PAETEC to which PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries is a party as of the date of
this Agreement that, individually or collectively and as a result of the transactions contemplated
hereby (whether alone or upon the occurrence of any additional or subsequent events) would

give rise to the payment of any amount that would not be deductible pursuant to Section 280G of
the Code.

() Taxes. Except as may be disclosed in the PAETEC Reports:

(1) Each of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries has (A) duly and
timely filed (or there have been filed on its behalf) all material Tax Returns (as defined in
Section 3.1(j)(x1)) required to be filed by it (taking into account all applicable extensions) with
the appropriate Tax Authority (as defined in Section 3.1(j)(xi)) and all such Tax Returns are true,
correct and complete in all material respects, (B) timely paid (or there has been paid on its behalf)
in full all material Taxes required to be paid by it, (C) made adequate provision in accordance
with GAAP (or provision has been made on its behalf) for the payment of all material Taxes not
yet due and (D) complied with all Applicable Laws relating to the payment and withholding of
Taxes.

(11) There are no material Liens for Taxes upon any property or
assets of PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries, except for Liens for Taxes not yet due and payable
or for which adequate reserves have been provided in accordance with GAAP in the most recent
financial statements contained in the PAETEC Reports issued prior to the date of this Agreement.

(ii1)  There is no audit, examination, refund litigation, proposed
adjustment or matter in controversy with respect to any Taxes or Tax Return of PAETEC or any
of its Subsidiaries. Neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has received written notice of
any claim made by a Governmental Entity in a jurisdiction where PAETEC or any of its
Subsidiaries, as applicable, does not file a Tax Return, that PAETEC or such Subsidiary is or
may be subject to taxation by that jurisdiction.

(iv)  All material Tax Returns of PAETEC and each of its
Subsidiaries, including any predecessors thereof, have been examined by the applicable Tax
Authority or the applicable statutes of limitations for the assessment of income Taxes for such
periods have expired for all periods through and including December 31, 2001, and no
deficiencies were asserted as a result of such examinations which have not been resolved and
fully paid or accrued as a liability on the most recent financial statements contained in the
PAETEC Reports issued prior to the date of this Agreement.

(v) There are no outstanding requests, agreements, consents or
waivers to extend the statutory period of limitations applicable to the assessment of any Taxes or
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deficiencies against PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries, and no power of attorney granted by
either PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries with respect to any Taxes is currently in force.

(vi)  Neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to
any agreement providing for the allocation, indemnification or sharing of Taxes (other than any
agreements solely between or among PAETEC and its Subsidiaries), and neither PAETEC nor
any of its Subsidiaries (A) has been a member of an affiliated group (or similar state, local or
foreign filing group) filing a consolidated income Tax Return (other than a group the common
parent of which is PAETEC) or (B) has any liability for the Taxes of any Person (other than
PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries) under Treasury Regulation-§ 1.1502-6 (or any similar
provision of state, local or foreign law), as a transferee or successor, by contract or otherwise.

(vit)  Neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has (A) agreed
to make nor is it required to make any material adjustment under Section 481(a) of the Code by
reason of a change in accounting method or otherwise; or (B) constituted either a "distributing
corporation” or a "controlled corporation” (within the meaning of Section 355(a)(1)}(A) of the
Code) in a distribution of stock qualifying for tax-free treatment under Section 355 of the Code
(x) in the two years prior to the date of this Agreement or (y) in a distribution which could
otherwise constitute part of a "plan" or "series of related transactions” (within the meaning of
Section 355(e) of the Code) in connection with the Mergers.

(viii)) PAETEC is not, and has not been, a United States real
property holding corporation (as defined in Section 897(c)(2) of the Code) during the applicable
period specified in Section 897(c)(1)(A)(i1) of the Code.

(ix)  No closing agreements, private letter rulings, technical
advice memoranda or similar agreements or rulings have been entered into or issued by any Tax
Authority with respect to PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries within five years of the date of this
Agreement, and no such agreement or ruling has been applied for and is currently pending.

(x) Neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has entered
into a "listed transaction" within the meaning of Treasury Regulation § 1.6011-4(b)(2).

(xi)  For the purposes of this Agreement: "Taxes" means any
and all federal, state, local, foreign or other taxes of any kind (together with any and all interest,
penalties, additions to tax and additional amounts imposed with respect thereto) imposed by any
Govermnmental Entity, including taxes or other charges on or with respect to income, franchises,
windfall or other profits, gross receipts, property, sales, use, capital stock, payroll, employment,
unemployment, social security, workers' compensation, or net worth, and taxes or other charges
in the nature of excise, withholding, ad valorem or value added; "Tax Authority" means the IRS
and any other domestic or foreign Governmental Entity responsible for the administration or
collection of any Taxes; and "Tax Return" means any return, report or similar statement
(including the attached schedules) required to be filed with respect to Taxes, including any
information return, claim for refund, amended return, or declaration of estimated Taxes.

(k) Affiliate Transactions. Except as may be disclosed in the

PAETEC Reports:
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(1) As of the date of this Agreement, (A) there are no currently
effective transactions, arrangements or Contracts between PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, on the
one hand, and its Affiliates (as defined in Section 8.3(a)) (other than its wholly-owned
Subsidiaries) or other Persons, on the other hand, that would be required to be disclosed under
[tem 404 of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act, assuming PAETEC was subject to such
regulation, and (B) PAETEC is not subject to any binding obligations with respect to any such
transactions, arrangements or Contracts.

(1)  There are no personal loans, within the meaning of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ("SOX"), outstanding pursuant to which PAETEC or any of its
Subsidiaries has extended credit to any executive officer or director of PAETEC or any of its
Subsidiaries.

D Environmental Matters.

(1) Except as may be disclosed in the PAETEC Reports and
except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have or reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole: (i) the operations of
PAETEC and its Subsidiaries are, and, except for matters that have been fully resolved with the
applicable Governmental Entity, at all times have been, in compliance with all applicable
Environmental Laws (as defined in Section 8.3(d)), including possession and compliance with
the terms of all licenses, permits, registrations, approvals, certifications and consents required by
Environmental Laws ("Environmental Permits"); (ii) there are no pending or, to the Knowledge
of PAETEC, threatened claims, suits, governmental investigation requests, actions,
investigations or proceedings under or pursuant to Environmental Laws ("Environmental
Claims") against PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries or involving any real property currently
owned, operated or leased or other sites at which Hazardous Materials (as defined in
Section 8.3(g)) were disposed of, or allegedly disposed of, by PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries;
(iii) to the Knowledge of PAETEC, there are no pending or threatened Environmental Claims
involving any real property formerly owned, operated or leased by PAETEC or any of its
Subsidiaries; (iv) to the Knowledge of PAETEC, PAETEC and its Subsidiaries have no
Environmental Liabilities (as defined in Section 8.3(¢e)) and have received no written allegations
of any Environmental Liabilities, and, to the Knowledge of PAETEC, no facts, circumstances or
conditions relating to, arising from, associated with or attributable to any real property currently
or formerly owned, operated or leased by PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries or operations
thereon has resulted in or would reasonably be expected to result in Environmental Liabilities;
and (v) all real property owned or operated by PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries is free of
contamination from Hazardous Materials.

(i1) PAETEC and its Subsidiaries have furnished to US LEC
copies of all environmental audits and other material documents in their possession or under their
control that relate to the environmental condition of any real property currently or formerly
owned, operated or leased by PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries or compliance by PAETEC or
any of its Subsidiaries with Environmental Laws.

(m) Intellectual Property. Except as may be disclosed in the PAETEC
Reports with respect to the matters set forth in this Section 3.1(m) (other than Section 3.1(m)(i)):
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(1) Section 3.1(m)(i) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule sets
forth a true and complete list of all Intellectual Property registrations and applications for
registration owned by PAETEC or its Subsidiaries other than registrations and applications for
registration related to trade names and business names.

(i1) Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have,
or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole:

(A)  PAETEC or a Subsidiary of PAETEC is the sole
and exclusive owner of or has a valid license to use or otherwise possesses, free and clear
of all Liens except Permitted Liens (as defined in Section 8.3(p)), all Intellectual Property
used in or necessary for the conduct of the business of PAETEC and/or its Subsidiaries as
currently conducted;

(B)  all Intellectual Property set forth on Section
3.1(m)(i) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule is valid, enforceable, in full force and
effect and has not been abandoned or canceled, and no claims are pending or, to the
Knowledge of PAETEC, have been threatened challenging the validity of such
Intellectual Property or PAETEC's and its Subsidiaries' ownership thereof;

(C)  PAETEC or a Subsidiary of PAETEC has the right
to bring actions for the infringement, misappropriation or other violation of all
Intellectual Property owned by PAETEC or its Subsidiaries;

(D)  to the Knowledge of PAETEC, the conduct of the
business and operations of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries as currently conducted does not
infringe or otherwise conflict with, and as previously conducted has not infringed or
otherwise conflicted with, the rights of any Person in respect of any Intellectual Property;
no claim has been made, is pending, or, to the Knowledge of PAETEC, is threatened that
the conduct of the business and operations of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries as previously
conducted and as currently conducted violated or violates the asserted rights of any
Person; and no licensing requests or other demands or notices of any kind have been
made to PAETEC or its Subsidiaries with respect to any Intellectual Property used by
PAETEC or its Subsidiaries in their business or operations as previously conducted or
currently conducted;

(E)  tothe Knowledge of PAETEC, none of the
Intellectual Property owned by PAETEC or its Subsidiaries is being infringed or
otherwise violated by a third Person, no claims, suits, arbitrations or other adversarial
proceedings have been brought or threatened against any Person by PAETEC or any of
its Subsidiaries, and none of the Intellectual Property owned by PAETEC or its
Subsidiaries is subject to any outstanding order by or with any court, tribunal, arbitrator
or other Governmental Entity;

(F) PAETEC and its Subsidiaries have taken all
appropriate and timely actions reasonably necessary to ensure full ownership (including
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by assignment from employees where appropriate and from other Persons performing
services for PAETEC or any its Subsidiaries), protection and enforceability of all
[ntellectual Property owned by PAETEC or its Subsidiaries under any Applicable Law
(including by making and maintaining in full force and effect all necessary filings,
registrations and issuances);

(G) PAETEC and its Subsidiaries have taken all
appropriate actions reasonably necessary to maintain the secrecy of all non-public
Intellectual Property, including trade secrets, used in the business of PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries (including by requiring the execution of confidentiality agreements by
employees or any other Person to whom such Intellectual Property has been made
available).

(iii))  The consummation of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement will not result in the loss or impairment of or payment of any additional amounts
with respect to the right of PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries to own or use any Intellectual
Property, other than any such losses, impairments, payments, conflicts, or failure to obtain
consents, which, individually or in the aggregate, would not have, or reasonably be expected to
have, a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(n) Compliance with Communications Laws. Except as may be
disclosed in the PAETEC Reports:

(1) The operations of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries are in
compliance in all material respects with the terms and conditions of the Communications Act of
1934, as amended (the "Communications Act"), applicable state laws and the published rules and
regulations and policies promulgated thereunder by any Governmental Entity (collectively, the
"Communications Laws"), and neither PAETEC nor its Subsidiaries has done anything or failed
to do anything which reasonably could be expected to cause the loss of any PAETEC Licenses or
Permits granted pursuant to applicable Communications Laws.

(i1) No petition, action, investigation, notice of violation or
apparent liability, notice of forfeiture, order to show cause, complaint, or proceeding seeking to
revoke, reconsider the grant of, cancel, suspend or modify any of the PAETEC Licenses or
Permits granted pursuant to applicable Communications Laws is pending or, to the Knowledge
of PAETEC, threatened before any Governmental Entity. No notices have been received by and
no claims have been filed against PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries alleging failure to hold any
requisite permits, regulatory approvals, licenses and other authorizations issued pursuant to
applicable Communications Laws.

(0) Brokers. Except for fees payable to Merrill Lynch & Co.
("Merrill"), The Blackstone Group ("Blackstone") and Capitalink, L.C., no broker, investment
banker, financial advisor, intermediary or other Person is entitled to any broker's, finder's,
financial advisor's or other similar fee or commission in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of PAETEC.
PAETEC has previously delivered to US LEC a true and complete copy of the engagement letter
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between Merrill and PAETEC, the engagement letter between Blackstone and PAETEC and the
engagement letter between Capitalink, L.C. and PAETEC.

(p) Opinion of Financial Advisors. PAETEC has received the opinion
of each of its financial advisors, Merrill and Capitalink, L.C., dated August 10, 2006, to the
effect that, as of such date, the PAETEC Exchange Ratio is fair, from a financial point of view,
to the holders of PAETEC Common Stock.

(9 Contracts.

(1) Except as may be disclosed in the PAETEC Reports, as of
the date of this Agreement, none of PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to or bound by
any: (A) Contract that would be required to be filed by PAETEC with the SEC pursuant to Item
601(b) (1), (2), (4) or (10) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act or Item 1.01 of Form 8-K
under the Exchange Act, assuming PAETEC was subject to such regulation or such statute; (B)
Contract with respect to material partnerships, joint ventures, acquisitions or dispositions; (C)
Contract containing covenants of PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries purporting to limit in any
material respect any material line of business, industry or geographical area in which PAETEC
or its Subsidiaries may operate or granting material exclusive rights to the counterparty thereto;
(D) Contract that, individually or in the aggregate with other Contracts, would or would
reasonably be expected to prevent, materially delay or materially impede PAETEC's ability to
timely consummate the Mergers or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement; (E)
indenture, mortgage, loan, guarantee or credit Contract under which PAETEC or any Subsidiary
of PAETEC has outstanding indebtedness or any outstanding note, bond, indenture or other
evidence of indebtedness for borrowed money or otherwise or any guaranteed indebtedness for
money borrowed by others, in each case, for or guaranteeing an amount in excess of $1,500,000,
other than any such indebtedness between PAETEC (whether as creditor or debtor) and any
wholly owned Subsidiary of PAETEC or between any wholly owned Subsidiaries of PAETEC;
(F) Contract relating to the sale, license, or lease by PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries of any
IRUs or peering arrangements; or (G) Contract specifically concerning Intellectual Property
(except for (x) non-exclusive, commercially available, off-the-shelf software programs for which
PAETEC pays an annual fee under any individual Contract of less than $1,000,000, (y) Contracts
with customers pursuant to which the customer and its Subsidiaries pay less than $1,000,000
annually under any individual Contract and (z) Contracts with data suppliers pursuant to which
PAETEC and its Subsidiaries pay fees under any individual Contract of less than $1,000,000
annually) that is material to the business of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.
Each such Contract described in clauses (A)-(G) is referred to herein as a "PAETEC Material
Contract."

(11) Each of the PAETEC Material Contracts is valid and
binding on PAETEC and each of its Subsidiaries party thereto and, to the Knowledge of
PAETEC, each other party thereto and is in full force and effect, except for such failures to be
valid and binding or to be in full force and effect that, individually or in the aggregate, have not
had, and would not reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and
its Subsidiaries taken as a whole. There is no default under any PAETEC Material Contract
either by PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries party thereto or, to the Knowledge of PAETEC, by
any other party thereto, and no event has occurred that with notice or lapse of time or both would
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constitute a default thereunder by PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries party thereto or, to the
Knowledge of PAETEC, any other party thereto, in each case except as, individually or in the
aggregate, have not had, and would not reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse
Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole. Complete and correct copies of each
PAETEC Material Contract (including any exhibits, annexes, attachments, supplements,
amendments or modifications thereto), have been delivered or made available to US LEC prior
to the date hereof.

(r) Real Property. Except as would not have or reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole,
PAETEC and its Subsidiaries own (i) good and valid title to the Owned Real Property (as
defined in Section 8.3(0)) and (ii) valid and enforceable leasehold interests with respect to the
Leased Real Property (as defined in Section 8.3(k)), in each case subject to Permitted Liens.
Except in any such case as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have or reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole,
all buildings, structures, fixtures and improvements with respect to the Owned Real Property and
the Leased Real Property (the "Improvements") of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries are in good
repair and operating condition, subject only to ordinary wear and tear, and are adequate and
suitable for the purposes for which they are presently being used or held for use, and to the
Knowledge of PAETEC, there are no facts or conditions affecting any of such Improvements
that, in the aggregate, would reasonably be expected to interfere with the current use, occupancy
or operation thereof.

(s) Right-of-Way Agreements and Network Facilities. Except as may
be disclosed in the PAETEC Reports:

(1) Except in any such case as would not, individually or in the
aggregate, have or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (A) each right-of-way agreement, license agreement or other
agreement permitting or requiring PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries to lay, build, operate,
maintain or place cable, wires, conduits or other equipment and facilities over land, underwater
or underground (each, a "Right-of~-Way Agreement") is valid, legally binding, enforceable and in
full force and effect, and neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is in breach of or default
under any Right-of-Way Agreement, (B) no event has occurred which, with notice or lapse of
time or both, would constitute a breach or default by PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries or
permit termination, modification or acceleration by any third party under any Right-of-Way
Agreement and (C) no third party has repudiated or has the right to terminate or repudiate any
Right-of-Way Agreement.

(i)  To the Knowledge of PAETEC, neither PAETEC nor any
ofits Subsidiaries is in violation of any Applicable Laws which, individually or in combination
with any others, would materially and adversely affect the ability of PAETEC or any of its
Subsidiaries to use any of the rights associated with the Right-of-Way Agreements, taken as a
whole, in the manner and scope in which such rights are now being used.
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(i)  Except in any such case as would not, individually or in the
aggregate, have, or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and
its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole:

(A)  All Owned Network Facilities (as defined in
Section 8.3(n)) and Leased Network Facilities (as defined in Section 8.3(j)): (x) are in
good working order and condition and are without any material defects ("Good
Condition") individually and in combination; (y) are, individually and in combination,
operated, installed and maintained by PAETEC, Subsidiaries of PAETEC, or their
contractors in a manner that is in compliance with (1) generally accepted industry
standards for the United States telecommunications industry ("Industry Standards"), (2)
performance requirements in service agreements with customers of PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries ("Customer Requirements"), and (3) all Applicable Laws; and (z) comply,
individually and in combination, with applicable performance standards.

(B) PAETEC owns, free of Liens other than Permitted
Liens, all right, title, and interest in Owned Network Facilities and shall maintain such
right, title and interest through the Closing Date. No third Person may revoke or
otherwise encumber or interfere with such right, title, and interest.

(C)  Each agreement under which third Persons provide
Network Facilities, including leases, licenses, [RUs and Right-of-Way Agreements (a
"Network Facility Agreement”), to which PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, is
a valid, legally binding and enforceable agreement and is in full force and effect, and
neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is in breach of or default under any Network
Facility Agreement, (y) no event has occurred which, with notice or lapse of time or both,
would constitute a breach or default by PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries or permit
termination, revocation, other interference with performance of, modification or
acceleration by any third party of any Network Facility Agreement, and (z) no third
Person has repudiated, revoked, terminated or otherwise interfered with performance of
or has the right to terminate, repudiate, revoke or otherwise interfere with the
performance of any Network Facility Agreement.

(t) Tax-Free Treatment. Neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries
has taken (or caused to be taken) any action or knows of any fact, agreement, plan or other
circumstance that would reasonably be expected to prevent the US LEC Merger together with the

PAETEC Merger from qualifying as an integrated series of transfers qualifying under Section
351 of the Code.

(u) Certain PAETEC Agreements.

(1) Each employee of PAETEC who is party to a Senior
Officer Confidentiality, Non-Solicitation, Non-Competition and Severance Agreement (a "Non-
Compete Agreement") or other agreement with PAETEC or a Subsidiary thereof listed in Section
3.1(u)(i) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule has executed and delivered to PAETEC a
document to the effect that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall not constitute a
"Change of Control Transaction" for purposes of clause (e) of the definition of "Good Reason”
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set forth in such Non-Compete Agreement or any corresponding provision of such other
agreement (each such document, a "PAETEC Senior Officer Agreement"). PAETEC has
delivered to US LEC an executed copy of each PAETEC Senior Officer Agreement.

(i)  As of the date hereof, under the terms of the Conversion
Agreement, (A) the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall not constitute a
"Corporate Transaction" for purposes of the Conversion Agreement and (B) PAETEC's
obligation under the Conversion Agreement (prior to the amendment thereof) to deliver shares of
PAETEC Common Stock to certain stockholders of PAETEC shall be replaced after the
Effective Time by an obligation of the Company to deliver to each such stockholder that number
of whole shares of Company Common Stock equal to the product of the number of shares of
PAETEC Common Stock which such stockholder would be entitled to receive under the
Conversion Agreement prior to the Effective Time multiplied by the PAETEC Exchange Ratio,
rounded down to the nearest whole share. PAETEC has delivered to US LEC an executed copy
of the Conversion Agreement.

(v) Insurance. All material insurance policies of PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries are in full force and effect and provide insurance in such amounts and against such
risks as the management of PAETEC reasonably has determined to be prudent in accordance
with industry practices or as is required by Applicable Laws. Neither PAETEC nor any of its
Subsidiaries is in material breach or default, and neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has
taken any action or failed to take any action which, with notice or the lapse of time or both,
would constitute such a breach or default, or permit termination or modification of any of the
material insurance policies of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries. True and complete copies of all
such material insurance policies have been made available to US LEC.

(w)  Customers and Suppliers.

(1) As of the date of this Agreement, neither (A) PAETEC nor
any of its Subsidiaries has received notice from any customer, or group of customers that are
under common ownership or control, that (x) accounted for at least $1,000,000 of the aggregate
products and services furnished by PAETEC and its Subsidiaries in the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005 or (y) is expected, to the Knowledge of PAETEC, to account for at least
$1,000,000 of the aggregate products and services to be furnished by PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries in the fiscal year ending December 31, 2006, in each case, that such customer (or
such group of customers) has stopped or intends to stop purchasing, or has reduced or shall
reduce purchases of, or has sought or is seeking to reduce the price it shall pay for, the products
or services of PAETEC or its Subsidiaries, nor (B) has PAETEC or any PAETEC Subsidiary
received notice from any supplier, or group of suppliers that are under common ownership or
control, that (x) accounted for at least $1,000,000 of the aggregate goods and services purchased
by PAETEC or any PAETEC Subsidiary in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 or (y) is
expected, to the Knowledge of PAETEC, to account for at least $1,000,000 of the aggregate
goods and services purchased by PAETEC and the PAETEC Subsidiaries in the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2006, in each case, that such supplier (or such group of suppliers) has
stopped or intends to stop providing goods or services to PAETEC or any PAETEC Subsidiary,
or has materially reduced or will materially reduce the supply of, or has sought or is seeking to
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materially increase the price it charges for, goods or services supplied to the PAETEC or a
PAETEC Subsidiary.

(1))  Except for requests for call detail records for billing
purposes, neither PAETEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is, as of the date hereof, involved in any
dispute with, or has received any notice of an intention to dispute from, or has received any
request for audit, accounting or review from, any Person (including a group of Persons that are
under common ownership or control) with whom PAETEC or any PAETEC Subsidiary does
business, (A) with respect to any customer, or group of customers that are under common
ownership or control, which involves an aggregate amount in excess of $1,000,000 as of the date
hereof, or (B) with respect to any supplier, or group of suppliers that are under common
ownership or control, which involves an aggregate amount in excess of $1,000,000 as of the date
hereof, relating to any transactions or commitments made, or any contracts or agreements
entered into, by PAETEC or any PAETEC Subsidiary, on one hand, and such Person, on the
other hand.

(x) Title to Property. PAETEC and each of its applicable Subsidiaries
have good, valid and marketable title to each item of material owned personal property free and
clear of all Liens other than Permitted Liens.

() PAETEC Stockholders' Agreement. The Stockholders’ Agreement,
dated as of June 12, 2006, by and among PAETEC and the other parties thereto, shall be
terminated as of the Closing pursuant to, and to the extent provided in, the PAETEC Ancillary
Agreement.

SECTION 3.2 Representations and Warranties of US LEC. Except as
disclosed in the disclosure schedule dated as of the date of this Agreement and executed and
delivered by US LEC to PAETEC concurrently with or prior to the execution and delivery by US
LEC of this Agreement, which shall make reference to the particular section or subsection of this
Agreement to which exception is being taken (it being agreed that any information set forth in
one section of such disclosure schedule shall be deemed to apply to each other section thereof to
which its relevance is reasonably apparent on its face) (the "US LEC Disclosure Schedule")), US
LEC represents and warrants to PAETEC as follows:

(a) Organization, Standing and Corporate Power; Charter Documents;

Subsidiaries.

(1) Organization, Standing and Corporate Power. US LEC and
each of its Subsidiaries is a corporation or other legal entity duly organized, validly existing and
in good standing (with respect to jurisdictions which recognize such concept) under the laws of
the jurisdiction in which it is incorporated or otherwise organized and has the requisite corporate
(or similar) power and authority and all necessary government approvals to own, lease and
operate its properties and to carry on its business as currently conducted, except for those
jurisdictions in which the failure to have such power, authority or government approvals and to
be so organized, existing or in good standing would not, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken
as a whole. Each of US LEC and each of'its Subsidiaries is duly qualified or licensed to do
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business as a foreign corporation or other legal entity and is in good standing (with respect to
jurisdictions which recognize such concept) in each jurisdiction in which the nature or conduct of
its business or the ownership, leasing or operation of its properties makes such qualification,
licensing or good standing necessary, except for those jurisdictions where the failure to be so
qualified or licensed or to be in good standing would not, individually or in the aggregate, have,
or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole.

(1) Charter Documents. Except as may be disclosed in the US
LEC SEC Documents (as defined in Section 3.2(d)(i) below), US LEC has delivered or made
available to PAETEC prior to the execution of this Agreement complete and correct copies of (A)
the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of US LEC (including all certificates of designation), as
amended and currently in effect (the "US LEC Charter"), and the Amended and Restated By-
Laws of US LEC, as amended and currently in effect (the "US LEC By-Laws," and, together
with the US LEC Charter, the "US LEC Organizational Documents"), and (B) the articles or
certificate of incorporation and bylaws or like organizational documents of each of the
Subsidiaries of US LEC, as amended and currently in effect (collectively, the "US LEC
Subsidiary Organizational Documents"), and each such instrument is in full force and effect. US
LEC is not in material violation of the US LEC Organizational Documents and no Subsidiary of
US LEC is in material violation of its US LEC Subsidiary Organizational Documents. US LEC
has made available to PAETEC complete and accurate minute books of US LEC and its
Subsidiaries except for documents with respect to consideration and/or approval of the
transactions contemplated hereby.

(111))  Subsidiaries. Except as may be disclosed in the US LEC
SEC Documents, Section 3.2(a)(iii) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule lists each of the
Subsidiaries of US LEC, including the name of each such entity, the state or jurisdiction of its
incorporation or organization and US LEC's direct or indirect interest therein. All the
outstanding shares of capital stock of, or other equity interests in, each Subsidiary of US LEC
have been validly issued and are duly authorized, fully paid and, with respect to the corporate
Subsidiaries of US LEC, nonassessable and are owned directly or indirectly by US LEC, free and
clear of all Liens and free of any other restriction (including preemptive and similar rights and
any restriction on the right to vote, sell or otherwise dispose of such capital stock or other
ownership interests).

(b) Capital Structure.

(1) The authorized capital stock of US LEC consists of
122,924,728 shares of US LEC Common Stock and 10,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, par
value $.01 per share ("US LEC Preferred Stock"), of which 364,406 shares have been designated
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. At the close of business on August 9, 2006, (A)
31,107,927 shares of US LEC Class A Common Stock (including all awards based on US LEC
Common Stock that are restricted stock granted under the US LEC 1998 Omnibus Stock Plan
(the "US LEC Stock Plan")) were issued and outstanding; (B) no shares ot US LEC Common
Stock were held by US LEC in its treasury; (C) 290,189.069 shares of US LEC Preferred Stock
were issued and outstanding; (D) warrants to purchase 3,312,445 shares of US LEC Common
Stock were issued and outstanding pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of
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December 31, 2002, among US LEC and the other parties thereto (the "Note Purchase
Agreement") and as otherwise listed in Section 3.2(b)(i) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule (the
"US LEC Warrants"); (E) 5,674,543 shares of US LEC Common Stock were reserved for
issuance in respect of outstanding options to acquire shares of US LEC Common Stock granted
under the US LEC Stock Plan (such outstanding options, collectively with all other options to
acquire shares of US LEC Common Stock issued pursuant to the US LEC Stock Plan after
August 9, 2006 and prior to the Effective Time, the "US LEC Options"), complete and correct
copies of which, in each case as amended, have been filed as exhibits to the US LEC SEC
Documents prior to the date of this Agreement or made available to PAETEC; (F) 10,308,121
shares of US LEC Common Stock were authorized for issuance upon conversion of the issued
and outstanding shares of US LEC Preferred Stock; (G) 74,216.931 shares of US LEC Preferred
Stock were reserved for issuance in respect of dividend rights of holders of issued and
outstanding US LEC Preferred Stock; and (H) 278,162 shares of US LEC Common Stock were
reserved for issuance under the US LEC Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "US LEC Purchase
Plan"). Each outstanding share of capital stock of US LEC is duly authorized, validly issued,
fully paid, nonassessable and free of preemptive rights.

(i1) All shares of US LEC Common Stock subject to issuance
under the US LEC Stock Plan, the US LEC Warrants and the US LEC Purchase Plan, upon
issuance on the terms and conditions specified in the instruments pursuant to which they are
issuable, shall be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free of
preemptive or similar rights.

(ii1))  No bonds, debentures, notes or other evidences of
indebtedness having, or exercisable, convertible or exchangeable for or into other securities
having, the right to vote on any matters on which stockholders of US LEC may vote ("US LEC
Voting Debt") are issued or outstanding as of the date of this Agreement.

(iv)  Asof August 9, 2006, except as set forth in Section 3.2(b)(i)
or as may be disclosed in the US LEC SEC Documents, there are no securities, options, warrants,
calls, rights, commitments, agreements, arrangements or undertakings of any kind to which US
LEC or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any of them is bound obligating US LEC or
any of its Subsidiaries to issue, deliver or sell, or cause to be issued, delivered or sold, additional
shares of capital stock, US LEC Voting Debt or other voting securities of US LEC or any of its
Subsidiaries, or obligating US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries to issue, grant, extend or enter into
any such security, option, warrant, call, right, commitment, agreement, arrangement or
undertaking. All outstanding shares of US LEC Common Stock and US LEC Preferred Stock,
all outstanding US LEC Options and all outstanding shares of capital stock of each Subsidiary of
US LEC have been issued and granted in compliance in all material respects with (A) all
applicable securities laws and all other Applicable Laws and (B) all requirements set forth in
applicable material Contracts.

(v) Except as disclosed in the US LEC SEC Documents,
neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any currently effective agreement (A)
restricting the purchase or transfer of, (B) relating to the voting of, (C) requiring the repurchase,
redemption or disposition of, or containing any right of first refusal with respect to, (D) requiring
registration of or (E) granting any preemptive or antidilutive rights with respect to any capital
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stock of US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries or any securities of the type referred to in Section

3.2(b)(iv).

(vi)  Other than in Subsidiaries of US LEC, or as may be
disclosed in the US LEC SEC Documents filed prior to the date hereof, as of the date hereof,
neither US LEC nor its Subsidiaries directly or indirectly beneficially owns (as such term is
defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) any securities or other beneficial ownership
interests in any other entity except for non-controlling investments made in the ordinary course
of business consistent with past practice and which are not individually or in the aggregate
material to US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. There are no outstanding contractual
obligations of US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries to make any loan to, or any equity or other
investment (in the form of a capital contribution or otherwise) in, any Subsidiary of US LEC or
any other Person, other than guarantees by US LEC of any indebtedness or other obligations of
any wholly-owned Subsidiary of US LEC and other than loans made in compliance with
Applicable Laws in the ordinary course consistent with past practice to employees of US LEC
and its Subsidiaries.

(vil)  Neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries own any shares
of capital stock of PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries.

() Authority; Board Approval; Voting Requirements; No Conflict;
Required Filings and Consents.

(1) Authority. US LEC has all requisite corporate power and
authority to enter into this Agreement, the Repurchase Agreement, the PAETEC Voting
Agreements and the Commitment Letter, to perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder and
to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution and delivery of
this Agreement, the Repurchase Agreement, the PAETEC Voting Agreements and the
Commitment Letter by US LEC and the consummation by US LEC of the transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary
corporate action on the part of US LEC, and no other corporate proceedings on the part of US
LEC and no stockholder votes are necessary for US LEC to authorize this Agreement, the
Repurchase Agreement, the PAETEC Voting Agreements or the Commitment Letter or to
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, other than, with respect to the
adoption of this Agreement and approval of the US LEC Merger and the other transactions
contemplated hereby, the approval of the Company Charter Amendment and the approval of the
New Equity Plan, the US LEC Stockholder Approval and the filing of the US LEC Certificate of
Merger with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. This Agreement, the Repurchase
Agreement, the PAETEC Voting Agreements and the Commitment Letter have been duly
executed and delivered by US LEC. Assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery of
this Agreement by PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P, and of the
Repurchase Agreement, the PAETEC Voting Agreements and the Commitment Letter by the
counterparties thereto, this Agreement, the Repurchase Agreement, the PAETEC Voting
Agreements and the Commitment Letter constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of US
LEC, enforceable against US LEC in accordance with its terms, subject to Creditors' Laws.
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(i1) Board Approval. The Board of Directors of US LEC has
(A) determined that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby are advisable and
fair to and in the best interests of US LEC and its stockholders, (B) duly approved this
Agreement, the Repurchase Agreement, the PAETEC Voting Agreements and the Commitment
Letter, and duly approved the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, which approval has
not been rescinded or modified, (C) resolved to recommend this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby, the Company Charter Amendment and the New Equity Plan to its
stockholders for adoption and approval and (D) subject to Section 5.1(b), directed that this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, the Company Charter Amendment and the
New Equity Plan be submitted to US LEC's stockholders for consideration and adoption and
approval at a duly held meeting of such stockholders in accordance with this Agreement.

(1)  Voting Requirements. The affirmative vote of holders of a
majority in voting power of the shares of US LEC Common Stock and US LEC Preferred Stock
(each share of US LEC Preferred Stock entitling its holder to vote one vote per share of US LEC
Common Stock into which it may be converted on the applicable record date), voting together as
a single class, is the only vote of the holders of any class or series of US LEC capital stock
necessary to approve and adopt this Agreement and approve and consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby, and no other vote of the holders of any class or series of US LEC capital
stock is necessary to approve and adopt this Agreement and approve and consummate the
transactions contemplated hereby. The affirmative vote of holders of a majority in voting power
of the outstanding shares of US LEC Common Stock and US LEC Preferred Stock (each share of
US LEC Preferred Stock entitling its holder to vote one vote per share of US LEC Common
Stock into which it may be converted on the applicable record date) entitled to vote and voting
together as a single class on the Company Charter Amendment at the US LEC Stockholders'
Meeting, is the only vote of the holders of any class or series of US LEC capital stock necessary
to approve the Company Charter Amendment, and no other vote of the holders of any class or
series of US LEC capital stock is necessary to approve the Company Charter Amendment. The
affirmative vote of holders of a majority in voting power of the shares of US LEC Common
Stock and US LEC Preferred Stock (each share of US LEC Preferred Stock entitling its holder to
vote one vote per share of US LEC Common Stock into which it may be converted on the
applicable record date), voting together as a single class, present or represented and entitled to
vote on the New Equity Plan at the US LEC Stockholder's Meeting, is the only vote of the
holders of any class or series of US LEC capital stock necessary to approve the New Equity Plan,
and no other vote of the holders of any class or series of US LEC capital stock 1s necessary to
approve the New Equity Plan.

(iv)  No Conflict. The execution and delivery of this Agreement,
the Repurchase Agreement, the PAETEC Voting Agreements and the Commitment Letter by US
LEC do not, and the consummation by US LEC of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby and compliance by US LEC with the provisions hereof and thereof will not, violate any
provision of law, or any order, judgment or decree of any Governmental Entity, conflict with,
result in any violation or breach of or default (with or without notice or lapse of time, or both)
under, require any consent, waiver or approval under, give rise to any right of termination or
cancellation or acceleration of any right or obligation or loss of a benefit under, or result in the
creation of any Lien upon any of the properties or assets of US LEC or any of'its Subsidiaries or
any restriction on the conduct of US LEC's business or operations under (A) the US LEC
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Organizational Documents or the US LEC Subsidiary Organizational Documents, (B) subject to
the governmental filings and other matters referred to in Section 3.2(c)(v), any Contract to which
US LEC or any Subsidiary of US LEC is a party or any US LEC Licenses or Permits (as defined
in Section 3.2(g)(i)) or (C) subject to the governmental filings and other matters referred to in
Section 3.2(c)(v), any judgment, order, decree, statute, law, ordinance, rule or regulation
applicable to US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective properties or assets, other than,
in the case of clauses (B) and (C) above, any such conflicts, violations, defaults, rights, losses,
restrictions or Liens, or failure to obtain consents, waivers or approvals, which, individually or in
the aggregate, would not have, or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on
US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(v) Required Filings or Consents. No consent, waiver, order,
authorization or approval of any Governmental Entity, and no declaration or notice to or filing or
registration with any Governmental Entity or any other Person is required to be made, obtained,
performed or given with respect to US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries in connection with the
execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Repurchase Agreement, the PAETEC Voting
Agreements and the Commitment Letter by US LEC or the consummation by US LEC of the
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, except for:

(A)  thefiling of a pre-merger notification and report
form by US LEC under the HSR Act;

(B)  the filing with the SEC of such reports and filings
under Section 13(a), 13(d), 14(a), 15(d) or 16(a) of the Exchange Act and the rules and
regulations thereunder as may be required in connection with this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby;

(C)  thereports, filings, registrations, consents,
approvals, permits, authorizations and/or notices to the FCC;

(D) thereports, filings, registrations, consents,
approvals, permits, authorizations and/or notices with or to those state public service or
public utility commissions or similar state regulatory bodies set forth in Section
3.2(c)(v)(D) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule;

(B) the filing of the US LEC Certificate of Merger with
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware and appropriate documents with
NASDAQ and the relevant authorities of other states in which US LEC is qualified to do
business, such filings as may be necessary in accordance with state securities or other
"blue sky" laws, and such filings as may be necessary to record or perfect security
interests or mortgages in personal or real property;

(F) the US LEC Stockholder Approval;

(G)  the consents, waivers, approvals, orders or
authorizations set forth in Section 3.2(c)(v)(G) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule; and
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(H)  any consent, waiver, approval, order or
authorization of, or declaration, registration or filing with, or notice to any Governmental
Entity (other than any of the foregoing addressed in clauses (A) through (G) above), the
failure of which to be made or obtained, individually or in the aggregate, would not have
or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(vi)  Independent Directors. As of the date of this Agreement,
assuming the consummation as of such date of the Mergers and the other transactions
contemplated hereby in accordance with the terms hereof, the two individuals listed in Exhibit
3.2(c)(vi) attached hereto would qualify as Independent Directors and, with respect to the
Company, would be considered to be independent directors within the meaning of Rule 10A-
3(b)(1) under the Exchange Act.

(d) SEC Documents; Financial Statements.

(1 As of the date of this Agreement, US LEC has filed with
the SEC all registration statements, prospectuses, reports, schedules, forms, certifications and
other documents (including exhibits and all other information incorporated by reference therein),
required to be so filed by US LEC from January 1, 2004 through the date of this Agreement (the
"US LEC SEC Documents"). As of their respective dates, the US LEC SEC Documents
complied in all material respects with the requirements of the Securities Act or the Exchange Act,
as the case may be, and to the extent in effect, SOX and the rules and regulations of the SEC
promulgated thereunder applicable to such US LEC SEC Documents, and none of the US LEC
SEC Documents, when filed, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state
a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein,
in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, except to the extent
corrected by a subsequently filed US LEC SEC Document. No Subsidiary of US LEC is subject
to the periodic reporting requirements of the Exchange Act.

(i1) Each principal executive officer of US LEC and each
principal financial officer of US LEC (or each former principal executive officer of US LEC and
each former principal financial officer of US LEC, as applicable) has made all certifications
required from time to time by Rule 13a-14 or 15d-14 under the Exchange Act or Sections 302
and 906 of SOX and the rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder with respect to
the US LEC SEC Documents. For purposes of the preceding sentence, "principal executive
officer" and "principal financial officer" shall have the meanings given to such terms in SOX.

(ii1))  The financial statements of US LEC included in the US
LEC SEC Documents comply, and all registration statements, prospectuses, reports, schedules,
forms, certificates and other documents (including exhibits and all other information
incorporated by reference therein but excluding the Joint Proxy Statement and the Form S-4,
which are addressed in Section 3.2(¢e) below) filed with the SEC after the date hereof until the
Effective Time, will comply, as of their respective dates of filing with the SEC, in all material
respects with applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the
SEC with respect thereto, have been and will be prepared in accordance with GAAP (except, in
the case of unaudited statements, as permitted by Form 10-Q or 8-K or other applicable rules of

40

553062.07-New York Server 3A - MSW



the SEC) applied on a consistent basis during the periods involved (except as may be indicated in
the notes thereto) and fairly present and will fairly present the consolidated financial position of
US LEC and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof and the consolidated results of
their operations and cash flows for the periods then ended or ending (subject, in the case of
unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments and the lack of footnote disclosure).
The financial books and records of US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, are true and
correct in all material respects. There has been no change in US LEC accounting policies from
January 1, 2004 through the date hereof except as described in the notes to the financial
statements included in the US LEC SEC Documents.

(iv)  Except as reflected or reserved against in the balance sheet
of US LEC as of March 31, 2006 included in the Form 10-Q filed by US LEC with the SEC on
May 15, 2006 (including the notes thereto, the "US LEC Balance Sheet"), neither US LEC nor
any of its Subsidiaries has any liabilities or obligations of any nature (whether absolute, accrued,
known or unknown, contingent or otherwise) nor, to the Knowledge of US LEC, does any basis
exist therefor, other than liabilities or obligations that (A) were incurred since April 1, 2006 in
the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and, individually or in the aggregate,
have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US
LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (B) individually or in the aggregate, have not had and
would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (C) were incurred pursuant to this Agreement or the
transactions contemplated hereby.

v) US LEC has established and maintains a system of
"disclosure controls and procedures” and "internal control over financial reporting” (as such
terms are defined in paragraphs (e) and (f), respectively, of Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act)
sufficient to provide reasonable assurance (i) that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP, (ii) that transactions are
executed only in accordance with the authorization of management and (iii) regarding prevention
or timely detection of the unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of US LEC's assets. As of
the date of this Agreement, (x) there are no "material weaknesses" (as defined by the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board) and (y) there is no series of multiple "significant
deficiencies" (as defined by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board) that is reasonably
likely to collectively represent a "material weakness" in the design or operation of US LEC's
internal control over financial reporting.

(vi)  Except as set forth on the US LEC Balance Sheet or as may
be disclosed in the US LEC SEC Documents, neither of US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries is
directly or indirectly liable upon or with respect to (by discount, repurchase agreements or
otherwise), or obliged in any other way to provide funds in respect of, or to guarantee or assume,
any debt, obligation or dividend of any Person, except endorsements in the ordinary course of
business in connection with the deposit, in banks or other financial institutions, of items for
collection.

(e) Information Supplied. None of the information supplied or to be
supplied by or on behalf of US LEC for inclusion or incorporation by reference in (i) the Form S-
4 shall, at the time the Form S-4 becomes effective under the Securities Act, contain any untrue
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statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements therein not misleading or (ii) the Joint Proxy Statement shall, at
the date it is first mailed to US LEC's stockholders or at the time of the US LEC Stockholders'
Meeting, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of
the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading. The Joint Proxy Statement and
the Form S-4 shall comply as to form in all material respects with the requirements of the
Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder. Notwithstanding
the foregoing provisions of this Section 3.2(e), no representation or warranty is made by US LEC
with respect to information or statements made or incorporated by reference in the Form S-4 or
the Joint Proxy Statement which were not supplied in writing by or on behalf of US LEC.

) Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Except as may be disclosed
in the US LEC SEC Documents:

(1) Since December 31, 2005 through the date hereof, except
for liabilities incurred pursuant to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby:

(A)  US LEC and its Subsidiaries have conducted their
business only in the ordinary course consistent with past practice;

(B) there has not been any split, combination or
reclassification of any of US LEC's capital stock or any declaration, setting aside or
payment of any dividend on, or other distribution (whether in cash, stock or property) in
respect of, in lieu of or in substitution for, shares of US LEC's capital stock;

(C)  except as required by a change in GAAP, there has
not been any change in financial accounting methods, principles or practices (including
any change in depreciation or amortization policies or rates) by US LEC;

(D) there has not been any action taken by US LEC or
any of its Subsidiaries that, if taken during the period from the date of this Agreement
through the Effective Time, would constitute a breach of Section 4.1(a), other than
actions in connection with entering into this Agreement;

(E)  neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has sold
or transferred any of its material assets, including any sale, license or lease of any
Network Facilities, IRUs, or cancelled any material debts or claims or waived any
material rights; and

(F) neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has
discontinued the offering of any material services or material products.

(i1) Since December 31, 2005 through the date hereof, there
have not been any changes, circumstances or events that, individually or in the aggregate, have
had, or would reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.
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(2) Compliance with Applicable Laws; Permits: Litigation. Except as
may be disclosed in the US LEC SEC Documents:

(1) US LEC, its Subsidiaries and their respective employees
hold all authorizations, permits, licenses, certificates, easements, concessions, franchises,
variances, exemptions, orders, consents, registrations, approvals and clearances of all
Governmental Entities and third Persons which are required for US LEC and its Subsidiaries to
own, lease and operate its properties and other assets and to carry on their respective businesses
in the manner described in the US LEC SEC Documents filed prior to the date hereof and as they
are being conducted as of the date hereof (the "US LEC Licenses or Permits"), and all US LEC
Licenses or Permits are valid and in full force and effect, except where the failure to have, or the
suspension or cancellation of, or the failure to be valid or in full force and effect of, any such US
LEC Licenses or Permits, individually or in the aggregate, would not have, or reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(ii) US LEC and its Subsidiaries are, and have been at all times
since January 1, 2004, in compliance with the terms of the US LEC Licenses or Permits and all
Applicable Laws relating to US LEC and its Subsidiaries or their respective businesses, assets or
properties, except where the failure to be in compliance with the terms of the US LEC Licenses
or Permits or such Applicable Laws, individually or in the aggregate, would not have, or
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken
as a whole. Since January 1, 2004, neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any
written notification from any Governmental Entity (A) asserting that US LEC or any of its
Subsidiaries is not in compliance with, or at any time since such date has failed to comply with,
Applicable Laws (except for any such lack of compliance which, individually or in the aggregate,
would not have, or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole) or (B) threatening to revoke any of the US LEC Licenses or
Permits (except for any such revocation which, individually or in the aggregate, would not have,
or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole) nor, to the Knowledge of US LEC, does any basis exist therefor. As of the
date hereof, no investigation or review by any Governmental Entity is pending or, to the
Knowledge of US LEC, has been threatened in writing against US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries,
which, individually or in the aggregate, would have, or reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(i)  US LEC is, and has been, in material compliance in all
material respects with the provisions of SOX applicable to it.

(iv)  No action, audit, demand, claim, suit, proceeding,
requirement or investigation by any Governmental Entity, and no suit, action, mediation,
arbitration or proceeding by any Person, against or affecting US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries
or any of their respective properties, including Intellectual Property, is pending or, to the
Knowledge of US LEC, threatened which, individually or in the aggregate, would reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(v) Neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is, or at any
time since January 1, 2004 has been, subject to any outstanding order, injunction or decree which,
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individually or in the aggregate, has had or would reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(vi)  There are no material unresolved complaints, claims or
disputes, or litigation or threatened litigation, between US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries and any
inter-exchange carrier, local exchange carrier, wireless carrier or Voice over Internet Protocol
provider, challenging any access charges or other inter-carrier compensation billed, allegedly
owed, or paid, by or to US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries for the origination or termination of
any interstate, intrastate, or local telecommunications traffic, including any traffic received from
or delivered to any third-party carrier or provider or its end user(s).

(vil)  No material US LEC Licenses or Permits will be
terminated or impaired or become terminable, in whole or in part, as a result of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, provided that the notices and approvals set forth in Section
3.2(c)}(v)(D) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule have been given or received, as appropriate.

(viii)) The revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities on the books
of US LEC and any of its Subsidiaries (including any related adjustments or reserves) accurately
reflect, subject to GAAP, the reasonable likelihood and extent, under applicable tariffs,
agreements and Communications Laws, that any intercarrier compensation billed or anticipated
by US LEC or its Subsidiaries will be collected, and the reasonable likelihood that, and the
extent to which, US LEC or its Subsidiaries will be required to pay any intercarrier compensation
(whether or not already billed or claimed), including whether US LEC or its Subsidiaries will be
required to refund any material intercarrier compensation amounts previously billed and
collected or anticipated to be billed and collected by US LEC or its Subsidiaries as a result of
their operations.

(ix)  US LEC is in compliance with the NASDAQ Marketplace
Rules applicable to it.

(h) Labor and Other Employment Matters. Except as may be
disclosed in the US LEC SEC Documents, neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries 1s a party
to, or bound by, any collective bargaining agreement. Except as would not have, or reasonably
be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Eftect on US LEC and
its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole: (i) US LEC and its Subsidiaries are in compliance in all
material respects with all Applicable Laws respecting employment and employments practices
and terms and conditions of employment; (i1) neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has
received written notice of any charge or complaint against US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries
pending before the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the National Labor Relations
Board, or any other Governmental Entity regarding an unlawful employment practice; (iii) there
is no labor strike, lockout, slowdown or stoppage pending or, to the Knowledge of US LEC,
threatened or being carried out against US LEC or its Subsidiaries; and (iv) neither US LEC nor
any of its Subsidiaries has received written notice that any representation or certification petition
respecting the employees of US LEC or its Subsidiaries has been filed with the National Labor
Relations Board or analogous Governmental Entity.
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() Benefit Plans. Except as may be disclosed in the US LEC SEC
Documents with respect to the matters set forth in this Section 3.2(i) (other than the first sentence
of Section 3.2(i)(1)):

(1) Section 3.2(1)(i) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule sets
forth a true and complete list of each material bonus, pension, profit sharing, deferred
compensation, incentive compensation, stock ownership, stock purchase, stock option or other
equity compensation, phantom stock, stock-related or performance award, retirement, vacation,
severance or termination pay, change in control, retention, disability, death benefit,
hospitalization, medical, life insurance, loan, disability, and other similar material plan,
agreement, policy or arrangement, including each "employee benefit plan" within the meaning of
Section 3(3) of ERISA, each material employment agreement, consulting agreement, termination
or severance agreement, and each other employee benefit plan, fund, program, agreement or
arrangement, in each case, that is sponsored, maintained or contributed to or required to be
contributed to by US LEC or by any ERISA Affiliate, that together with US LEC would be
deemed a "single employer" within the meaning of Section 4001(b) of ERISA, or to which US
LEC or an ERISA Aftiliate of US LEC is party, whether written or oral, for the benefit of any
current or former employee, officer or director of US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries (the "US
LEC Benefit Plans"). None of the US LEC Benetfit Plans is subject to Title [V of ERISA. With
respect to the US LEC Benefit Plans, no event has occurred, and there exists no condition or set
of circumstances, which has, or would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect
on US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. Neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries
nor, to the Knowledge of US LEC, any other Person, has any express commitment, whether
legally enforceable or not, to modify, change or terminate any US LEC Benefit Plan, other than
with respect to a modification, change or termination required by ERISA or the Code, or any
other Applicable Law or administrative changes that do not increase the liabilities or obligations
under any such plans.

(i1) Each US LEC Benefit Plan has been, in all material
respects, administered and operated in accordance with its terms and Applicable Law, including
ERISA and the Code. Each US LEC Benefit Plan intended to be "qualified" within the meaning
of Section 401(a) of the Code is so qualified and the trusts maintained thereunder are exempt
from taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code, and, to the Knowledge of US LEC, no condition
exists that would reasonably be expected to adversely affect such qualification.

(iii)  As of the date hereof, to the Knowledge of US LEC, no
oral or written representation or commitment with respect to any material aspect of any US LEC
Benefit Plan has been made to an employee or former employee of US LEC or any of its
Subsidiaries by an authorized US LEC employee that is not materially in accordance with the
written or otherwise pre-existing terms and provisions of such US LEC Benefit Plan.

(iv)  There are no material unresolved claims or disputes under
the terms of, or in connection with, any US LEC Benefit Plan (other than routine claims for
benefits), and no action, legal or otherwise, has been commenced or, to the Knowledge of US
LEC, threatened with respect to any material claim or otherwise in connection with a US LEC
Benefit Plan.
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(v) No US LEC Benefit Plan provides health benefits (whether
or not insured) with respect to employees or former employees of US LEC or any of its
Subsidiaries after retirement or other termination of service, other than coverage mandated by
Applicable Law or benefits the full cost of which is borne by the employee or former employee.

(vi)  Neither the negotiation and execution of this Agreement
nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby shall (either alone or upon the
occurrence of any additional or subsequent events) constitute an event under any US LEC
Benefit Plan that will or may result in any payment (whether of severance pay or otherwise),
acceleration of payment, forgiveness of indebtedness, vesting, distribution, increase in benefits
or obligation to fund benefits with respect to any employee or former employee of US LEC or
any of its Subsidiaries or limit the ability to amend or terminate any US LEC Benefit Plan or
related trust. There is no contract, agreement, plan or arrangement with an employee or former
employee of US LEC to which US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries is a party as of the date of this
Agreement that, individually or collectively, and as a result of the transactions contemplated
hereby (whether alone or upon the occurrence of any additional or subsequent events), would
give rise to the payment of any amount that would not be deductible pursuant to Section 280G of
the Code.

() Taxes. Except as may be disclosed in the US LEC SEC
Documents:

(1) Each of US LEC and its Subsidiaries has (A) duly and
timely filed (or there have been filed on its behalf) all material Tax Returns required to be filed
by it (taking into account all applicable extensions) with the appropriate Tax Authority and all
such Tax Returns are true, correct and complete in all material respects, (B) timely paid (or there
has been paid on its behalf) in full all material Taxes required to be paid by it, (C) made adequate
provision in accordance with GAAP (or provision has been made on its behalf) for the payment
of all material Taxes not yet due and (D) complied with all Applicable Laws relating to the
payment and withholding of Taxes.

(i1) There are no material Liens for Taxes upon any property or
assets of US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries, except for Liens for Taxes not yet due and payable
or for which adequate reserves have been provided in accordance with GAAP in the US LEC
financial statements provided prior to the date of this Agreement.

(iii)  There is no audit, examination, refund litigation, proposed
adjustment or matter in controversy with respect to any Taxes or Tax Return of US LEC or any
of its Subsidiaries. Neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has received written notice of
any claim made by a Governmental Entity in a jurisdiction where US LEC or any of its
Subsidiaries, as applicable, does not file a Tax Return, that US LEC or such Subsidiary is or may
be subject to taxation by that jurisdiction.

(iv)  All material Tax Returns of US LEC and each of its
Subsidiaries, including any predecessors thereof, have been examined by the applicable Tax
Authority or the applicable statutes of limitations for the assessment of income Taxes for such
periods have expired for all periods through and including December 31, 2001, and no
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deficiencies were asserted as a result of such examinations which have not been resolved and
fully paid or accrued as a liability on the US LEC financial statements provided prior to the date
of this Agreement.

(v) There are no outstanding requests, agreements, consents or
waivers to extend the statutory period of limitations applicable to the assessment of any Taxes or
deficiencies against US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries, and no power of attorney granted by
either US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries with respect to any Taxes is currently in force.

(vi)  Neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any
agreement providing for the allocation, indemnification or sharing of Taxes (other than any
agreements solely between or among US LEC and its Subsidiaries), and neither US LEC nor any
of its Subsidiaries (A) has been a member of an affiliated group (or similar state, local or foreign
filing group) filing a consolidated income Tax Return (other than a group the common parent of
which is US LEC) or (B) has any liability for the Taxes of any Person (other than US LEC or any
of its Subsidiaries) under Treasury Regulation § 1.1502-6 (or any similar provision of state, local
or foreign law), as a transferee or successor, by contract or otherwise.

(vii)  Neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has (A) agreed
to make nor is it required to make any material adjustment under Section 481(a) of the Code by
reason of a change in accounting method or otherwise; or (B) constituted either a "distributing
corporation” or a "controlled corporation" (within the meaning of Section 355(a)(1)(A) of the
Code) in a distribution of stock qualifying for tax-free treatment under Section 355 of the Code
(x) in the two years prior to the date of this Agreement or (y) in a distribution which could
otherwise constitute part of a "plan" or "series of related transactions" (within the meaning of
Section 355(e) of the Code) in connection with the Mergers.

(viii) US LEC is not, and has not been, a United States real
property holding corporation (as defined in Section 897(c)(2) of the Code) during the applicable
period specified in Section 897(c)(1)(A)(ii) of the Code.

(ix)  No closing agreements, private letter rulings, technical
advice memoranda or similar agreements or rulings have been entered into or issued by any Tax
Authority with respect to US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries within five years of the date of this
Agreement, and no such agreement or ruling has been applied for and is currently pending.

(x) Neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has entered into
a "listed transaction" within the meaning of Treasury Regulation § 1.6011-4(b)(2).

(k) Affiliate Transactions. Except as may be disclosed in the US LEC

SEC Documents:

i) As of the date of this Agreement, (A) there are no currently
effective transactions, arrangements or Contracts between US LEC and its Subsidiaries, on the
one hand, and its Affiliates (other than its wholly-owned Subsidiaries) or other Persons, on the
other hand, that would be required to be disclosed under Item 404 of Regulation S-K under the
Securities Act and that have not been heretofore disclosed in the US LEC SEC Documents, and
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(B) US LEC is not subject to any binding obligations with respect to any such transactions,
arrangements or Contracts.

(1)  There are no personal loans, within the meaning of SOX,
outstanding pursuant to which US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries has extended credit to any

executive officer or director of US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries.

) Environmental Matters.

(1) Except as may be disclosed in the US LEC SEC
Documents and except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole: (i) the
operations of US LEC and its Subsidiaries are, and, except for matters that have been fully
resolved with the applicable Governmental Entity, at all times have been, in compliance with all
applicable Environmental Laws, including possession and compliance with the terms of all
Environmental Permits; (i1) there are no pending or, to the Knowledge of US LEC, threatened
Environmental Claims against US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries or involving any real property
currently owned, operated or leased or other sites at which Hazardous Materials were disposed of,
or allegedly disposed of, by US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries; (iii) to the Knowledge of US
LEC, there are no pending or threatened Environmental Claims involving any real property
formerly owned, operated or leased by US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries; (iv) to the Knowledge
of US LEC, US LEC and its Subsidiaries have no Environmental Liabilities and have received
no written allegations of any Environmental Liabilities, and, to the Knowledge of US LEC, no
facts, circumstances or conditions relating to, arising from, associated with or attributable to any
real property currently or formerly owned, operated or leased by US LEC or any of its
Subsidiaries or operations thereon has resulted in or would reasonably be expected to result in
Environmental Liabilities; and (v) all real property owned or operated by US LEC or any of its
Subsidiaries is free of contamination from Hazardous Materials.

(i1) US LEC and its Subsidiaries have furnished to PAETEC
copies of all environmental audits and other material documents in their possession or under their
control that relate to the environmental condition of any real property currently or formerly
owned, operated or leased by US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries or compliance by US LEC or
any of its Subsidiaries with Environmental Laws.

(m) Intellectual Property. Except as may be disclosed in the US LEC
SEC Documents with respect to the matters set forth in this Section 3.2(m) (other than Section
3.2(m)(i)}):

(1) Section 3.2(m)(i) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule sets
forth a true and complete list of all Intellectual Property registrations and applications for
registration owned by US LEC or its Subsidiaries other than registrations and applications for
registration related to trade names and business names.

(i1) Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have,
or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole:
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(A)  US LEC or a Subsidiary of US LEC is the sole and
exclusive owner of or has a valid license to use or otherwise possesses, free and clear of
all Liens except Permitted Liens, all Intellectual Property used in or necessary for the
conduct of the business of US LEC and/or its Subsidiaries as currently conducted;

(B)  all Intellectual Property set forth on Section
3.2(m)(i) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule is valid, enforceable, in full force and
effect and has not been abandoned or cancelled, and no claims are pending or, to the
Knowledge of US LEC, have been threatened challenging the validity of such Intellectual
Property or US LEC's and its Subsidiaries' ownership thereof;

(C)  US LEC or a Subsidiary of US LEC has the right to
bring actions for the infringement, misappropriation or other violation of all Intellectual
Property owned by US LEC or its Subsidiaries;

(D)  to the Knowledge of US LEC, the conduct of the
business and operations of US LEC and its Subsidiaries as currently conducted does not
infringe or otherwise conflict with, and as previously conducted has not infringed or
otherwise conflicted with, the rights of any Person in respect of any Intellectual Property;
no claim has been made, is pending, or, to the Knowledge of US LEC, is threatened that
the conduct of the business and operations of US LEC and its Subsidiaries as previously
conducted and as currently conducted violated or violates the asserted rights of any
Person; and no licensing requests or other demands or notices of any kind have been
made to US LEC or its Subsidiaries with respect to any Intellectual Property used by US
LEC or its Subsidiaries in their business or operations as previously conducted or
currently conducted;

(E)  to the Knowledge of US LEC, none of the
Intellectual Property owned by US LEC or its Subsidiaries is being infringed or otherwise
violated by a third Person, no claims, suits, arbitrations or other adversarial proceedings
have been brought or threatened against any Person by US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries,
and none of the Intellectual Property owned by US LEC or its Subsidiaries is subject to
any outstanding order by or with any court, tribunal, arbitrator or other Governmental
Entity;

(F)  US LEC and its Subsidiaries have taken all
appropriate and timely actions reasonably necessary to ensure full ownership (including
by assignment from employees where appropriate and from other Persons performing
services for US LEC or any its Subsidiaries), protection and enforceability of all
Intellectual Property owned by US LEC or its Subsidiaries under any Applicable Law
(including by making and maintaining in full force and effect all necessary filings,
registrations and issuances);

(G)  US LEC and its Subsidiaries have taken all
appropriate actions reasonably necessary to maintain the secrecy of all non-public
Intellectual Property, including trade secrets, used in the business of US LEC and its
Subsidiaries (including by requiring the execution of confidentiality agreements by
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employees or any other Person to whom such Intellectual Property has been made
available).

(1)  The consummation of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement will not result in the loss or impairment of or payment of any additional amounts
with respect to the right of US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries to own or use any Intellectual
Property, other than any such losses, impairments, payments, conflicts, or failure to obtain
consents, which, individually or in the aggregate, would not have, or reasonably be expected to
have, a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(n) Compliance with Communications Laws. Except as may be
disclosed in the US LEC SEC Documents:

(1) The operations of US LEC and its Subsidiaries are in
compliance in all material respects with the terms and conditions of the Communications Laws
and neither US LEC nor its Subsidiaries has done anything or failed to do anything which
reasonably could be expected to cause the loss of any US LEC Licenses-or Permits granted
pursuant to applicable Communications Laws.

(1) No petition, action, investigation, notice of violation or
apparent liability, notice of forfeiture, order to show cause, complaint, or proceeding seeking to
revoke, reconsider the grant of, cancel, suspend, or modify any of the US LEC Licenses or
Permits granted pursuant to applicable Communications Laws is pending or, to the Knowledge
of US LEC, threatened before any Governmental Entity. No notices have been received by and
no claims have been filed against US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries alleging failure to hold any
requisite permits, regulatory approvals, licenses and other authorizations issued pursuant to
applicable Communications Laws.

(0) Brokers. Except for fees payable to Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. (collectively, "Deutsche Bank") and
Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc. ("Houlihan Lokey"), no broker,
investment banker, financial advisor or other Person is entitled to any broker's, finder's, financial
advisor's, intermediary or other similar fee or commission in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of US LEC. US
LEC has previously delivered to PAETEC a true and complete copy of the engagement letter
between US LEC and Deutsche Bank and the engagement letter between US LEC and Houlihan
Lokey.

(p) Opinion of Financial Advisors. US LEC has received the opinion
of its financial advisor, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., dated the date of this Agreement, to the
effect that, as of such date, the consideration with respect to the proposed combination of US
LEC and PAETEC pursuant to this Agreement and the repurchase by US LEC, immediately
prior to the Effective Time, of all the issued and outstanding shares of US LEC Preferred Stock
pursuant to the Repurchase Agreement (the "US LEC Preferred Stock Repurchase") is fair, from
a financial point of view, to US LEC and the holders of US LEC Common Stock. US LEC has
received the opinion of its financial advisor, Houlihan Lokey, dated the date of this Agreement,
to the effect that, as of such date, assuming the consummation of the Mergers, the consideration
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to be paid by US LEC in connection with the US LEC Preferred Stock Repurchase is fair to US
LEC from a financial point of view, and to the effect that, as of such date, the US LEC Exchange
Ratio 1s fair to US LEC's stockholders from a financial point of view.

(9 Contracts. (i) Except as may be disclosed in the US LEC SEC
Documents, as of the date of this Agreement, none of US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries is a
party to or bound by any: (A) Contract required to be filed by US LEC with the SEC pursuant to
[tem 601(b) (1), (2), (4) or (10) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act or Item 1.01 of Form
8-K under the Exchange Act; (B) Contract with respect to material partnerships, joint ventures,
acquisitions or dispositions; (C) Contract containing covenants of US LEC or any of its
Subsidiaries purporting to limit in any material respect any material line of business, industry or
geographical area in which US LEC or its Subsidiaries may operate or granting material
exclusive rights to the counterparty thereto; (D) Contract that, individually or in the aggregate
with other Contracts, would or would reasonably be expected to prevent, materially delay or
materially impede US LEC's ability to timely consummate the US LEC Merger or the other
transactions contemplated by this Agreement; (E) indenture, mortgage, loan, guarantee or credit
Contract under which PAETEC or any Subsidiary of US LEC has any outstanding indebtedness
or any outstanding note, bond, indenture or other evidence of indebtedness for borrowed money
or otherwise or any guaranteed indebtedness for money borrowed by others, in each case, for or
guaranteeing an amount in excess of $1,500,000, other than any such indebtedness between US
LEC (whether as creditor or debtor) and any wholly-owned Subsidiary of US LEC or between
any wholly owned Subsidiaries of US LEC; (F) Contract relating to the sale, license, or lease by
US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries of any [RUs or peering arrangements; or (G) Contract
specifically concerning Intellectual Property (except for (x) non-exclusive, commercially
available, off-the-shelf software programs for which US LEC pays an annual fee under any
individual contract of less than $1,000,000, (y) Contracts with customers pursuant to which the
customer and its Subsidiaries pay less than $1,000,000 annually under any individual contract
and (z) Contracts with data suppliers pursuant to which US LEC and its Subsidiaries pay fees
under any individual contract of less than $1,000,000 annually) that is material to the business of
US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. Each such Contract described in clauses (A)-(G)
above is referred to herein as a "US LEC Material Contract."

(1) Each of the US LEC Material Contracts is valid and
binding on US LEC and each of its Subsidiaries party thereto and, to the Knowledge of US LEC,
each other party thereto and is in full force and effect, except for such failures to be valid and
binding or to be in full force and effect that, individually or in the aggregate, have not had, and
would not reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its
Subsidiaries taken as a whole. There is no default under any US LEC Material Contract either
by US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries party thereto or, to the Knowledge of US LEC, by any
other party thereto, and no event has occurred that with notice or lapse of time or both would
constitute a default thereunder by US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries party thereto or, to the
Knowledge of US LEC, any other party thereto, in each case except as, individually or in the
aggregate, have not had, and would not reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse
Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole. Complete and correct copies of each
US LEC Material Contract (including any exhibits, annexes, attachments, supplements,
amendments or modifications thereto, whether or not such exhibits, annexes, attachments,
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supplements, amendments or modifications have been filed with the SEC), have been delivered
or made available to PAETEC prior to the date hereof.

() Real Property. Except as would not have, or reasonably be
expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole,
US LEC and its Subsidiaries own (i) good and valid title to the Owned Real Property and (ii)
valid and enforceable leasehold interests with respect to the Leased Real Property, in each case
subject to Permitted Liens. Except in any such case as would not, individually or in the
aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its
Subsidiaries taken as a whole, all Improvements with respect to the Real Property of US LEC
and its Subsidiaries are in good repair and operating condition, subject only to ordinary wear and
tear, and are adequate and suitable for the purposes for which they are presently being used or
held for use, and, to the Knowledge of US LEC, there are no facts or conditions affecting any of
such Improvements that, in the aggregate, would reasonably be expected to interfere with the
current use, occupancy or operation thereof.

(s) Right-of-Way Agreements and Network Facilities. Except as may
be disclosed in the US LEC SEC Documents:

(1) Except in any such case as would not, individually or in the
aggregate, have, or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (A) each Right-of-Way Agreement is valid, legally binding,
enforceable and in full force and effect, and neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is in
breach of or default under any Right-of-Way Agreement, (B) no event has occurred which, with
notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a breach or default by US LEC or any of its
Subsidiaries or permit termination, modification or acceleration by any third party under any
Right-of-Way Agreement and (C) no third party has repudiated or has the right to terminate or
repudiate any Right-of-Way Agreement.

(i1) To the Knowledge of US LEC, neither US LEC nor any of
its Subsidiaries is in violation of any Applicable Laws which, individually or in combination
with any others, would materially and adversely affect the ability of US LEC or any of its
Subsidiaries to use any of the rights associated with the Right-of-Way Agreements, taken as a
whole, in the manner and scope in which such rights are now being used.

(ili)  Except in any such case as would not, individually or in the
aggregate, have, or reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole:

(A)  All Owned Network Facilities and Leased Network
Facilities: (x) are in Good Condition individually and in combination; (y) are,
individually and in combination, operated, installed, and maintained by US LEC, US
LEC's Subsidiaries, or their contractors in a manner that is in compliance with
(1) Industry Standards, (2) Customer Requirements, and (3) all Applicable Laws, and (z)
comply, individually and in combination, with applicable performance standards.
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(B)  US LEC owns, free of Liens other than Permitted
Liens, all rights, titles, and interest in Owned Network Facilities and shall maintain such
right, title and interest through the Closing Date. No third Person may revoke or
otherwise encumber or interfere with such rights, title, and interest.

(C)  Each Network Facility Agreement to which US
LEC or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, is a valid, legally binding and enforceable
agreement and is in full force and effect, and neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries
is in breach of or default under any Network Facility Agreement, (y) no event has
occurred which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a breach or default
by US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries or permit termination, revocation, other interference
with performance of, modification or acceleration by any third party of any Network
Facility Agreement, and (z) no third Person has repudiated, revoked, terminated or
otherwise interfered with performance of or has the right to terminate, repudiate, revoke
or otherwise interfere with the performance of any Network Facility Agreement.

(t) Tax-Free Treatment. Neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries
has taken (or caused to be taken) any action or knows of any fact, agreement, plan or other
circumstance that would reasonably be expected to prevent the US LEC Merger together with the
PAETEC Merger from qualifying as an integrated series of transfers qualifying under Section
351 of the Code.

(w) Insurance. All material insurance policies of US LEC and its
Subsidiaries are in full force and effect and provide insurance in such amounts and against such
risks as the management of US LEC reasonably has determined to be prudent in accordance with
industry practices or as is required by Applicable Laws. Neither US LEC nor any of its
Subsidiaries is in material breach or default, and neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries has
taken any action or failed to take any action which, with notice or the lapse of time or both,
would constitute such a breach or default, or permit termination or modification of any of the
material insurance policies of US LEC and its Subsidiaries. True and complete copies of all such
material insurance policies have been made available to PAETEC.

(v) Customers and Suppliers.

(1) As of the date of this Agreement, neither (A) US LEC nor
any of its Subsidiaries has received notice from any customer, or group of customers that are
under common ownership or control, that (x) accounted for at least $1,000,000 of the aggregate
products and services furnished by US LEC and its Subsidiaries in the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005 or (y) is expected, to the Knowledge of US LEC, to account for at least
$1,000,000 of the aggregate products and services to be furnished by US LEC and its
Subsidiaries in the fiscal year ending December 31, 2006, in each case, that such customer (or
such group of customers) has stopped or intends to stop purchasing, or has reduced or shall
reduce purchases of, or has sought or is seeking to reduce the price it shall pay for, the products
or services of US LEC or its Subsidiaries, nor (B) has US LEC or any US LEC Subsidiary
received notice from any supplier, or group of suppliers that are under common ownership or
control, that (x) accounted for at least $1,000,000 of the aggregate goods and services purchased
by US LEC or any US LEC Subsidiary in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 or (y) is

53

553062.07-New York Server 3A - MSW



expected, to the Knowledge of US LEC, to account for at least $1,000,000 of the aggregate
goods and services purchased by US LEC and the US LEC Subsidiaries in the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2006, in each case, that such supplier (or such group of suppliers) has stopped or
intends to stop providing goods or services to US LEC or any US LEC Subsidiary, or has
materially reduced or will materially reduce the supply of, or has sought or is seeking to

materially increase the price it charges for, goods or services supplied to the US LEC or a US
LEC Subsidiary. -

(i1) Except for requests for call detail records for billing
purposes, neither US LEC nor any of its Subsidiaries is, as of the date hereof, involved in any
dispute with, or has received any notice of an intention to dispute from, or has received any
request for audit, accounting or review from, any Person (including a group of Persons that are
under common ownership or control) with whom US LEC or any US LEC Subsidiary does
business, (A) with respect to any customer, or group of customers that are under common
ownership or control, which involves an aggregate amount in excess of $1,000,000 as of the date
hereof, or (B) with respect to any supplier, or group of suppliers that are under common
ownership or control, which involves an aggregate amount in excess of $1,000,000 as of the date
hereof, relating to any transactions or commitments made, or any contracts or agreements
entered into, by US LEC or any US LEC Subsidiary, on one hand, and such Person, on the other
hand.

(w)  Title to Property. US LEC and its Subsidiaries have good, valid
and marketable title to each item of material owned personal property free and clear of all Liens
other than Permitted Liens.

(x) State Takeover Statutes. No "fair price,” "moratorium,"” "control
share acquisition” or other similar anti-takeover statute or regulation enacted under state or
federal laws in the United States (with the exception of Section 203 of the DGCL) applicable to
US LEC is applicable to the Mergers or the US LEC Voting Agreements or the other transactions
contemplated hereby or thereby. The action of the Board of Directors of US LEC in approving
this Agreement (and the transactions provided for herein) is sufficient to render inapplicable to
this Agreement (and the transactions provided for herein) the restrictions on "business
combinations" (as defined in Section 203 of the DGCL) as set forth in Section 203 of the DGCL.

(y) US LEC Preferred Stock Agreements. As a result of the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Repurchase Agreement, from and after
the Effective Time, neither US LEC, the Company nor any other party to this Agreement shall
have any obligations under the US LEC Preferred Stock Agreements (as defined in Section
8.3(v)), and no party to any US LEC Preferred Stock Agreement shall have any rights under any
US LEC Preferred Stock Agreement.

ARTICLE IV

COVENANTS RELATING TO CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

SECTION 4.1 Conduct of Business.
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(a) Each of PAETEC and US LEC agrees that, between the date of
this Agreement and the Effective Time, except as set forth in Section 4.1(a) of the PAETEC
Disclosure Schedule or Section 4.1(a) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule, as the case may be,
or as expressly provided by any other provision of this Agreement, or unless PAETEC and US
LEC shall otherwise consent in advance in writing, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, delayed or conditioned and which consent shall only be required if consistent with
Applicable Laws, each of PAETEC and US LEC shall, and shall cause each of its Subsidiaries
(including the Company, Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P) to: (i) maintain its existence in good
standing under Applicable Laws, (ii) subject to the restrictions and exceptions set forth in this
Section 4.1(a), conduct its operations only in the ordinary and usual course of business consistent
with past practice and (iii) use commercially reasonable efforts to keep available the services of
the current officers, key employees and key consultants of each of it and its Subsidiaries and to
preserve the current relationships of each of it and its Subsidiaries, with its customers, suppliers
and other Persons with which it or any of its Subsidiaries has significant business relations as are
reasonably necessary in order to preserve substantially intact its business organization. In
addition, without limiting the foregoing, except as set forth in Section 4.1(a) of the PAETEC
Disclosure Schedule or Section 4.1(a) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule, as the case may be,
or as expressly provided by any other provision of this Agreement, the US LEC Voting
Agreements, the PAETEC Voting Agreements, the PAETEC Ancillary Agreement, the
Repurchase Agreement or the Conversion Agreement (each as in effect on the date hereof),
PAETEC and US LEC shall not and shall not permit any of their respective Subsidiaries to
(unless otherwise required by Applicable Laws applicable to PAETEC and its Subsidiaries or US
LEC and its Subsidiaries, respectively, or as otherwise specifically provided herein), between the
date of this Agreement and the Effective Time, directly or indirectly, do, or agree to do, any of
the following without the prior written consent of PAETEC or US LEC, respectively (which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned and shall only be required if
consistent with Applicable Laws):

(1) (A) except for the amendments to the certificate of
incorporation and by-laws of the Company contemplated in this Agreement, amend or otherwise
change its articles or certificate of incorporation or bylaws or equivalent organizational
documents, as the case may be, (B) liquidate, merge or consolidate or enter into a similar
transaction or (C) form or create any Subsidiary that is not a wholly-owned Subsidiary;

(i1) issue, sell, pledge, dispose of, grant, transfer, encumber, or
authorize the issuance, sale, pledge, disposition, grant, transfer or encumbrance of any shares of
capital stock of, or other equity interests in, PAETEC or US LEC or any of their respective
Subsidiaries of any class, or securities convertible or exchangeable or exercisable for any shares
of such capital stock or other equity interests, or any options, warrants or other rights of any kind
to acquire any shares of such capital stock or other equity interests or such convertible or
exchangeable securities, or any other ownership interest, of PAETEC or US LEC or any of their
respective Subsidiaries, except for (A) the issuance of securities issuable upon the exercise of
options, warrants or other rights outstanding as of the date hereof under the PAETEC Stock
Agreements, the US LEC Stock Plan or the US LEC Warrants, (B) the issuance of options under
any PAETEC Benefit Plans or US LEC Benefit Plans, as in effect on the date hereof,
respectively, provided that such option issuances are made in the ordinary course consistent with
past practice, that no option issuances are made at or above the director, vice president, executive
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vice president or senior vice president level and that the number of shares of PAETEC Common
Stock or US LEC Common Stock subject to such options does not exceed in the aggregate the
amount set forth in Section 4.1(a)(ii) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule or Section 4.1(a)(ii) of
the US LEC Disclosure Schedule, as the case may be, and (C) the issuance of payment-in-kind
dividends with respect to the US LEC Preferred Stock in accordance with the terms thereof as in
effect on the date hereof to the extent that such issuances are contemplated by the Repurchase
Agreement, but only if such issuances do not result in the issuance of additional shares of US
LEC Common Stock;

(iii)  (A) declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other
distribution (whether payable in cash, stock, property or a combination thereof) with respect to
any of the capital stock of PAETEC or US LEC, except for payment-in-kind dividends in respect
of the US LEC Preferred Stock in the manner and to the extent contemplated by Section
4.1(a)(ii)(C), or (B) declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution (whether
payable in cash, stock, property or a combination thereof) with respect to any Subsidiary, other
than in the ordinary course or (C) enter into or amend any agreement with respect to the voting
or registration of the capital stock of PAETEC or US LEC, provided, in the case of each of
clauses (A) and (B) above, that any Subsidiary of PAETEC or US LEC may declare, make or
pay dividends or other distributions to PAETEC or any of PAETEC's Subsidiaries or US LEC or
any of US LEC's Subsidiaries, as the case may be;

(iv)  (A) reclassify, combine, split or subdivide any of their
capital stock or issue or authorize the issuance of any other securities in respect of, in lieu of, or
in substitution for, shares of their capital stock, or (B) redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire,
directly or indirectly, any of its capital stock, other equity interests or other securities other than
in connection with the forfeiture of PAETEC Stock Unit Awards, PAETEC Options or US LEC
Options as a result of terminations of employment or other forfeiture events specified therein in
the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice;

(v) (A) incur any indebtedness for borrowed money or issue
any debt securities or assume, guarantee or endorse, or otherwise as an accommodation become
responsible for, the obligations of any Person (other than a Subsidiary of PAETEC or US LEC,
respectively) for borrowed money, except for (x) indebtedness for borrowed money under or
guarantees with respect to indebtedness under PAETEC's or US LEC's existing credit facilities,
respectively, incurred and applied in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice
and in an aggregate amount not to exceed $1,500,000 in principal amount outstanding at any one
time, (y) indebtedness not to exceed $1,000,000 in the aggregate incurred to finance acquisitions
permitted pursuant to Section 4.1(a)(x) or (z) indebtedness of any Subsidiary of PAETEC or US
LEC, to PAETEC or US LEC, respectively, or to any other Subsidiary of PAETEC or US LEC,
respectively, or indebtedness of PAETEC or US LEC, respectively, to any Subsidiary of
PAETEC or US LEC, respectively, (B) (x) terminate or cancel (other than a termination or
cancellation due to the expiration of any term of any contract or any breach or nonperformance
by any counterparty), or agree to any material change in, any PAETEC Material Contract or US
LEC Material Contract, as the case may be, where such termination, cancellation or change
would have an adverse effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, or US LEC and its Subsidiaries,
as the case may be (in each case taken as a whole), or (y) enter into (other than by extension of
an existing contract or by entry into a new contract with an existing counterparty on terms
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substantially the same as those of the prior contract, in each case in the ordinary course of
business consistent with past practice, provided that any such extension or new contract does not
obligate US LEC or PAETEC or their respective Subsidiaries to make payments thereunder that
exceed $500,000 in the aggregate) any contract which would be deemed to be a PAETEC
Material Contract or a US LEC Material Contract, as the case may be, if entered into prior to the
date hereof, except, for the purposes of this Section 4.1(a)(v)(B), the dollar amounts used to
calculate whether a contract would be a PAETEC Material Contract or a US LEC Material
Contract, respectively, shall be doubled or (C) make or authorize any loan to any Person (other
than PAETEC or a Subsidiary of PAETEC, in the case of PAETEC or any Subsidiary of
PAETEC, or US LEC or a Subsidiary of US LEC, in the case of US LEC or any Subsidiary of
US LEC) outside the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

(vi)  Except as required by Applicable Laws or by the terms of
any existing US LEC Benefit Plan or PAETEC Benefit Plan as in effect on the date hereof or as
otherwise set forth in Section 4.1(a)(vi) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule or Section 4.1(a)(vi)
of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule: (A) increase the compensation or benefits payable or to
become payable to its directors, officers or other employees, agents or consultants, other than in
the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; (B) grant any rights to severance or
termination pay to, or enter into any employment, consulting, severance or similar agreement
with, any director, officer or other employee, or any agent or consultant; (C) grant any cash
bonus, stock-based award or other incentive to any director, officer or other employee, agent or
consultant, other than awards to newly hired officers or other employees, agents or consultants or
pursuant to any existing US LEC Benefit Plan or PAETEC Benefit Plan as in effect on the date
hereof, in each case, in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice; (D)
establish, adopt, enter into or amend any collective bargaining agreement (or other agreement or
understanding with any trade union, works council or other employee representative body) or
any US LEC Benefit Plan or PAETEC Benefit Plan; (E) take any action to amend or waive any
performance or vesting criteria or accelerate vesting, exercisability, settlement or funding under
any US LEC Benefit Plan, any PAETEC Benefit Plan or any award agreement thereunder; or (F)
take any action with respect to salary, compensation, benefits or other terms and conditions of
employment that would result in the holder of a change in control or similar agreement having
"good reason" or other entitlement to terminate employment and collect severance payments and
benefits pursuant to such agreement;

(vil) make any material change in financial accounting policies
or procedures, except as required by GAAP or by a Governmental Entity;

(viii) except as required by Applicable Laws, make, change or
revoke any material Tax election or settle or compromise any material liability for Taxes, change
any annual Tax accounting period, change any method of Tax accounting, file any material
amended Tax Return, enter into any closing agreement relating to any material Tax, surrender
any right to claim a material Tax refund, or consent to any extension or waiver of the statute of
limitations period applicable to any material Tax claim or assessment;

(ix)  write up, write down or write off the book value of any
assets, individually or in the aggregate, for PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or
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US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, respectively, other than (A) in the ordinary
course of business, (B) as may be required by GAAP or (C) otherwise not in excess of $500,000;

(x) acquire, dispose of, or agree to acquire from or agree to
dispose to any Person, any assets, operations, business or securities or engage in, or agree to
engage in, any merger, consolidation or other business combination with any Person, except in
connection with (A) capital expenditures set forth in Section 4.1(a)(x) of the PAETEC
Disclosure Schedule or Section 4.1(a)(x) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule, in addition to
other capital expenditures in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice in
amounts not to exceed $5,000,000 in the aggregate for the period commencing on the date hereof
and ending on the Effective Time, as the case may be, or which are made from insurance
proceeds, (B) in addition to capital expenditures permitted under clause (A) above, acquisitions
or dispositions of inventory and other tangible assets in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice, and (C) acquisitions and dispositions via arms-length transactions
with one or more Persons that are not Affiliates of PAETEC or US LEC, as applicable (in
addition to acquisitions and dispositions permitted under clauses (A) and (B) above), of assets,
operations, businesses or securities up to $500,000 in.the aggregate;

(xi)  except as required by Applicable Laws or any judgment by
a court of competent jurisdiction, pay, discharge, settle or satisfy any material claims, liabilities,
obligations or litigation (absolute, accrued, asserted or unasserted, contingent or otherwise),
other than such payments, discharges, settlements or satisfactions made in the ordinary course of
business consistent with past practice and in an aggregate amount not to exceed $1,000,000
(measured by consideration paid or received);

(xi1)  enter into any non-competition contract or other contract
that purports to limit in any material respect either the type of business in which PAETEC or its
Subsidiaries, or US LEC or its Subsidiaries, respectively, may engage or the manner or locations
in which any of them may so engage in any business;

(xiii) except as otherwise permitted by this Section 4.1(a), make
any material change in the conduct of its businesses or enter into any transaction other than in the
ordinary course business and consistent with past practice;

(xiv) authorize or enter into any agreement, or otherwise make
any commitment, to do any of the foregoing.

(b) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall give to either party,
directly or indirectly, rights to control or direct the operations of the other party prior to the
Effective Time in violation of Applicable Laws. Prior to the Effective Time, each party shall
exercise, consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, complete control and
supervision of its own operations.

(©) PAETEC shall promptly provide US LEC with all (1) quarterly
statements of income and cash flows of PAETEC and its consolidated Subsidiaries and (ii)
quarterly consolidated balance sheets of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, in each case for and as of
the end of all quarterly periods after the date hereof until the Effective Time, commencing with
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the quarterly period ended June 30, 2006, as soon as such financial statements are prepared (and
no later than such financial statements are distributed to PAETEC's stockholders). Moreover, to
the extent PAETEC prepares such financial statements on a more frequent basis than quarterly
and distributes such financial statements to its stockholders, such financial statements shall be
distributed at the same time to US LEC. Collectively, all of such quarterly financial statements
of PAETEC are referred to in the Agreement as the "Prospective PAETEC Financial
Statements."

(d) PAETEC shall not permit the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
to take, or commit to take, any action after the PAETEC Effective Time and prior to the US LEC
Effective Time, except for the actions expressly set forth in this Agreement as actions to be taken
by such Person during such period.

(e) PAETEC and PAETEC's Subsidiaries shall maintain or cause their
Owned Network Facilities and Leased Network Facilities, individually and in combination, to be
maintained in Good Condition and in compliance, in all material respects, with performance
standards, Industry Standards, Customer Requirements, and all Applicable Laws through the
Closing Date. US LEC and US LEC's Subsidiaries shall maintain or cause their Owned Network
‘Facilities and Leased Network Facilities, individually and in combination, to be maintained in
Good Condition and in compliance, in all material respects, with performance standards,
Industry Standards, Customer Requirements and all Applicable Laws through the Closing Date.

SECTION 4.2 No Solicitation.

(a) Except as provided in Section 4.2(c) or 4.2(d), from the date hereof
until the earlier of the Effective Time and the termination of this Agreement, none of PAETEC
or US LEC, their respective Subsidiaries or any officer, director, employee, agent or
representative (including any investment banker, financial advisor, attorney, accountant or other
retained advisor) (collectively, "Representatives™) of PAETEC or US LEC or any of their
respective Subsidiaries shall directly or indirectly (i) solicit, initiate or encourage or knowingly
facilitate (including by way of furnishing information or entering into any agreements,
arrangements or understandings) or take any other action designed to facilitate any inquiries or
proposals regarding any merger, share exchange, consolidation, business combination, sale of
assets, sale of shares of capital stock (including by way of a tender offer) or similar transactions
involving PAETEC or US LEC or any of their respective Subsidiaries that, if consummated,
would constitute, or would reasonably be expected to constitute, an Alternative Transaction (as
defined in Section 8.3(b)) (any of the foregoing inquiries or proposals being referred to herein as
an "Alternative Transaction Proposal”), (ii) participate in any discussions or negotiations
regarding an Alternative Transaction or an Alternative Transaction Proposal, (iii) enter into any
agreement regarding an Alternative Transaction or an Alternative Transaction Proposal, (iv)
approve or endorse or agree to approve or endorse an Alternative Transaction or an Alternative
Transaction Proposal or (v) make or effect a Change of Recommendation (as defined in Section

4.2(d)(ii)).

(b) From the date hereof until the earlier of the Effective Time and the
termination of this Agreement, PAETEC shall notify US LEC and US LEC shall notify PAETEC,
as the case may be, promptly (but in no event later than 24 hours) after receipt of any Alternative
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Transaction Proposal, or any material modification of or material amendment to any Alternative
Transaction Proposal or any request for nonpublic information relating to PAETEC or US LEC,
respectively, or any of their respective Subsidiaries relating to any Alternative Transaction
Proposal. Such notice to PAETEC or US LEC, as the case may be, shall be made orally and in
writing, and shall indicate the identity of the Person making the Alternative Transaction Proposal
or such request and the material terms of any such Alternative Transaction Proposal or any
material modification or material amendment to an Alternative Transaction Proposal (including a
copy thereof if such Alternative Transaction Proposal or material modification or material
amendment is in writing). From the date hereof until the earlier of the Effective Time and the
termination of this Agreement, PAETEC shall keep US LEC and US LEC shall keep PAETEC
reasonably informed on a current basis of any material changes in the status and any material
changes or modifications in the terms of any such Alternative Transaction Proposal, indication or
request. US LEC or PAETEC, as the case may be, shall provide the other party with 48 hours
prior notice (or such lesser prior notice as is provided to the members of its Board of Directors)
of any meeting of its Board of Directors at which its Board of Directors is reasonably expected to
consider any Alternative Transaction Proposal or Alternative Transaction.

(c) Superior Proposals. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained in Section 4.2(a), in the event that US LEC or PAETEC, as the case may be, receives
an unsolicited, bona fide written Alternative Transaction Proposal that is determined (in
accordance with Section 8.3(t)) to be, or is reasonably likely to be, a Superior Proposal (as
defined in Section 8.3(t)), it may then take the following actions (but only (1) if and to the extent
that (y) its Board of Directors concludes in good faith, after consultation with its outside legal
counsel, that the failure to do so is reasonably likely to result in a breach of its fiduciary
obligations to its stockholders under Applicable Laws, and (z) US LEC or PAETEC, as the case
may be, has given the other party at least two business days prior written notice of its intention to
take any of the following actions and (2) if it shall not have breached in any material respect any
of the provisions of this Section 4.2):

(1) Furnish nonpublic information to the Person or group of
Persons making such Superior Proposal, provided that (A) prior to furnishing any such nonpublic
information, it receives from such Person or group of Persons an executed confidentiality and
standstill agreement containing terms at least as restrictive as the terms contained in the
Confidentiality Agreement, dated as of June 23, 2006, between US LEC and PAETEC (the
"CDA™) and (B) contemporaneously with furnishing any such nonpublic information to such
Person or group of Persons, it furnishes such nonpublic information to the other party hereto (to
the extent such nonpublic information has not been previously so furnished to such party); and

(11) Engage in discussions or negotiations with such Person or
group of Persons with respect to such Superior Proposal.

(d) Changes of Recommendation.

(1) In response to the receipt of an unsolicited, bona fide
written Alternative Transaction Proposal which is determined (in accordance with Section 8.3(t))
to be a Superior Proposal, the Board of Directors of US LEC or PAETEC, as the case may be,
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may make a Change of Recommendation, if all of the following conditions in clauses (A)
through (E) are met:

(A)  the Superior Proposal has been made and has not
been withdrawn and continues to be a Superior Proposal;

(B)  the US LEC Stockholder Approval or the PAETEC
Stockholder Approval, as the case may be, has not occurred;

(C)  US LEC or PAETEC, as the case may be, has (1)
complied with the provisions of Sections 4.2(b) and 4.2(c) of this Agreement, (2)
provided to the other party hereto four business days’ prior written notice which shall
state expressly that it intends to effect a Change of Recommendation and the manner in
which it intends to do so and (3) during the aforementioned period, if requested by the
other party hereto, engaged in good faith negotiations so that the other party is able to
make a revised proposal to amend this Agreement in such a manner that the Alternative
Transaction Proposal which was determined to be a Superior Proposal no longer is a
Superior Proposal;

(D)  the Board of Directors of US LEC or PAETEC, as
the case may be, has determined in good faith, after consultation with its outside legal
counsel, that, in light of such Superior Proposal, the failure of the Board of Directors to
effect a Change of Recommendation is reasonably likely to result in a breach of its
fiduciary obligations to its stockholders under Applicable Laws; and

(E)  US LEC or PAETEQC, as the case may be, shall not
have breached in any material respect any of the provisions set forth in this Section 4.2.

(1) A "Change of Recommendation" shall mean the
withholding, withdrawal, amendment, qualification or modification of the Board of Directors'
recommendation in favor of, in the case of PAETEC, adoption and approval of this Agreement
and the transactions contemplated hereby, and, in the case of US LEC, adoption and approval of
this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, the Company Charter Amendment and
the New Equity Plan, and, in the case of a tender or exchange offer made directly to US LEC's
stockholders or PAETEC's stockholders, as the case may be, a recommendation that US LEC's
stockholders or PAETEC's stockholders, as the case may be, accept the tender or exchange offer.

(e) Nothing contained in this Section 4.2 shall prohibit PAETEC or
US LEC or their respective Subsidiaries from taking and disclosing to their respective
stockholders a position required by Rule 14e-2(a) or Rule 14d-9 promulgated under the
Exchange Act.

® PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, and US LEC and its Subsidiaries,
respectively, shall immediately cease and cause to be terminated any existing discussions or
negotiations with any Persons (other than US LEC or PAETEC, respectively) conducted
heretofore with respect to any of the foregoing, and shall use reasonable best efforts to cause all
Persons other than PAETEC or US LEC who have been furnished confidential information
regarding PAETEC or US LEC in connection with the solicitation of or discussions regarding an
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Alternative Transaction Proposal within the 12 months prior to the date hereof promptly to return
or destroy such information. Each of PAETEC and US LEC agree not to, and to cause their
respective Subsidiaries not to, release any third party from the confidentiality and standstill
provisions of any agreement to which PAETEC or US LEC or any of their respective
Subsidiaries is or may become a party and to use its reasonable best efforts to enforce, to the
fullest extent permitted by Applicable Laws, the provisions of any such confidentiality and
standstill provisions.

(g) PAETEC and US LEC shall use their respective reasonable best
efforts to inform their respective Representatives of the restrictions described in this Section 4.2.
It is understood that any violation of the restrictions set forth in this Section 4.2 by any officer,
director, employee, agent or representative (including any investment banker, financial advisor,
attorney, accountant or other retained advisor) of PAETEC or its Subsidiaries, or US LEC or its
Subsidiaries, respectively, at the direction or with the consent of PAETEC or US LEC,
respectively, or their respective Subsidiaries, as the case may be, shall be deemed to be a breach
of this Section 4.2 by PAETEC or US LEC, respectively.

ARTICLE V
ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS

SECTION 5.1 Preparation of SEC Documents; Stockholders' Meetings.

(a) As soon as practicable following the date of this Agreement, US
LEC and PAETEC shall prepare the Joint Proxy Statement and US LEC, the Company and
PAETEC shall prepare and the Company shall file with the SEC the Form S-4, in which the Joint
Proxy Statement will be included as a prospectus. Each of the Company, US LEC and PAETEC
shall use reasonable best efforts to have the Form S-4 declared effective under the Securities Act
as promptly as practicable after such filing. US LEC shall use reasonable best etforts to cause
the Joint Proxy Statement to be mailed to US LEC's stockholders, and PAETEC shall use
reasonable best efforts to cause the Joint Proxy Statement to be mailed to PAETEC's
stockholders, in each case as promptly as practicable after the Form S-4 is declared effective
under the Securities Act. Subject to Section 4.2(d), the Joint Proxy Statement shall contain the
Recommendations. The Company, PAETEC and US LEC shall also take any action (other than
qualifying to do business in any jurisdiction in which it is not now so qualified or filing a general
consent to service of process) required to be taken under any applicable state securities laws in
connection with the issuance and reservation of shares of Company Common Stock in the
Mergers, the conversion of PAETEC Warrants and US LEC Warrants into Company Warrants,
the conversion of PAETEC Options and US LEC Options into options to acquire Company
Common Stock, and the conversion of PAETEC Unit Awards and US LEC Purchase Rights into
stock units and purchase rights, respectively, with respect to Company Common Stock.
PAETEC shall furnish to US LEC all information concerning PAETEC and the holders of
PAETEC Common Stock, PAETEC Warrants, PAETEC Options and PAETEC Unit Awards, as
may be reasonably requested by US LEC in connection with any such action. US LEC shall
furnish to the Company and PAETEC all information concerning US LEC and the holders of US
LEC Common Stock, US LEC Warrants, US LEC Options and US LEC Purchase Rights as may
be reasonably requested by the Company in connection with such action. No filing of, or
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amendment or supplement to, the Form S-4 or the Joint Proxy Statement and no response to
SEC comments thereon shall be made by (i) the Company or PAETEC or (ii) US LEC without
US LEC's or PAETEC's (as applicable) prior consent (which shall not be unreasonably withheld,
delayed or conditioned) and without providing US LEC or PAETEC, as applicable, the
opportunity to review and comment thereon, unless (x) the Company or PAETEC or (y) US LEC
would be in violation of Applicable Laws if it were to delay such filing, amendment or
supplement in order to receive such prior consent (provided that the Company and PAETEC and
US LEC shall use its reasonable best efforts to provide US LEC or PAETEC, as applicable, with
the opportunity to review and comment thereon). The Company or PAETEC shall advise US
LEC, promptly after it receives oral or written notice thereof, of the time when the Form S-4 has
been declared effective or any supplement or amendment has been filed, the issuance of any stop
order, the suspension of the qualification of the Company Common Stock or the Company
Warrants issuable in connection with the Mergers for offering or sale in any jurisdiction, or any
oral or written request by the SEC for amendment of the Joint Proxy Statement or the Form S-4
or comments thereon and responses thereto or requests by the SEC for additional information
and shall promptly provide the other with copies of any written communication from the SEC or
any state securities commission. The Company, PAETEC and US LEC shall prepare any written
response to any such SEC comments. If at any time prior to the Effective Time any information
relating to US LEC or PAETEC or any of their respective Affiliates, officers or directors should
be discovered by US LEC or PAETEC which should be set forth in an amendment or supplement
to any of the Form S-4 or the Joint Proxy Statement, so that any of such documents would not
include any misstatement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make
the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading, the party which discovers such information shall promptly notify the other parties
hereto and an appropriate amendment or supplement describing such information shall be
promptly filed with the SEC and, to the extent required by law, disseminated to the respective
stockholders of US LEC and PAETEC.

(b) Each of PAETEC and US LEC shall, as promptly as practicable
after the Form S-4 is declared effective under the Securities Act, take all action necessary in
accordance with Applicable Laws and the PAETEC Organizational Documents, in the case of
PAETEC, and Applicable Laws and the US LEC Organizational Documents, in the case of US
LEC, to duly give notice of, convene and hold a meeting of their stockholders, respectively, to be
held as promptly as practicable to consider, in the case of US LEC, the adoption of this
Agreement and approval of the transactions contemplated hereby, the Company Charter
Amendment and the New Equity Plan (the "US LEC Stockholders' Meeting") and, in the case of
PAETEC, the adoption of this Agreement and the approval of the transactions contemplated
hereby (the "PAETEC Stockholders' Meeting"). Subject to Section 4.2(d), each of PAETEC and
US LEC shall use reasonable best efforts to solicit from their stockholders, respectively, proxies
in favor of, in the case of US LEC, the adoption of this Agreement and the approval of the
transactions contemplated hereby, the Company Charter Amendment and the New Equity Plan,
and in the case of PAETEC, the adoption of this Agreement and the approval of the transactions
contemplated hereby, and shall take all other action necessary or advisable to secure the vote or
consent of their stockholders, respectively, required by Applicable Laws and, in the case of US
LEC, the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules, to obtain such approvals. Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary contained in this Agreement, PAETEC or US LEC may adjourn or postpone the
PAETEC Stockholders' Meeting or the US LEC Stockholders' Meeting, as the case may be, to
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the extent necessary to ensure that any necessary supplement or amendment to the Joint Proxy
Statement is provided to their respective stockholders, in advance of a vote on, in the case of US
LEC, the adoption of this Agreement and the approval of the transactions contemplated hereby,
the Company Charter Amendment and the New Equity Plan, and in the case of PAETEC, the
adoption of this Agreement and the approval of the transactions contemplated hereby, or, if, as of
the time for which the PAETEC Stockholders' Meeting or the US LEC Stockholders' Meeting, as
the case may be, is originally scheduled, there are insufficient shares of PAETEC Common
Stock or US LEC Common Stock, as the case may be, represented (either in person or by proxy)
to constitute a quorum necessary to conduct the business of such meeting. Each of PAETEC and
US LEC shall ensure that the PAETEC Stockholders' Meeting and the US LEC Stockholders'
Meeting, respectively, are called, noticed, convened, held and conducted, and that all proxies
solicited in connection with the PAETEC Stockholders' Meeting or the US LEC Stockholders'
Meeting, as the case may be, are solicited in compliance with Applicable Laws, and, in the case
of PAETEC, the PAETEC Organizational Documents, and, in the case of US LEC, the US LEC
Organizational Documents and the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules. Without the prior written
consent of PAETEC, the adoption of this Agreement and the approval of the transactions
contemplated hereby, the Company Charter Amendment and the New Equity Plan shall be the
only matters which US LEC shall propose to be acted on by US LEC's stockholders at the US
LEC Stockholders' Meeting. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, if US LEC is required under Applicable Laws to submit additional matters
contemplated hereby to a vote of its stockholders, US LEC shall be authorized and required
hereunder to submit approval of such matters to its stockholders, the term "US LEC Stockholder
Approval" as used herein shall be deemed to include reference to approval of such matters by a
vote of US LEC's stockholders, the term "US LEC Stockholders' Meeting" as used herein shall
be deemed to include reference to submission of such matters to a vote of US LEC's stockholders,
and any representation and warranty by US LEC herein with respect to stockholder votes or
consents required to be obtained by US LEC shall be deemed to refer to such matters. Without
the prior written consent of US LEC, the adoption of this Agreement and the approval of the
transactions contemplated hereby shall be the only matters which PAETEC shall propose to be
acted on by PAETEC's stockholders at the PAETEC Stockholders' Meeting. Notwithstanding
any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, if PAETEC is required under Applicable
Laws to submit additional matters contemplated hereby to a vote of its stockholders, PAETEC
shall be authorized and required hereunder to submit approval of such matters to its stockholders,
the term "PAETEC Stockholder Approval” as used herein shall be deemed to include reference
to approval of such matters by a vote of PAETEC's stockholders, the term "PAETEC
Stockholders' Meeting" as used herein shall be deemed to include reference to submission of
such matters to a vote of PAETEC's stockholders, and any representation and warranty by
PAETEC herein with respect to stockholder votes or consents required to be obtained by
PAETEC shall be deemed to refer to such matters.

(©) Each of PAETEC and US LEC shall use reasonable best efforts to
hold the PAETEC Stockholders' Meeting and US LEC Stockholders' Meeting, respectively, on
the same date as the other party and as soon as reasonably practicable after the date of this
Agreement.

SECTION 5.2 Accountant's Letters. Each of PAETEC and US LEC shall use
reasonable best efforts to cause to be delivered to the other party two letters from their respective
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independent accountants, one dated approximately as of the date the Form S-4 is declared
effective and one dated approximately as of the Closing Date, each addressed to the other party,
in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the other party and customary in scope and
substance for comfort letters delivered by independent public accountants in connection with
registration statements similar to the Form S-4.

SECTION 5.3 Access to Information; Confidentiality.

(a) Subject to the CDA and Applicable Laws, each of US LEC and
PAETEC shall, and shall cause each of their respective Subsidiaries to, afford to the other party
and to the officers, employees, accountants, counsel, financial advisors, financing sources and
other representatives of such other party, reasonable access at all reasonable times on reasonable
notice during the period prior to the Effective Time to all their respective properties, books,
contracts, commitments, personnel and records (provided that such access shall not unreasonably
interfere with the business or operations of such party) and, during such period and subject to the
CDA and Applicable Laws, each of US LEC and PAETEC shall, and shall cause each of their
respective Subsidiaries to, make available to the other party (1) a copy of each material report,
schedule, registration statement and other document filed by it during such period pursuant to the
requirements of federal or state securities laws and (ii) all other material information concerning
its business, properties and personnel as such other party may reasonably request. No review
pursuant to this Section 5.3 shall affect or be deemed to modify any representation or warranty
contained herein, the covenants or agreements of the parties hereto or the conditions to the
obligations of the parties hereto under this Agreement.

(b) Each of US LEC and PAETEC shall hold and keep confidential,
and shall cause their respective officers and employees and shall direct its accountants, counsel,
financial advisors and other representatives and Affiliates to hold and keep confidential, any
nonpublic information in accordance with the terms of the CDA.

SECTION 5.4 Reasonable Best Efforts.

(a) Upon the terms of, and subject to the conditions set forth in, this
Agreement, each of the parties agrees to use its reasonable best efforts to take, or cause to be
taken, all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, and to assist and cooperate with the other
parties in doing, all things necessary, proper or advisable under this Agreement and Applicable
Laws and regulations to consummate and make effective, in the most expeditious manner
practicable, the Mergers and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including
using reasonable best efforts: (i) to prepare and file all documentation to effect all necessary
applications, notices, petitions, filings and other documents and to obtain, as promptly as
practicable, all waivers, consents, clearances, licenses, orders, registrations, permits, approvals
and authorizations necessary or advisable to be obtained from any third party and/or
Governmental Entity in order to consummate the Mergers and each other transaction
contemplated by this Agreement, including all filings required under the HSR Act and the
Communications Act, (ii) subject to the terms of Section 5.4(c), to obtain all such material
consents, clearances, waivers, licenses, registrations, permits, approvals, orders and
authorizations as are necessary or advisable to consummate the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and to comply with the terms and conditions of all such material consents, clearances,
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waivers, licenses, registrations, permits, approvals, orders and authorizations, provided that
neither party shall be required to offer or agree to an order that requires (A) the divestiture of any
properties, assets, operations or businesses, (B) holding separate any properties, assets,
operations or businesses, pending the satisfaction or termination of any such conditions,
restrictions or agreements affecting ownership of any such assets (or any portion thereof) as may
be necessary to permit the parties to fully complete the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, and/or (C) satisfying any additional conditions imposed by Governmental Entities
with respect to the Mergers and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement, if such
divestiture, hold separate requirement and/or satisfaction of additional conditions would
reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company, the US LEC Surviving
Corporation, the PAETEC Surviving Corporation and their respective Subsidiaries, taken as a
whole, after the Mergers, (ii1) to defend any lawsuits or other legal proceedings, whether judicial
or administrative, challenging this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, including promptly seeking to have any stay or temporary
restraining order entered by any court or other Governmental Entity vacated or reversed, and

(iv) to execute and deliver any additional instruments necessary to consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby, and to fully carry out the purposes of, this Agreement. In furtherance of
the foregoing, the parties shall cooperate and use reasonable best efforts to determine and agree
upon, within two weeks of the date hereof, a list of those Governmental Entities in foreign
jurisdictions, if any, to which it may be necessary or appropriate to submit any filings,
notifications or registrations or take any other actions in connection with regulatory or legal
requirements of such Governmental Entities relating to the transactions contemplated hereby;
provided that the foregoing shall not affect or otherwise modify the closing conditions in
Sections 6.1(b), 6.1(c) and 6.1(d). Subject to Applicable Laws relating to the exchange of
information, PAETEC and US LEC shall have the right to review in advance, and to the extent
reasonably practicable each shall consult the other with respect to, all the information relating to
PAETEC and its Subsidiaries or US LEC and its Subsidiaries, as the case may be, that appears in
any filing made with, or written materials submitted to, any Governmental Entity in connection
with the Mergers and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(b) Each of US LEC (and its Subsidiaries) and PAETEC (and its
Subsidiaries) shall keep the other reasonably apprised of the status of matters relating to the
completion of the transactions contemplated hereby and work cooperatively in connection with
the efforts referenced above in obtaining all required approvals or consents of all Governmental
Entities, including the SEC, the FCC, the Federal Trade Commission and/or the United States
Department of Justice. In that regard, each party shall, without limitation: (i) promptly notify
the other of, and if in writing furnish the other with copies of (or, in the case of oral
communications, advise the other orally of), any communications from or with any
Governmental Entity with respect to the PAETEC Merger, the US LEC Merger, or any of the
other transactions contemplated by this Agreement; (i1) permit the other party to review and
discuss in advance, and consider in good faith the views of the other party in connection with,
any proposed written (or any proposed oral) communication with any such Governmental Entity
with respect to the PAETEC Merger, the US LEC Merger, or any of the other transactions
contemplated by this Agreement; (iii) not participate in any meeting or oral communication with
any such Governmental Entity with respect to the PAETEC Merger, the US LEC Merger, or any
of the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement unless it consults with the other party
in advance and, to the extent permitted by such Governmental Entity, gives the other party the
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opportunity to attend and participate thereat; (iv) furnish the other party with copies of all
correspondence, filings and communications (and memoranda setting forth the substance thereof)
between it and any such Governmental Entity with respect to the PAETEC Merger, the US LEC
Merger, or any of the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Mergers; and (v)
furnish the other party with such necessary information and reasonable assistance as the other
may reasonably request in connection with its preparation of necessary filings or submissions of
information to any such Governmental Entity. Each of US LEC (and its Subsidiaries) and
PAETEC (and its Subsidiaries) may, as each deems advisable and necessary, reasonably
designate any competitively sensitive material provided to the other under this Section 5.4 as
"outside counsel only." Such material and the information contained therein shall be given only
to the outside legal counsel of the recipient and shall not be disclosed by such outside counsel to
employees, officers, or directors of the recipient unless express permission is obtained in

advance from the source of the materials (US LEC or PAETEC, as the case may be) or its legal
counsel.

(©) In connection with the filings referenced in Sections 5.4(a) and
5.4(b), the parties shall cooperate with each other and use their respective reasonable best efforts
to promptly prepare and file all necessary documentation, to effect all applications, notices,
petitions and filings, to obtain as promptly as practicable all permits, consents, approvals and
authorizations of all Governmental Entities that are necessary or advisable to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement (including the Mergers), and to comply with the
terms and conditions of all such permits, consents, approvals and authorizations of all such
Governmental Entities. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing contained herein shall be
deemed to require the Company, US LEC or PAETEC to take any action, or commit to take any
action, or agree to any condition or restriction, in connection with obtaining the foregoing
permits, consents, approvals and authorizations of Governmental Entities, that would reasonably
be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company, the US LEC Surviving
Corporation, the PAETEC Surviving Corporation, and their respective Subsidiaries, taken as a
whole, after the Mergers.

(d) PAETEC and its Subsidiaries and US LEC and its Subsidiaries
shall, upon reasonable notice, provide, and shall cause their respective officers, employees and
representatives to provide, all cooperation reasonably requested by the other parties in
connection with (i) obtaining the Financing (as defined in Section 5.14(a)) or the alternative
financing contemplated by Section 5.14(a), (ii) completing the actions contemplated by
Sections 5.14(b) and 5.14(c) and (iii) the repayment, repurchase, redemption, defeasance,
modification, refinancing, or assumption, of all rights, duties and obligations, contingent or
otherwise, of the other parties (as applicable) and its Subsidiaries in respect of such other parties'
financings described in Section 5.4(d) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule or Section 5.4(d) of
the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule, as the case may be; provided that, notwithstanding the
foregoing, no cooperation or other assistance shall be required if such cooperation or other
assistance would unreasonably disrupt the business or operations of such party or any of its
Subsidiaries.

SECTION 5.5 Indemnification and Insurance.
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(a) From and after the Effective Time, the Company, the US LEC
Surviving Corporation and the PAETEC Surviving Corporation shall fulfill and honor in all
respects the obligations of each of US LEC and PAETEC pursuant to any indemnification
agreements between US LEC or PAETEC, respectively, and each of their respective present or
former directors, officers and employees in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time,
subject to Applicable Laws. For at least six years after the Effective Time, each of the Company
and the Surviving US LEC Corporation shall jointly and severally indemnify and hold harmless
the present and former officers and directors of US LEC and its Subsidiaries (the "US LEC
Indemnified Parties") for any costs, judgments, fines, losses, claims, damages or liabilities
incurred in connection with any claim, action, suit or proceeding (whether civil, criminal,
administrative or investigative) by reason of the fact that such Person is or was an officer,
director or employee of US LEC or any of its Subsidiaries in respect of acts or omissions
occurring at or prior to the Effective Time (including those related to this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby), and shall advance expenses in respect thereof, in each case, to
the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Laws. For at least six years after the Effective Time,
each of the Company and the Surviving PAETEC Corporation shall jointly and severally
indemnify and hold harmless the present and former officers and directors of PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries (the "PAETEC Indemnified Parties" and together with the US LEC Indemnified
Parties, the "Indemnified Parties") for any costs, judgments, fines, losses, claims, damages or
liabilities incurred in connection with any claim, action, suit or proceeding (whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative) by reason of the fact that such Person is or was an
officer, director or employee of PAETEC or any of its Subsidiaries in respect of acts or
omissions occurring at or prior to the Effective Time (including those related to this Agreement
and the transactions contemplated hereby), and shall advance expenses in respect thereof, in each
case, to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Laws.

(b) For a period of six years after the Effective Time, the Company
shall use reasonable best efforts to cause to be maintained in effect the current policies of
directors' and officers' and fiduciary liability insurance maintained by US LEC with respect to
claims arising from facts or events which occurred on or before the Effective Time (including
those related to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby); provided that the
Company may substitute therefor new policies of at least the same coverage and amounts
containing terms and conditions which are no less advantageous than such current policies to
former officers and directors of US LEC only with respect to claims arising from facts or events
which occurred at or before the Effective Time; and provided, further, that if the aggregate
annual premiums for any such current or new policies at any time during such six-year period
would exceed 300% of the per annum premium rate paid by US LEC and its Subsidiaries as of
the date hereof for such current policies, then the Company shall use reasonable best efforts to
provide as much coverage under such current or new policies as is then available at such
aggregate annual premiums up to 300% of such per annum premium rate.

(c) For a period of six years after the Effective Time, the Company
shall use reasonable best efforts to cause to be maintained in effect the current policies of
directors' and officers' and fiduciary liability insurance maintained by PAETEC with respect to
claims arising from facts or events which occurred on or before the Effective Time (including
those related to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby); provided that the
Company may substitute therefor new policies of at least the same coverage and amounts

68

553062.07-New York Server 3A - MSW



containing terms and conditions which are no less advantageous than such current policies to
former officers and directors of PAETEC, as the case may be, only with respect to claims arising
from facts or events which occurred at or before the Effective Time; and provided, further, that if
the aggregate annual premiums for any such current or new policies at any time during such six-
year period would exceed 300% of the per annum premium rate paid by PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries as of the date hereof for such current policies, then the Company shall use
reasonable best efforts to provide as much coverage under such current or new policies as is then
available at such aggregate annual premiums up to 300% of such per annum premium rate.

(d)  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary and to the
maximum extent permitted by Applicable Laws, if any claim, action, suit, proceeding or
investigation is made or brought against any Indemnified Party on or prior to the sixth
anniversary of the Effective Time, the provisions of this Section 5.5 shall continue in effect until
the final disposition of such claim, action, suit, proceeding or investigation.

(e) If the Company, US LEC or PAETEC or any of their respective
successors or assigns (1) shall consolidate with or merge into any other Person and shall not be
the continuing or surviving corporation or entity of such consolidation or merger or (ii) shall
transfer all or substantially all of its properties or assets to any Person, then, in each case, the
Company, US LEC or PAETEC shall take such action as may be necessary so that such Person
shall assume all of the applicable obligations set forth in this Section 5.5.

() The provisions of this Section 5.5 are (1) intended to be for the
benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, each Indemnified Party, his or her heirs and
representatives and (ii) in addition to, and not in substitution for, any other rights to
indemnification or contribution that any such Person may have by contract or otherwise.

SECTION 5.6 Fees and Expenses. Except as set forth in this Section 5.6 and
in Section 7.2, all fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Mergers, this Agreement
and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be paid by the party incurring such
fees or expenses, whether or not the Mergers are consummated, except that PAETEC shall bear
and pay two-thirds of the aggregate costs and expenses incurred by the Company, US LEC and
PAETEC, and US LEC shall bear and pay one-third of the aggregate costs and expenses incurred
by the Company, US LEC and PAETEC (other than attorneys' fees, accountants' fees and related
expenses) in connection with (i) the filing, printing and mailing of the Form S-4 (including
financial statements and exhibits), the Joint Proxy Statement (including SEC filing fees) and any
preliminary materials related thereto, (ii) the filing of all notices and/or petitions for regulatory
approval required by the FCC and relevant state public service or public utility commissions or
similar state regulatory bodies, and (iii) the filings of the premerger notification and report forms
under the HSR Act.

SECTION 5.7 Public Announcements. Neither PAETEC nor US LEC shall,
and neither PAETEC nor US LEC shall permit any of their respective Subsidiaries to, issue or
cause the publication of any press release or other public announcement with respect to, or
otherwise make any public statement concerning, the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement without the prior consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed
or conditioned) of US LEC, in the case of a proposed announcement or statement by PAETEC,
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or PAETEC, in the case of a proposed announcement or statement by US LEC; provided,
however, that US LEC may, without the prior consent of PAETEC, and PAETEC may, without
the prior consent of US LEC (but after prior consultation with the other party to the extent
practicable under the circumstances), issue or cause the publication of any press release or other
public announcement to the extent required by Applicable Law or by the NASDAQ Marketplace
Rules.

SECTION 5.8 Listing. The Company shall use reasonable best efforts to
cause the Company Common Stock issuable under Article II and any other shares of Company
Common Stock to be reserved for issuance following consummation of the Mergers (including
any shares of Company Common Stock issuable pursuant to the PAETEC Warrants, the
PAETEC Options, the PAETEC Unit Awards, the US LEC Warrants, the US LEC Options or the
US LEC Purchase Rights upon their assumption and conversion hereunder) to be authorized for
listing on NASDAQ or, if listing on NASDAQ is not reasonably practicable, the NASDAQ
Capital Market, upon official notice of issuance.

SECTION 5.9 Tax-Free Treatment.

(a) Neither US LEC nor PAETEC or any of their respective
Subsidiaries shall take or cause to be taken any action (including agreeing to any transaction or
entering into any agreement) that would result in the US LEC Merger together with the PAETEC
Merger to fail to qualify as an integrated series of transfers under Section 351 of the Code. US
LEC and PAETEC shall use all reasonable efforts, and shall cause their respective Subsidiaries
to use all reasonable efforts, to cause the US LEC Merger together with the PAETEC Merger to
qualify as an integrated series of transfers under Section 351 of the Code.

(b) US LEC and PAETEC and each of their respective Subsidiaries
shall not take any position on any Tax Return inconsistent with the treatment of the US LEC
Merger together with the PAETEC Merger as an integrated series of transfers under Section 351
of the Code, unless otherwise required pursuant to a determination within the meaning of Section
1313(a) of the Code.

(c)  Officers of US LEC and PAETEC shall execute and deliver to
Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher and Flom LLP, ("US LEC's Counsel") and Hogan & Hartson
L.L.P. ("PAETEC's Counsel") certificates (the "Tax Representation Letters") substantially in the
form agreed to by the parties and their counsel at such time or times as may be reasonably
requested by such tax counsel, including in connection with the distribution of Form S-4 and on
the Closing Date. Each of US LEC, PAETEC and each of their respective Subsidiaries shall use
its reasonable best efforts not to take or cause to be taken any-action which would cause to be
untrue (or fail to take or cause not to be taken any action which failure or inaction would cause to
be untrue) any of the statements included in the Tax Representation Letters.

SECTION 5.10  Conveyance Taxes. PAETEC and US LEC shall cooperate in
the preparation, execution and filing of all returns, questionnaires, applications or other
documents regarding any real property transfer or gains, sales, use, transter, value added, stock
transfer and stamp Taxes, any transfer, recording, registration and other fees or any similar Taxes
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which become payable in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement that
are required or permitted to be filed on or before the Effective Time.

SECTION 5.11  Equity Awards and Emplovee Benefits.

(a) PAETEC and US LEC Equity Awards.

1) Stock Options, Warrants and Rights. At the Effective Time,
each then outstanding PAETEC Option, each then outstanding PAETEC Warrant, each then
outstanding US LEC Option, each then outstanding right to acquire US LEC Common Stock
under the US LEC Purchase Plan (each, a "US LEC Purchase Right") and each then outstanding
US LEC Warrant, in each case, whether or not vested or exercisable at the Effective Time, shall
be assumed by the Company and converted into an option, right or warrant, as applicable, to
purchase Company Common Stock on the same terms and conditions applicable to such
PAETEC Option, PAETEC Warrant, US LEC Option, US LEC Purchase Right or US LEC
Warrant, as applicable (including any applicable option award agreement, warrant instrument or
other document evidencing such PAETEC Option, PAETEC Warrant, US LEC Option, US LEC
Purchase Right or US LEC Warrant, as applicable), immediately prior to the Effective Time,
including existing vesting and exercisability provisions without any acceleration thereof, except
that:

(A)  each assumed PAETEC Option or each assumed
PAETEC Warrant, as applicable, when exercisable, shall be exercisable for that number
of whole shares of Company Common Stock equal to the product of the number of shares
of PAETEC Common Stock that were subject to such assumed PAETEC Option or
assumed PAETEC Warrant, as applicable, immediately prior to the Effective Time
multiplied by the PAETEC Exchange Ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole share;

(B)  the per share exercise price for the shares of
" Company Common Stock issuable upon exercise of each assumed PAETEC Option or
each assumed PAETEC Warrant, as applicable, shall be equal to the quotient determined
by dividing the per share exercise price of PAETEC Common Stock of each assumed
PAETEC Option or each assumed PAETEC Warrant, as applicable, by the PAETEC
Exchange Ratio, rounded up to the nearest whole cent;

(C)  with respect to each assumed PAETEC Warrant,
consummation of the Mergers shall be deemed an "Initial Public Offering"” for purposes
of the exercisability of such PAETEC Warrant;

(D)  each assumed US LEC Option, each assumed US
LEC Purchase Right or each assumed US LEC Warrant, as applicable, when exercisable,
shall be exercisable for that number of whole shares of Company Common Stock equal to
the product of the number of shares of US LEC Common Stock that were subject to such
assumed US LEC Option, assumed US LEC Purchase Right or assumed US LEC
Warrant, as applicable, immediately prior to the Effective Time multiplied by the US
LEC Exchange Ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole share; and

71

553062.07-New York Server 3A - MSW



(E)  the per share exercise price for the shares of
Company Common Stock issuable upon exercise of each such assumed US LEC Option,
each such assumed US LEC Purchase Right or each such assumed US LEC Warrant, as
applicable, shall be equal to the quotient determined by dividing the per share exercise
price of US LEC Common Stock of such assumed US LEC Option, assumed US LEC
Purchase Right or assumed US LEC Warrant, as applicable, by the US LEC Exchange
Ratio, rounded up to the nearest whole cent.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the conversion of any PAETEC Option or US LEC Option that is
intended to be an "incentive stock option" within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code into an
option to purchase Company Common Stock, and the conversion of a US LEC Purchase Right
into a right to purchase Company Common Stock, shall be made so as not to constitute a
"modification” of such PAETEC Option, US LEC Option or US LEC Purchase Right within the
meaning of Section 424 of the Code.

(ii) PAETEC Units. At the Effective Time, each then
outstanding award of stock units relating to PAETEC Common Stock granted by PAETEC under
the PAETEC Executive Incentive Plan or the PAETEC 2001 Plan (each, a "PAETEC Unit
Award") shall be assumed by the Company and converted into stock units relating to Company
Common Stock on the same terms and conditions applicable to such assumed PAETEC Unit
Award (including any applicable stock unit award agreement or other document evidencing such
PAETEC Unit Award) immediately prior to the Effective Time, including existing vesting and
delivery provisions without any acceleration thereof, except that each PAETEC Unit Award shall
represent the right to receive that number of whole shares of Company Common Stock equal to
the product of the number of shares of PAETEC Common Stock that were subject to such
assumed PAETEC Unit Award immediately prior to the Effective Time multiplied by the
PAETEC Exchange Ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole share.

(iii)  Effective as of the Effective Time, the Company shall
assume the PAETEC Stock Plans only to the extent that the PAETEC Plan Options, the
PAETEC Plan Warrants and the PAETEC Unit Awards which shall be assumed by the Company
and converted into awards relating to the Company Common Stock pursuant to this Section
5.11(a) were issued pursuant to the PAETEC Stock Plans. Effective as of the Effective Time,
the Company shall assume (A) the US LEC Purchase Plan and (B) the US LEC Stock Plan only
to the extent that the US LEC Stock Options which shall be assumed by the Company and
converted into awards relating to the Company Common Stock pursuant to this Section 5.11(a)
were issued pursuant to the US LEC Stock Plan.

(iv)  Each of PAETEC and US LEC shall take all corporate
action necessary (including in the case of PAETEC, amending any PAETEC Stock Agreements),
so that, as of the Effective Time, (1) each PAETEC Option, each PAETEC Unit Award, each
PAETEC Warrant, each US LEC Option, each US LEC Purchase Right and each US LEC
Warrant is treated in accordance with the applicable provisions of Sections 5.11(a)(i), (a)(ii) and
(a)(iii), and (2) assuming approval of the New Equity Plan pursuant to Section 5.11(e), each of
the PAETEC Stock Plans and the US LEC Stock Plan shall terminate to the extent such plan is
not assumed by the Company pursuant to Section 5.11(a)(iii). As soon as reasonably practicable
following the Effective Time, the Company shall (A) issue to each holder of an assumed
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PAETEC Option, an assumed PAETEC Unit Award, an assumed PAETEC Warrant, an assumed
US LEC Option, an assumed US LEC Purchase Right or an assumed US LEC Warrant, a
document evidencing the foregoing assumption of such PAETEC Option, PAETEC Unit Award,
PAETEC Warrant, US LEC Option, US LEC Purchase Right or US LEC Warrant, as applicable,
and (B) issue appropriate notices setting forth such holder's rights pursuant to the foregoing
awards, including the effect of the Mergers on such awards. Prior to the Effective Time, the
Company shall take all corporate action necessary to reserve for issuance a sufficient number of
shares of Company Common Stock for delivery in connection with the exercise or settlement of
the assumed PAETEC Options, assumed PAETEC Unit Awards, assumed PAETEC Warrants,
assumed US LEC Options, assumed US LEC Purchase Rights and assumed US LEC Warrants.
As soon as reasonably practicable following the Closing Date, subject to applicable SEC rules
and regulations, the Company shall register the offering and sale by the Company of the shares
of Company Common Stock subject to the assumed PAETEC Options, assumed PAETEC Unit
Awards, assumed US LEC Options and assumed US LEC Purchase Rights on Form S-8 (or any
successor form), and the Company shall maintain the effectiveness of such registration statement
or registration statements with respect thereto for so long as such awards remain outstanding.

(v) Each of the Company, PAETEC and US LEC shall take all
corporate action necessary to ensure that, as of the Effective Time, the agreements or other
arrangements set forth in Section 5.11(a)(v) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule and Section
5.11(a)}(v) of the US LEC Disclosure Schedule are assumed by the Company.

(b) Effective as of the Closing, the Company shall, and shall cause its
Subsidiaries (including the US LEC Surviving Corporation) to, continue the employment of each
employee of US LEC who was employed by US LEC or its Subsidiaries immediately prior to the
Closing (the "Continuing US LEC Employees") on terms and conditions with respect to salary
and wages that are substantially similar to those terms and conditions in effect as of immediately
prior to the Closing. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as prohibiting the Company
and its Subsidiaries (including the US LEC Surviving Corporation) from terminating the
employment of any employee of US LEC and its Subsidiaries (including the US LEC Surviving
Corporation) for any reason following the Closing Date. Effective as of the Closing, the
Company shall, and shall cause its Subsidiaries (including the PAETEC Surviving Corporation)
to, continue the employment of each employee of PAETEC who was employed by PAETEC or
its Subsidiaries immediately prior to the Closing (the "Continuing PAETEC Employees";
Continuing PAETEC Employees and Continuing US LEC Employees being referred to
collectively as the "Continuing Employees") on terms and conditions with respect to salary and
wages that are substantially similar to those terms and conditions in effect as of immediately
prior to the Closing. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as prohibiting the Company
and its Subsidiaries (including the PAETEC Surviving Corporation) from terminating the
employment of any employee of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries (including the PAETEC
Surviving Corporation) for any reason following the Closing Date.

(c) To the extent that, following the Closing Date, a Continuing US
LEC Employee commences participation in a PAETEC Benefit Plan or any employee benefit
plan, program, agreement, policy or arrangement maintained by the Company (a "Company
Benefit Plan") or a Continuing PAETEC Employee commences participation in a US LEC
Benefit Plan or a Company Benefit Plan, the Company shall, and shall cause its Affiliates and
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the applicable US LEC Benefit Plan, PAETEC Benefit Plan or Company Benefit Plan to, (i)
credit each Continuing Employee's service with US LEC or PAETEC, or any predecessor
employers to US LEC or PAETEC, to the extent credited under the analogous US LEC Benefit
Plan or PAETEC Benefit Plan, as service with US LEC, PAETEC or the Company, as the case
may be, for all purposes under such US LEC Benefit Plan, PAETEC Benefit Plan or Company
Benefit Plan; provided, however, that in no event shall the Continuing Employees be entitled to
any credit to the extent that such credit would result in duplication of benefits with respect to the
same period of service, (i) cause any and all pre-existing condition limitations, eligibility
waiting periods, active employment requirements and requirements to show evidence of good
health under such US LEC Benefit Plan, PAETEC Benefit Plan or Company Benefit Plan, to the
extent that such conditions, exclusions and waiting periods would have been waived or satisfied
under the analogous US LEC Benefit Plan or PAETEC Benefit Plan in which such Continuing
Employee participated immediately prior to the Closing Date, to be waived with respect to such
Continuing Employee and such Continuing Employee's spouse and eligible dependents who
become participants in such US LEC Benefit Plan, PAETEC Benefit Plan or Company Benefit
Plan and (iii) give credit for or otherwise take into account under such US LEC Benefit Plan,
PAETEC Benefit Plan or Company Benefit Plan the out-of-pocket expenses and annual expense
limitation amounts paid by each Continuing Employee under the analogous US LEC Benefit
Plan or PAETEC Benefit Plan for the year in which the Closing Date occurs.

(d) Following the Effective Time, the Company and its Affiliates
(including the US LEC Surviving Corporation) shall maintain the US LEC Retention and
Severance Plan in accordance with its terms without any amendment thereto which would have
the effect of adversely affecting any participant's rights thereunder.

(e) Each of US LEC and PAETEC agrees that (i) prior to the mailing
of the Joint Proxy Statement to stockholders of US LEC and stockholders of PAETEC, the
Company and PAETEC, in PAETEC's capacity prior to the Effective Time as the sole
stockholder of the Company, shall adopt an omnibus-type equity incentive plan containing such
terms as may be agreed upon by the Company, US LEC and PAETEC (the "New Equity Plan")
for the purposes of providing for the grant, following the Effective Time, of equity-based
incentives to the directors, officers and other employees, advisors and consultants of the
Company and its Subsidiaries, and (ii) the New Equity Plan shall be submitted to US LEC's
stockholders for approval at the US LEC Stockholders' Meeting, provided that the effectiveness
of the New Equity Plan shall be subject to consummation of the Mergers.

SECTION 5.12  Affiliates. PAETEC shall use its reasonable efforts to cause
each Person who is, in PAETEC's reasonable judgment, an "affiliate” of PAETEC within the
meaning of Rule 145 promulgated under the Securities Act ("PAETEC Rule 145 Affiliates") to
deliver to the Company, as soon as reasonably practicable and in any event prior to the PAETEC
Stockholders' Meeting, a written agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit
5.12. The Company shall be entitled to place appropriate legends (reasonably acceptable to
PAETEC) on the certificates evidencing any shares of Company Common Stock to be received
by PAETEC Rule 145 Affiliates in the PAETEC Merger reflecting the restrictions set forth in
Rule 145 promulgated under the Securities Act and to issue appropriate stop transfer instructions
to the transfer agent for Company Common Stock (provided that such legends or stop transfer
instructions shall be removed, one year after the PAETEC Effective Time, upon the request of
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any holder of shares of Company Common Stock issued in the PAETEC Merger if such holder is
not then a PAETEC Rule 145 Affiliate). US LEC shall use its reasonable efforts to cause each
Person who is, in US LEC's reasonable judgment, an "affiliate” of US LEC within the meaning
of Rule 145 promulgated under the Securities Act ("US LEC Rule 145 Affiliates") to deliver to
the Company, as soon as reasonably practicable and in any event prior to the US LEC
Stockholders' Meeting, a written agreement substantially in the form attached as Exhibit 5.12.
The Company shall be entitled to place appropriate legends (reasonably acceptable to US LEC)
on the certificates evidencing any shares of Company Common Stock to be received by US LEC
Rule 145 Affiliates in the US LEC Merger reflecting the restrictions set forth in Rule 145
promulgated under the Securities Act and to issue appropriate stop transfer instructions to the
transfer agent for Company Common Stock (provided that such legends or stop transfer
instructions shall be removed, one year after the US LEC Effective Time, upon the request of
any holder of shares of Company Common Stock issued in the US LEC Merger if such holder is
not then a US LEC Rule 145 Affiliate).

SECTION 5.13  Notification of Certain Matters. US LEC shall give prompt
notice to PAETEC and PAETEC shall give prompt notice to US LEC, as the case may be, of the
occurrence, or failure to occur, with respect to the other party, of any event, which occurrence or
failure to occur would reasonably be expected to cause (a) (1) any representation or warranty of
the other party contained in this Agreement that is qualified as to "materiality” or "Material
Adverse Effect” to be untrue or inaccurate in any respect or (i1) any other representation or
warranty of the other party contained in this Agreement that is not qualified as to "materiality" or
"Material Adverse Effect" to be untrue or inaccurate in any material respect, in each case at any
time from and after the date of this Agreement until the Effective Time, or (b) any material
failure of the other party to comply with or satisfy any covenant, condition or agreement to be
complied with or satistied by it under this Agreement. In addition, US LEC shall give prompt
notice to PAETEC and PAETEC shall give prompt notice to US LEC, as the case may be, of any
change or event having, or which would reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse
Effect on the party receiving such notice and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or which would
reasonably be expected to result in the failure by the other party to satisfy any of the conditions
set forth in Article VI to be satisfied by such other party. Notwithstanding the above, the
delivery of any notice pursuant to this Section 5.13 shall not limit or otherwise affect the
remedies available hereunder to the party providing or receiving such notice or the conditions to
either party's obligation to consummate the PAETEC Merger or the US LEC Merger, as
applicable.

SECTION 5.14  Financing.

(a) The Company, US LEC and PAETEC shall use their respective
reasonable best efforts to satisfy the conditions contained in the executed commitment letter (the
"Commitment Letter"), attached hereto as Exhibit 5.14(a), from Deutsche Bank and Merrill to
provide debt financing to the Company to refinance the senior secured indebtedness of US LEC
and PAETEC as provided herein and therein and to repurchase the US LEC Preferred Stock in
connection with the Mergers in an aggregate amount set forth therein (the "Financing")
(including all conditions relating to cooperating and assisting Deutsche Bank and Merrill in their
syndication efforts with respect to the Financing). If any portion of the Financing becomes
unavailable on the terms and conditions contemplated in the Commitment Letter, all of such
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parties shall use their respective reasonable best efforts to arrange to obtain alternative financing
from alternative sources (on terms and conditions, taken as a whole, no less favorable to the
Company in any material respect than those set forth in the Commitment Letter) in an amount
sufficient to refinance the senior secured indebtedness of US LEC and PAETEC referred to in
Sections 5.14(b) and 5.14(c) and in the Commitment Letter and to repurchase the US LEC
Preferred Stock.

(b) Unless US LEC and PAETEC otherwise agree, on or prior to the
Closing Date, US LEC shall redeem, repurchase and/or otherwise discharge all of its outstanding
Second Priority Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes due 2009 (the "US LEC Notes") from the
proceeds of the Financing or the alternative financing referred to in Section 5.14(a) at a price not
to exceed 105.5% (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount thereof), together with all
accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption, repurchase or discharge, as the case may
be. US LEC shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause the trustee to execute and deliver the
proper instruments evidencing such redemption, repurchase and/or discharge on the Closing Date
or as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter.

() As of or concurrently with the Closing, all outstanding obligations
under (x) the existing first lien credit agreement, dated as of June 12, 2006, and (y) the existing
second lien credit agreement, dated as of June 12, 2006 (collectively, the "Existing PAETEC
Credit Agreements"), to which PAETEC and PaeTec Communications, Inc. ("PAETEC Sub")
are parties shall be repaid in full by the Company from the proceeds of the Financing or the
alternative financing referred to in Section 5.14(a), all as set forth in payoff letters from the
Administrative Agent (as defined in the Existing PAETEC Credit Agreements), and PAETEC
shall, and shall cause PAETEC Sub to, terminate all commitments and letters of credit issued
under the Existing PAETEC Credit Agreements. PAETEC shall use its reasonable best efforts to
cause the Administrative Agent to execute and deliver the proper instruments evidencing such
repayment and termination on the Closing Date or as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter.

(d) The Company and US LEC each agree not to (i) amend or modify
the Commitment Letter in any material respect or (ii) use the proceeds of the Financing in any
manner not permitted by the Commitment Letter.

SECTION 5.15  Stockholder Litigation. Each of US LEC and PAETEC shall
keep the other reasonably informed of, and cooperate with the other in connection with, any
stockholder litigation or claim against it and/or its respective directors or officers relating to the
Mergers or the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement; provided, however, that no
settlement in connection with such stockholder litigation shall be agreed to without such other
party's prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed; provided, further, that all obligations in this Section 5.15 shall be subject to the
obligations of each such party under Applicable Laws relating to attorney-client communication
and privilege.

SECTION 5.16  Section 16(b). The Board of Directors of the Company, or a
committee of Non-Employee Directors thereof (as such term is defined for purposes of Rule 16b-
3(b)(3) under the Exchange Act), shall adopt a resolution before the Effective Time providing
that the acquisition by officers and directors of PAETEC and of US LEC who will become
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officers and directors of the Company at the Effective Time of Company Common Stock in
exchange for shares of PAETEC Common Stock or US LEC Common Stock, and of options to
purchase Company Common Stock and of other derivative securities of the Company, upon
assumption and conversion by the Company of options to purchase PAETEC Common Stock,
options to purchase US LEC Common Stock or other derivative securities, in each case pursuant
to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, are intended to be exempt from liability
pursuant to Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act. The Board of Directors of PAETEC, or a
committee of Non-Employee Directors thereof (as such term is defined for purposes of Rule 16b-
3(b)(3) under the Exchange Act), shall adopt a resolution before the PAETEC Effective Time
providing that the disposition by officers and directors of PAETEC Common Stock in exchange
for shares of Company Common Stock, and of options to purchase PAETEC Common Stock and
of other PAETEC derivative securities upon assumption and conversion by the Company of
options to purchase PAETEC Common Stock and upon assumption and conversion of such other
PAETEC derivative securities, in each case pursuant to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, are intended to be exempt from liability pursuant to Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange
Act. The Board of Directors of US LEC, or a committee of Non-Employee Directors thereof (as
such term is defined for purposes of Rule 16b-3(b)(3) under the Exchange Act), shall adopt a
resolution before the US LEC Effective Time providing that the disposition by officers and
directors of US LEC Common Stock in exchange for shares of Company Common Stock, and of
options to purchase US LEC Common Stock and of other US LEC derivative securities upon
assumption and conversion by the Company of options to purchase US LEC Common Stock and
upon assumption and conversion of such other US LEC derivative securities, in each case
pursuant to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, are intended to be exempt from
liability pursuant to Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act.

SECTION 5.17  Certain PAETEC Agreements. PAETEC shall not breach,
amend or modify in any manner any of (i) the PAETEC Senior Officer Agreements, (ii) the
PAETEC Ancillary Agreement or (ii1) the Conversion Agreement.

SECTION 5.18  Corporate Actions. By the close of business on the day
immediately after the date hereof, (a) PAETEC, as the holder of all of the outstanding shares of
capital stock of the Company, shall adopt this Agreement and approve the transactions
contemplated hereby, and (b) the Company, as the holder of all of the outstanding shares of
capital stock of Merger Sub U and of Merger Sub P, shall adopt this Agreement and approve the
transactions contemplated hereby.

ARTICLE VI

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

SECTION 6.1 Conditions to Each Party's Obligation to Effect the Mergers.
The obligation of each party to effect the PAETEC Merger and the US LEC Merger, as
applicable, is subject to the satisfaction or waiver at or prior to the Closing of the following
conditions:

(a) Stockholder Approvals. Each of the US LEC Stockholder
Approval (except for such approval relating to the New Equity Plan) and the PAETEC
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Stockholder Approval (except, to the extent applicable, for such approval relating to the New
Equity Plan) shall have been obtained.

(b) Antitrust Waiting Periods. The waiting periods (and any
extensions thereof) and any approvals applicable to the Mergers under the HSR Act shall have
been terminated or shall have expired or shall have been obtained, as applicable.

(©) Regulatory Approvals. All regulatory approvals shall have been
obtained, including (i) the authorization required to be obtained from the FCC for the
consummation of the Mergers, (ii) all approvals, if any, required to be obtained (A) with or from
any state public service or public utility commissions or similar state regulatory bodies listed in
Section 3.1(c)(v)(E) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule or Section 3.2(¢c)(v)(D) of the US LEC
Disclosure Schedule, or (B) under any foreign governments, in each case in connection with the
consummation of the Mergers and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement (except
in the case of this clause (i1), for any failures to obtain such approvals that would not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect on
the Company, the US LEC Surviving Corporation, the PAETEC Surviving Corporation and their
respective Subsidiaries, taken as a whole (determined for purposes of this clause (ii) after giving
effect to the Mergers)).

(d) Consents and Approvals. Other than the expirations and approvals
required by Sections 6.1(b) and 6.1(c), all filings with, and all consents, approvals and
authorizations of, any Governmental Entity or other Persons required to be made or obtained by
US LEC, PAETEC or any of their respective Subsidiaries to consummate the Mergers shall have
been obtained, other than such consents, approvals and authorizations the failure of which to be
made or obtained would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect on
the Company, the US LEC Surviving Corporation, the PAETEC Surviving Corporation and their
respective Subsidiaries, taken as a whole (determined, for purposes of this clause, after giving
effect to the Mergers).

(e) No Injunctions or Restraints. No judgment, order, decree, statute,
law, ordinance, rule or regulation, or other legal restraint or prohibition, entered, enacted,
promulgated, enforced or issued by any court or other Governmental Entity of competent
jurisdiction shall be in effect that makes illegal or prohibits the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement.

® Form S-4. The Form S-4 shall have been declared effective under
the Securities Act prior to the mailing of the Joint Proxy Statement by each of US LEC and
PAETEC to their stockholders, respectively, and no stop order or proceedings seeking a stop
order shall have been initiated or, to the Knowledge of US LEC or PAETEC, threatened by the
SEC.

(g) Listing. The shares of Company Common Stock issuable to the
stockholders of PAETEC and US LEC under Article II and any other shares of Company
Common Stock to be reserved for issuance following consummation of the Mergers (including
any shares of Company Common Stock issuable pursuant to the PAETEC Warrants, the
PAETEC Options, the PAETEC Unit Awards, the US LEC Warrants, the US LEC Options or the
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US LEC Purchase Rights upon their assumption and conversion hereunder) shall have been
authorized for listing on NASDAQ or, if listing of the Company Common Stock on NASDAQ
shall not have been reasonably practicable, the NASDAQ Capital Market (or any stock exchange
successor to The NASDAQ Stock Market LL.C), upon official notice of issuance.

(h) US LEC Preferred Stock Repurchase. As of or concurrently with
the Closing, US LEC shall have consummated the US LEC Preferred Stock Repurchase and no
share of US LEC Preferred Stock shall be outstanding.

(1) Financing. As of or concurrently with the Closing, the Company
shall have received aggregate net proceeds from the Financing or otherwise obtained alternative
financing in accordance with Section 5.14(a) in an amount sufficient, together with cash on hand,
to refinance all of the senior secured indebtedness of US LEC and PAETEC to the extent
provided herein and to repurchase the US LEC Preferred Stock and shall have applied such
proceeds to refinance such indebtedness (including the redemption, repurchase and/or discharge
of the US LEC Notes in accordance with Section 5.14(b)) and to repurchase the US LEC
Preferred Stock in accordance with the terms of the Repurchase Agreement.

)] Dissenting Shares. Holders of no greater than 15% of the issued
and outstanding shares of PAETEC Common Stock shall have demanded appraisal for such
shares in accordance with the DGCL (excluding such holders who have failed to perfect,
withdrawn or otherwise lost such right to appraisal) prior to the Closing.

(k) Board Composition. The Board of Directors of the Company as of
the Effective Time shall have been constituted as provided in Section 1.8.

SECTION 6.2 Conditions to Obligations of PAETEC. The obligation of
PAETEC to effect the PAETEC Merger is further subject to satisfaction or waiver at or prior to
the Closing of the following conditions:

(a) Representations and Warranties. The representations and
warranties of US LEC set forth herein shall be true and correct (without giving effect to any
limitation as to "materiality” or "Material Adverse Effect” set forth therein (other than the
representation set forth in Section 3.2(f)(ii), which shall be read with the Material Adverse Effect
qualification)) both when made and at and as of the Closing Date, as if made at and as ot such
time (except to the extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in which case as of such date),
except where the failure of such representations and warranties to be so true and correct (without
giving effect to any limitation as to "materiality” or "Material Adverse Effect” set forth therein
(other than the representation set forth in Section 3.2(f)(ii), which shall be read with the Material
Adverse Effect qualification)) does not have, and would not reasonably be expected to have,
individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC and its Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole.

(b) Performance of Obligations of US LEC. US LEC shall have
performed, or complied with, in all material respects all obligations required to be performed or
complied with by it under this Agreement at or prior to the Closing Date.
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(©) No Material Adverse Effect. No Material Adverse Effect of US
LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, shall have occurred since the date of this Agreement
and be continuing.

(d) Officer's Certificate. PAETEC shall have received an officer's
certificate duly executed by the Chief Financial Officer of US LEC to the effect that the
conditions set forth in Sections 6.2(a), 6.2(b) and 6.2(c) have been satisfied.

(e) Tax Opinion. PAETEC shall have received a written opinion of
PAETEC's Counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to PAETEC, dated the
Closing Date, to the effect that, on the basis of facts, representations and assumptions set forth or
referred to in such opinion that are consistent with the state of facts existing at the Effective
Time, the US LEC Merger together with the PAETEC Merger shall be treated as an integrated
series of transfers under Section 351 of the Code. In rendering such opinion, PAETEC's Counsel
may require and rely upon representations and covenants, including those contained in Tax
Representation Letters and others, reasonably satisfactory in form and substance to such counsel.

(H) Communications Regulatory Opinion. PAETEC shall have
received a written opinion of PAETEC's FCC counsel, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that,
as of such date, (i) PAETEC and its Subsidiaries have all required authorizations, licenses and
permits required under the Communications Act, and the rules, regulations, policies or orders of
the FCC (the "FCC Authorizations"); (i) all such FCC Authorizations are in full force and effect;
(i11) there are no complaints, proceedings, investigations, protests, notices of violation, notices of
apparent liability, petitions or other objections (whether formal or informal) currently pending or
threatened at the FCC relating to the FCC Authorizations of PAETEC or its Subsidiaries; and (iv)
the consummation of this Agreement and the other transactions contemplated hereunder will not
result in or cause a cancellation, termination, revocation, forfeiture, modification or material
impairment of such FCC Authorizations.

SECTION 6.3 Conditions to Obligations of US LEC. The obligations of US
LEC to effect the US LEC Merger are further subject to satisfaction or waiver at or prior to the
Closing of the following conditions:

(a) Representations and Warranties. The representations and
warranties of PAETEC set forth herein shall be true and correct (without giving effect to any
limitation as to "materiality” or "Material Adverse Effect" set forth therein (other than the
representation set forth in Section 3.1(f)(ii), which shall be read with the Material Adverse Effect
qualification)) both when made and at and as of the Closing Date, as if made at and as of such
time (except to the extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in which case as of such date),
except where the failure of such representations and warranties to be so true and correct (without
giving effect to any limitation as to "materiality" or "Material Adverse Effect” set forth therein
(other than the representation set forth in Section 3.1(f)(ii), which shall be read with the Material
Adverse Effect qualification)) does not have, and would not reasonably be expected to have,
individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect on PAETEC and its Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole.
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(b) Performance of Obligations of PAETEC. PAETEC and the
Company shall have performed, or complied with, in all material respects all obligations required
to be performed or complied with by it under this Agreement at or prior to the Closing Date.

(©) No Material Adverse Effect. No Material Adverse Effect of
PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, shall have occurred since the date of this
Agreement and be continuing.

(d) Officer's Certificate. US LEC shall have received an officer's
certificate duly executed by the Chief Financial Officer of PAETEC to the effect that the
conditions set forth in Sections 6.3(a), 6.3(b) and 6.3(c) have been satisfied.

(e) Tax Opinion. US LEC shall have received a written opinion of US
LEC's Counsel, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to US LEC, dated the Closing
Date, to the effect that, on the basis of facts, representations and assumptions set forth or referred
to in such opinion that are consistent with the state of facts existing at the Effective Time, the US
LEC Merger together with the PAETEC Merger shall be treated as an integrated series of
transfers under Section 351 of the Code. In rendering such opinion, US LEC's Counsel may
require and rely upon representations and covenants, including those contained in Tax
Representation Letters and others, reasonably satisfactory in form and substance to such counsel.

63 Communications Regulatory Opinion. US LEC shall have
received a written opinion of US LEC's FCC counsel, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that,
as of such date, (i) US LEC and its Subsidiaries have all required FCC Authorizations; (ii) all
such FCC Authorizations are in full force and effect; (ii1) there are no complaints, proceedings,
investigations, protests, notices of violation, notices of apparent liability, petitions or other objec-
tions (whether formal or informal) currently pending or threatened at the FCC relating to the
FCC Authorizations of US LEC or its Subsidiaries; and (iv) the consummation of this Agreement
and the other transactions contemplated hereunder will not result in or cause a cancellation,
termination, revocation, forfeiture, modification or material impairment of such FCC
Authorizations.

(2) Certain PAETEC Agreements. None of the PAETEC Senior
Officer Agreements, the PAETEC Ancillary Agreement or the Conversion Agreement shall have
been breached, amended or modified in any manner, and each of the PAETEC Senior Ofticer
Agreements, the PAETEC Ancillary Agreement and the Conversion Agreement shall be in full
force and effect.

ARTICLE VII

TERMINATION, AMENDMENT AND WAIVER

SECTION 7.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time
prior to the Effective Time, whether before or after approval of the matters presented in
connection with the Mergers by the stockholders of US LEC or PAETEC:

(a) by mutual written consent of PAETEC and US LEC, if the Board
of Directors of each so determines;
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(b) by written notice of either PAETEC or US LEC (as authorized by
the Board of Directors of PAETEC or US LEC, as applicable):

(1) if the Mergers shall not have been consummated by 180
days from the date of this Agreement (the "Outside Date"); provided, however, that if, as of such
Outside Date, all conditions that are not to be satisfied by action taken at the Closing set forth in
Sections 6.1, 6.2 and 6.3 shall have been satisfied or waived, other than the conditions set forth
in Sections 6.1(b), 6.1(c) and (solely with respect to consents, approvals and authorizations of
any Governmental Entity required to be made or obtained by US LEC, PAETEC or any of their
respective Subsidiaries) 6.1(d), then the Outside Date shall be extended at the election of either
PAETEC or US LEC to a date not later than 270 days from the date of this Agreement, which
date shall thereafter be deemed to be the Outside Date; provided, further, that the right to
terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 7.1(b)(i) shall not be available to any party
whose failure to perform any of'its obligations under this Agreement has been the cause of, or
resulted in, the Mergers not occurring on or before the Outside Date;

(11) if a Governmental Entity that is of competent jurisdiction
shall have issued a final and nonappealable order, decree or ruling or taken any other action
(including the failure to have taken an action), having the effect of permanently restraining,
enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the PAETEC Merger or the US LEC Merger; provided,
however, that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 7.1(b)(ii) shall not be
available to any party whose failure to comply with Section 5.4 has caused or primarily resulted
in such action by such Governmental Entity;

(ii1)  if the PAETEC Stockholder Approval shall not have been
obtained at the PAETEC Stockholders' Meeting, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof,
at which the vote to obtain the PAETEC Stockholder Approval was taken; or

(iv)  ifthe US LEC Stockholder Approval (excluding such
approval with respect to the New Equity Plan) shall not have been obtained at the US LEC
Stockholders' Meeting, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof, at which the vote to
obtain the US LEC Stockholder Approval was taken;

(c) by PAETEC (as authorized by its Board of Directors) upon a
breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement on the part of US LEC set forth in
this Agreement, or if any representation or warranty of US LEC shall have become untrue, in
either case such that the conditions set forth in Section 6.2(a) or 6.2(b) would not be satisfied as
of the time of such breach or as of the time such representation or warranty shall have become
untrue; provided, however, that if such failure to satisfy such conditions is curable on or before
the Outside Date, then only upon the failure of US LEC to cure such breach in all material
respects within 30 days after written notice thereof shall have been received by US LEC or, if
such breach could not reasonably be expected to be cured within such 30 days, only if US LEC
does not promptly commence an action to cure such breach after receipt of notice and diligently
prosecute such cure to completion as promptly as practicable and in no event later than the
Outside Date;
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(d) by US LEC (as authorized by its Board of Directors) upon a breach
of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement on the part of PAETEC set forth in this
Agreement, or if any representation or warranty of PAETEC shall have become untrue, in either
case such that the conditions set forth in Section 6.3(a) or 6.3(b) would not be satisfied as of the
time of such breach or as of the time such representation or warranty shall have become untrue;
provided, however, that if such failure to satisfy such conditions is curable on or before the
Outside Date, then only upon the failure of PAETEC to cure such breach in all material respects
within 30 days after written notice thereof shall have been received by PAETEC or, if such
breach could not reasonably be expected to be cured within such 30 days, only if PAETEC does
not promptly commence an action to cure such breach after receipt of notice and diligently
prosecute such cure to completion as promptly as practicable and in no event later than the
Outside Date;

(e) by PAETEC (as authorized by its Board of Directors), at any time
prior to the US LEC Stockholder Approval, if US LEC, the US LEC Board of Directors or any
committee thereof, for any reason, shall have (i) failed to call or hold the US LEC Stockholders’
Meeting in accordance with Section 5.1(b), (ii) failed to include in the Joint Proxy Statement
distributed to the stockholders of US LEC its recommendation that such stockholders adopt this
Agreement and approve the transactions contemplated hereby and the Company Charter
Amendment, (iii) effected a Change of Recommendation, (iv) failed to reconfirm its
recommendation that such stockholders adopt this Agreement and approve the transactions
contemplated hereby and the Company Charter Amendment within ten calendar days of receipt
of a written request from PAETEC to do so, provided that PAETEC shall not make such request
unless prior thereto a Person shall have made to US LEC or its stockholders, or publicly
announced, a proposal, offer or indication of interest relating to any Acquisition (as defined in
Section 7.2(e)) with respect to US LEC, (v) approved or recommended any Alternative
Transaction, or (vi) failed, within ten business days after any tender or exchange offer relating to
US LEC Common Stock commenced by any third Person shall have been first published, sent or
given, to have sent to its security holders a statement disclosing that the Board of Directors of US
LEC recommends rejection of such tender offer or exchange offer;

H by US LEC (as authorized by its Board of Directors), at any time
prior to the PAETEC Shareholder Approval, if PAETEC, the PAETEC Board of Directors or any
committee thereof, for any reason, shall have (i) failed to call or hold the PAETEC Stockholders'
Meeting in accordance with Section 5.1(b), (ii) failed to include in the Joint Proxy Statement
distributed to the stockholders of PAETEC its recommendation that such stockholders adopt this
Agreement and approve the transactions contemplated hereby, (iii) effected a Change of
Recommendation, (iv) failed to reconfirm its recommendation that stockholders of PAETEC
adopt this Agreement and approve the transactions contemplated hereby within ten calendar days
of receipt of a written request from US LEC to do so, provided that US LEC shall not make such
request unless prior thereto a Person shall have made to PAETEC or its stockholders, or publicly
announced, a proposal, offer or indication of interest relating to any Acquisition with respect to
PAETEC, (v) approved or recommended any Alternative Transaction, or (vi) failed, within ten
business days after any tender or exchange offer relating to PAETEC Common Stock
commenced by any third Person shall have been first published, sent or given, to have sent to its
security holders a statement disclosing that the Board of Directors of PAETEC recommends
rejection of such tender offer or exchange offer;
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(2) by PAETEC, at any time prior to the PAETEC Stockholder
Approval, if (i) the Board of Directors of PAETEC authorizes PAETEC, subject to complying
with the terms of this Agreement, to enter into a binding written agreement concerning a
transaction that constitutes a PAETEC Superior Proposal and PAETEC notifies US LEC in
writing that it intends to enter into such an agreement, attaching the most current version of such
agreement (or a description of all material terms and conditions thereof) to such notice, (ii) US
LEC does not make, within two business days of receipt of PAETEC's written notification of its
intention to enter into a binding agreement for a PAETEC Superior Proposal, an offer that the
Board of Directors of PAETEC determines, in good faith after consultation with a financial
advisor of nationally recognized reputation, is at least as favorable to PAETEC's stockholders as
the PAETEC Superior Proposal, it being understood that PAETEC shall not enter into any such
binding agreement during such two-day period, and (iii) PAETEC, at or prior to any termination
pursuant to this Section 7.1(g), pays to US LEC the PAETEC Termination Fee (as defined in
Section 7.2(c)) by wire transfer of immediately available funds; or

(h) by US LEC, at any time prior to the US LEC Stockholder
Approval, if (i) the Board of Directors of US LEC authorizes US LEC, subject to complying with
the terms of this Agreement, to enter into a binding written agreement concerning a transaction
that constitutes a US LEC Superior Proposal and US LEC notifies PAETEC in writing that it
intends to enter into such an agreement, attaching the most current version of such agreement (or
a description of all material terms and conditions thereof) to such notice, (ii) PAETEC does not
make, within two business days of receipt of US LEC's written notification of its intention to
enter into a binding agreement for a US LEC Superior Proposal, an offer that the Board of
Directors of US LEC determines, in good faith after consultation with a financial advisor of
nationally recognized reputation, is at least as favorable to US LEC's stockholders as the US
LEC Superior Proposal, it being understood that US LEC shall not enter into any such binding
agreement during such two-day period, and (iii) US LEC, at or prior to any termination pursuant
to this Section 7.1(h), pays to PAETEC the US LEC Termination Fee (as defined in Section
7.2(b)) by wire transfer of immediately available funds.

SECTION 7.2 Effect of Termination and Payment.

(a) Effect of Termination. In the event of termination of this
Agreement as provided in Section 7.1 and the payment of a US LEC Termination Fee or
PAETEC Termination Fee, if any, this Agreement shall forthwith become void and have no
effect and there shall be no liability of any nature whatsoever on the part of any of the parties,
except (i) as set forth in Section 5.3(b), Section 5.6, this Section 7.2, or Article VIII (other than
Section 8.1) to the extent applicable to such surviving sections, each of which shall survive
termination of this Agreement, and (ii) that nothing herein shall relieve any party from any
further liability for any willful or intentional breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or
agreement of such party contained herein. No termination of this Agreement shall affect the
obligations of the parties contained in the CDA, all of which obligations shall survive
termination of this Agreement in accordance with their terms. Subject to the foregoing
provisions of this Section 7.2(a), payments made pursuant to this Section 7.2 shall be in addition
to any other rights, remedies and relief of the parties hereto or with respect to the subject matter
of this Agreement.
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(b) Payment by US LEC. In the event that this Agreement is
terminated by US LEC pursuant to any of Section 7.1(b)(iv) or 7.1(h) or by PAETEC pursuant to
any of Section 7.1(b)(iv), 7.1(c) or 7.1(e), US LEC shall, concurrently with such termination
(subject to the further provisions of this Section 7.2(b)), pay PAETEC a fee equal to the sum of
(A) $3,000,000 plus (B) an amount equal to the reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by
PAETEC in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement not to exceed
$500,000 in the aggregate, in immediately available funds (the "US LEC Termination Fee");
provided that, in the case of a termination pursuant to Section 7.1(b)(iv), 7.1(c), 7.1(e)(iv) or
7.1(e)(vi), the US LEC Termination Fee shall be payable only if following the date hereof and
prior to such termination, any Person shall have made to US LEC or its stockholders, or publicly
announced, a proposal, offer or indication of interest relating to any Acquisition with respect to
US LEC (such Person being referred to herein as the "US LEC Third Party Bidder") and within
12 months following termination of this Agreement, an Acquisition of US LEC is consummated
by the US LEC Third Party Bidder or its Affiliate or another Person, or US LEC enters into an
agreement providing for an Acquisition of US LEC by the US LEC Third Party Bidder or its
Affiliate or another Person, such fee payment to be made concurrently with the earlier of the
consummation of such Acquisition or the execution of such agreement, as applicable.

() Payment by PAETEC. In the event that this Agreement is
terminated by PAETEC pursuant to any of Section 7.1(b)(iii) or 7.1(g) or by US LEC pursuant to
any of Section 7.1(b)(iii), 7.1(d) or 7.1(f), PAETEC shall concurrently with such termination
(subject to the further provisions of this Section 7.2(c)), pay US LEC a fee equal to the sum of
(A) $6,000,000 plus (B) an amount equal to the reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by
US LEC in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement not to exceed
$500,000 in the aggregate, in immediately available funds (the "PAETEC Termination Fee");
provided that in the case of a termination pursuant to Section 7.1(b)(iii), 7.1(d), 7.1(f)(iv) or
7.1(£)(v1), the PAETEC Termination Fee shall be payable only if following the date hereof and
prior to such termination, any Person shall have made to PAETEC or its stockholders, or
publicly announced, a proposal, offer or indication of interest relating to any Acquisition with
respect to PAETEC (such Person being referred to herein as the "PAETEC Third Party Bidder")
and within 12 months following termination of this Agreement, an Acquisition of PAETEC is
consummated by the PAETEC Third Party Bidder or its Affiliate or another Person, or PAETEC
enters into an agreement providing for an Acquisition of PAETEC by the PAETEC Third Party
Bidder or its Affiliate or another Person, such fee payment to be made concurrently with the
earlier of the consummation of such Acquisition or the execution of such agreement, as
applicable.

(d) Interest and Costs; Other Remedies. All payments under this
Section 7.2 shall be made by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account
designated by the party to receive payment. Each of US LEC and PAETEC acknowledges that
the agreements contained in this Section 7.2 are an integral part of the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement and that, without these agreements, the other party hereto would not enter into
this Agreement; accordingly, if US LEC or PAETEC, as the case may be, fails to pay in a timely
manner the amounts due pursuant to this Section 7.2 and, in order to obtain such payment, the
other party hereto makes a claim that results in a judgment against the party failing to pay for the
amounts set forth in this Section 7.2, the party so failing to pay shall pay to the other party its
reasonable costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses) in connection
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with such claim, together with interest on the amounts set forth in this Section 7.2 at the rate of
interest per annum publicly announced by Deutsche Bank as its prime rate at its principal office
in New York City, as in effect on the date such payment was required to be made. Payment of
the fees described in this Section 7.2 shall not be in lieu of damages incurred in the event of
breach of this Agreement, to the extent permitted by this Section 7.2.

(e) Certain Definitions. For the purposes of this Agreement,
"Acquisition,” with respect to a party hereto, shall mean any of the following transactions (other
than the Mergers): (i) a merger, consolidation, business combination, recapitalization,
liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction involving the party pursuant to which the
stockholders of the party immediately preceding such transaction hold less than 50% of the
aggregate equity interests in the surviving or resulting entity of such transaction or any direct or
indirect parent thereof; (ii) a sale or other disposition by the party or any of its subsidiaries of
assets representing in excess of 40% of the aggregate fair market value of the consolidated assets
of the party and its subsidiaries immediately prior to such sale; or (iii) the acquisition by any
Person or group of Persons (including by way of a tender offer or an exchange offer or issuance
by the party or such Person or group of Persons), directly or indirectly, of beneficial ownership
or a right to acquire beneficial ownership of shares representing in excess of 40% of the voting
power of the then outstanding shares of capital stock of the Person.

SECTION 7.3 Amendment. Subject to compliance with Applicable Laws,
this Agreement may be amended by the parties at any time before or after the US LEC
Stockholder Approval or the PAETEC Stockholder Approval; provided, however, that after the
occurrence of either the PAETEC Stockholder Approval (excluding, to the extent applicable,
such approval with respect to the New Equity Plan) or the US LEC Stockholder Approval
(excluding such approval with respect to the New Equity Plan), there may not be, without further
approval of the stockholders of PAETEC and US LEC, any amendment of this Agreement that
changes the amount or the form of the consideration to be delivered in the Mergers to the holders
of PAETEC Common Stock and US LEC Common Stock hereunder, or which by Applicable
Laws otherwise expressly requires the further approval of such stockholders. This Agreement
may not be amended except by an instrument in writing signed on behalf of each of the parties
hereto and duly approved by the parties' respective Boards of Directors or other governing body
or a duly designated committee thereof.

SECTION 7.4 Extension; Waiver. At any time prior to the Effective Time, a
party may, subject to the proviso of Section 7.3 (and for this purpose treating any waiver referred
to below as an amendment), (a) extend the time for the performance of any of the obligations or
other acts of the other parties hereto, (b) waive any inaccuracies in the representations and
warranties of the other parties contained in this Agreement or in any document delivered
pursuant to this Agreement or (¢) waive compliance by any other party hereto with any of the
agreements or conditions contained in this Agreement. Any agreement on the part of a party to
any such extension or waiver shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in writing signed on
behalf of such party. Any extension or waiver given in compliance with this Section 7.4 or
failure to insist on strict compliance with an obligation, covenant, agreement or condition shall
not operate as a waiver of, or estoppel with respect to, any subsequent or other failure.
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ARTICLE VIII

GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 8.1 Nonsurvival of Representations and Warranties. None of the
representations and warranties in this Agreement or in any instrument delivered pursuant to this
Agreement shall survive the Effective Time. This Section 8.1 shall not limit the survival of any
covenant or agreement of the parties in this Agreement which by its terms contemplates
performance after the Effective Time.

SECTION 8.2 Notices. All notices, requests, claims, demands and other
communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given if delivered
personally, sent via facsimile (receipt confirmed) or sent by a nationally recognized overnight
courier (providing proof of delivery) to the parties at the following addresses (or at such other
address for a party as shall be specified by like notice):

(@)  ifto US LEC, to:

US LEC Corp.

Morrocroft 111

6801 Morrison Boulevard

Charlotte, North Carolina 28211

Fax: (704) 319-1200

Attention: J. Lyle Patrick, Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP

Four Times Square

New York, New York 10036

Fax: (917) 777-3860

Attention: Nancy A. Lieberman, Esq.
Randall H. Doud, Esq.

(b) if to PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U or Merger Sub P, to:

PAETEC Corp.

One PAETEC Plaza

600 Willowbrook Office Park

Fairport, New York 14450

Fax: 585-340-2563

Attention: Keith M. Wilson, Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
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with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Hogan & Hartson L.L.P.

8300 Greensboro Drive

Suite 1100

McLean, Virginia 22102

Fax: (703) 610-6200

Attention: Richard J. Parrino, Esq.
Charles E. Sieving, Esq.

SECTION 8.3 Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement:

(a) An "Affiliate" of any Person means another Person that directly, or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, such first Person, where "control" means the possession, directly or indirectly, of
the power to direct or cause the direction of the management policies of a Person, whether
through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, as trustee or executor, or otherwise;

(b) An "Alternative Transaction" means any (i) transaction pursuant to
which any Person (or group of Persons), directly or indirectly, acquires or would acquire more
than 20% of the outstanding voting power of PAETEC Common Stock or US LEC Voting Stock
(as defined in Section 8.3(w)), as applicable, whether from PAETEC or US LEC or pursuant to a
tender offer or exchange offer or otherwise, (ii) transaction pursuant to which any Person (or
group of Persons) acquires or would acquire control of assets (including for this purpose the
outstanding equity securities of subsidiartes of PAETEC or US LEC, as applicable, and
securities of the entity surviving any merger or business combination, including any of
PAETEC's or US LEC's Subsidiaries) of PAETEC or US LEC, or any of their respective
subsidiaries representing more than 20% of the fair market value of all of the assets, net revenues
or net income of PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or US LEC and its Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole, as applicable, immediately prior to such transaction, or (ii1) other merger, share
exchange, consolidation, business combination, recapitalization or similar transaction (other than
the Mergers) involving PAETEC or US LEC or any of their respective subsidiaries, as applicable,
as a result of which the holders of shares of PAETEC Common Stock or US LEC Voting Stock,
respectively, immediately prior to such transaction would not, in the aggregate, own more than
80% of the outstanding voting power of the surviving or resulting entity in such transaction
immediately after the consummation thereof, in each case other than the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement;

(c) "Contract” means any written, oral or other agreement, contract,
subcontract, settlement agreement, lease, sublease, binding understanding, instrument, note,
option, bond, mortgage, indenture, trust document, loan or credit agreement, warranty, purchase
order, license, sublicense, insurance policy, benefit plan or legally binding commitment or
undertaking of any nature, as in effect as of the date hereof or as may hereinafter be in effect;

(d) "Environmental Laws" means any and all federal, state, foreign,
interstate, local or municipal laws, rules, orders, regulations, statutes, ordinances, codes,
decisions, injunctions, decrees, requirements of any Governmental Entity, any and all common
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law requirements, rules and bases of liability regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or
standards of conduct concerning pollution, Hazardous Materials or protection of human health,
safety or the environment, as currently in effect, including, but not limited to, the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq., the
Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§ 5101 et seq., the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6901 et seq., the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 et seq.,
the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq., the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§
2601 et seq., the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, 7 U.S.C., §§ 136 et seq.,
the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 651 et seq., the Oil Pollution Act of 1990,
33 U.S.C. §§ 2701 et seq., and the Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. §§ 1531 et seq., as such
laws have been amended or supplemented, and the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto, and
all analogous state or local statutes;

(e) "Environmental Liabilities" with respect to any Person means any
and all liabilities of or relating to such Person or any of its Subsidiaries (including any entity
which is, in whole or in part, a predecessor of such Person or any of such Subsidiaries), which (i)
arise under or relate to matters covered by Environmental Laws and (ii) relate to actions
occurring or conditions existing on or prior to the Closing Date;

(f) "Governmental Entity" means any national, state, or local
government or multinational body, any state administrative agency, commission (including the
Federal Election Commission, the FCC and SEC), or other political subdivision thereof or any
entity (including a court) exercising executive, legislative, judicial or administrative functions of
or pertaining to government, any stock exchange or self regulatory entity supervising, organizing
and supporting any stock exchange;

(g) "Hazardous Materials" means any materials or wastes, defined,
listed, classified or regulated as hazardous, toxic, a pollutant, a contaminant or dangerous in or
under any Environmental Laws including, but not limited to, petroleum, petroleum products,
friable asbestos, urea formaldehyde, radioactive materials and polychlorinated biphenyls;

(h) "Intellectual Property" means (i) trademarks, service marks, trade
names, brand names, certification marks, designs, logos and slogans, commercial symbols,
business name registrations, domain names, trade dress and other indications of origin and
general intangibles of like nature, the goodwill associated with the foregoing and registrations in
any domestic or foreign jurisdiction of, and applications in any such jurisdiction to register, the
foregoing, including any extension, modification or renewal of any such registration or
application; (ii) inventions and discoveries, whether patentable or not and whether or not reduced
to practice, in any domestic or foreign jurisdiction; (iii1) patents, applications for patents
(including divisions, continuations, continuations-in-part, provisionals, continued prosecution
applications, substitutions, reissues, reexaminations and renewal applications), and any renewals,
extensions, supplementary protection certificates or reissues thereof, in any such jurisdiction; (iv)
research and development data, formulae, know-how, proprietary processes, algorithms, models
and methodologies, technical information, designs, procedures, trade secrets and confidential
information and rights in any domestic or foreign jurisdiction to limit the use or disclosure
thereof by any Person; (v) writings and other works of authorship of any type (including the
content contained on any web site), whether copyrightable or not, in any such jurisdiction; (vi)

89

553062.07-New York Server 3A - MSW



computer software (whether in source code or object code form), databases, compilations and
data; and (vii) registrations or applications for registration of copyrights in any domestic or
foreign jurisdiction, and any renewals or extensions thereof, and (viii) any similar intellectual
property or proprietary rights;

(1) "Knowledge" means, with respect to PAETEC, the actual
knowledge of the individuals listed on Section 8.3(i) of the PAETEC Disclosure Schedule and,
with respect to US LEC, the actual knowledge of the individuals listed on Section 8.3(i) of the
US LEC Disclosure Schedule;

) "Leased Network Facilities" mean, with respect to US LEC and
PAETEC and their respective Subsidiaries, all of the Network Facilities of the applicable
company or such company's subsidiaries that are not owned by the company or the company's
subsidiaries but are provided under lease, license, IRUs or other agreements, including Right-of-
Way Agreements between the company or the company's subsidiaries and third Persons;

(k) "Leased Real Property” means all real property occupied or used
pursuant to all leases, subleases, licenses and occupancy agreements;

Q) "Material Adverse Effect” means, when used with respect to US
LEC or PAETEC and their respective Subsidiaries, any change, event, violation, inaccuracy,
circumstance or effect (any such item, an "Effect") that, individually or when taken together with
all other Effects that have occurred prior to the date of determination of the occurrence of the
Material Adverse Effect, is or is reasonably expected (i) to be materially adverse to the business,
assets (including intangible assets), liabilities, capitalization, condition (financial or otherwise) or
results of operations of US LEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or PAETEC and its
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole; provided, however, that, in no event shall any of the following,
alone or in combination, be deemed to constitute, nor shall any of the following be taken into
account in determining whether there has been or will be, a Material Adverse Effect on US LEC
and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or PAETEC and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole:
(A) events or circumstances generally affecting the segments of the telecommunications industry
in which US LEC and US LEC's Subsidiaries and PAETEC and PAETEC's Subsidiaries operate,
and which do not have a materially disproportionate effect on US LEC and US LEC's
Subsidiaries or PAETEC and PAETEC's Subsidiaries, as the case may be, (B) U.S. or global
political or economic conditions, or (C) the execution, delivery, announcement or performance
of this Agreement or the consummation of any transaction contemplated hereby; or (i1) to impair
in any material respect the ability of such party to perform its obligations under this Agreement
or prevent or materially delay the consummation by such party of any of the transactions
contemplated hereby;

(m)  "Network Facilities" means, with respect to US LEC and PAETEC
and their respective Subsidiaries, all material network facilities (including, cable, wires, conduits,
switches, and other equipment and facilities) and related material operating support systems,
network operations centers, and land and buildings associated therewith. For purposes of this
definition, "material” shall mean any network facility the absence of which would materially and
adversely affect the ability of the applicable company or any of its subsidiaries to use the
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company's domestic or international networks, respectively, taken as a whole, in the manner and
scope in which such respective network is currently being used;

(n) "Owned Network Facilities" means, with respect to US LEC,
PAETEC and their respective Subsidiaries, Network Facilities that are owned by the applicable
company or such company's subsidiaries;

(0) "Owned Real Property" means real property, together with all
improvements and fixtures presently or hereafter located thereon or attached or appurtenant
thereto, owned by a Person, and all easements, licenses, rights and appurtenances relating to the
foregoing;

(p) "Permitted Liens" means (i) mechanics', carriers', workers' or
repairmen's liens arising in the ordinary course of business and securing payments or obligations
that are not delinquent or which are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings, (ii)
statutory landlord's Liens and Liens granted to landlords under any leases, (iii) Liens for Taxes,
assessments and other similar governmental charges which are not due and payable and (iv)
Liens that arise under zoning, land use and other similar laws or regulations, and easements,
covenants, rights-of-way and other imperfections of title or encumbrances, if any, which do not
materially affect the marketability of the property subject thereto and do not materially impair
the use of the property subject thereto as presently used;

(q) "Person" means an individual, corporation, partnership, limited
liability company, joint venture, association, trust, unincorporated organization or other entity;

(r) "PAETEC Ancillary Agreement” means the Amendment to
Stockholders' Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, among PAETEC and each of the
stockholders of PAETEC set forth on the signature pages thereof, attached hereto as

Exhibit 8.3(r);

(s) a "Subsidiary" of any Person means another Person, an amount of
the voting securities, other voting ownership or voting partnership interests of which is sufficient
to elect at least a majority of its Board of Directors or other governing body is (or, if there are no
such voting interests, more than 50% of the equity interests of which are) owned directly or
indirectly by such first Person;

(t) a "Superior Proposal" with respect to a party means an unsolicited,
bona fide written Alternative Transaction Proposal made by a third Person to acquire, directly or
indirectly, pursuant to a tender offer, exchange offer, merger, consolidation or other business
combination or acquisition transaction, (i) all or substantially all of the assets of such party or (ii)
over 50% of the outstanding voting securities of such party and as a result of which the
stockholders of such party immediately preceding such transaction would hold less than 50% of
the aggregate equity interests in the surviving or resulting entity of such transaction (or its
ultimate parent), which the Board of Directors of such party has in good faith determined (taking
into account, among other things, (A) its consultation with its outside legal counsel and a
financial adviser of national reputation and (B) all terms and conditions of such Alternative
Transaction Proposal and this Agreement (as it may be proposed to be amended by the other
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party hereto) to be more favorable, from a financial point of view, to such party's stockholders
(in their capacities as stockholders), than the terms of this Agreement (as it may be proposed to
be amended by the other party hereto) and to be reasonably capable in feasibility and certainty of
being consummated on the terms proposed, taking into account all other legal, financial,
regulatory and other aspects of such Alternative Transaction Proposal (including conditions to

consummation such as a financing condition);

(W)

"Trade Secrets" means all inventions (whether or not patentable),

discoveries, processes, procedures, designs, formulae, trade secrets, know-how, Software, ideas,
methods, research and development, data, databases, confidential information and other

proprietary or non-public information and data;

)

"US LEC Preferred Stock Agreements" mean, collectively, the

Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated April 11, 2000, among US LEC and the Persons
listed on Schedule 1 attached thereto, the Corporate Governance Agreement, dated April 11,
2000, among US LEC and the Persons listed on Schedule | attached thereto, the Registration
Rights Agreement, dated as of April 11, 2000, among US LEC and the Persons listed on
Schedule 1 attached thereto, and the Voting and Tag Along Agreement, dated as of April 11,
2000, by and among certain Investors, Richard T. Aab, Melrich Associates, L.P., Tansukh V.
Ganatra and Super STAR Associates Limited Partnership; and

(W)

"US LEC Voting Stock" means collectively, the US LEC Common

Stock and the US LEC Preferred Stock.

SECTION 8.4

Terms Defined Elsewhere. The following terms are defined

elsewhere in this Agreement, as indicated below:

ACQUISTHION ..vtiiieteeiet ettt 86
ATTHALE ..o 88
AZreement.......cooeiirieriniiiieiaenieeee e 1
Alternative Transaction.......c...ccceeevveneenn. 88
Alternative Transaction Proposal.............. 59
Applicable Laws .......occeevveiiiiiiiiiiinee 22
Blackstone........cccoeeevveeviiieiiieeeireeeieeee 29
CDA o 60
Certificates ..ooovrveriiiiiieeeiee e 9
Change of Recommendation..................... 61
ClOSING .veeeeireeeiiee et 3
Closing Date........ccooeveuieeieieniceiiieneesenen 3
COAC it 2
Commitment Letter.........cccoeoiiiiniiiinn. 75
Communications Act .....ccceeverereceeeienenaenn. 29
Communications Laws.........cc.ccceveecnnnneeen. 29
ComMPANY ...eevvviereerirec i 1
Company Benefit Plan............c.ccccooceeiene 73
Company By-Laws ......ccooviviiiencreennninnn. 5
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Company Charter.......ccoeeerrviirveirniirenne. 5
Company Common StocK ......c..ccoevvierinns 1
Company Governance Amendments .......... 5
Company Warrants .........cccceevevvereeeccnnennn. 20
Continuing Employees........cccccocveeiieneen. 73
Continuing PAETEC Directors................... 6
Continuing PAETEC Directors
Committee.....cocouveruereiririeeiieeiccecen 6
Continuing PAETEC Employees.............. 73
Continuing US LEC Directors.................... 6
Continuing US LEC Directors Committee . 6
Continuing US LEC Employees............... 73
Contract...c.ccvereeririereene e 88
Conversion Agreement ........coccocceeeeenneene. 14
Corporate Transaction.........cc.ceveeveecreennnee. 33
Creditors’ Laws ....ooeevrveeeeniieniiieecieecne 17
Customer Requirements...........c.ccccoceeennen. 32
Deutsche Bank .......cc.occoooiiiiiiininne, 50
DGCL.oiiieeeeeee e 1



Effect. e 90

Effective Time .....coccovvveeniciiciiieee, 4
Environmental Claims ...........cccoeevvenn.n. 27
Environmental Laws......c.ccccoeeenniiiinnnnnnn. 88
Environmental Liabilities.............c........... 89
Environmental Permits.........cccoeeveeeruneennne. 27
ERISA o 24
ERISA Affiliate .....ccooeevievieniiiriinne. 24
Exchange Act......ccoovevviiieiiiieniiiiiiic e 5
Exchange Agent.......cccocceevviiiiiiiniiinennnnn. 9
Exchange Fund..........cccocconiiinnnnnn 9
Existing PAETEC Credit Agreements...... 76
FCC . 18
FCC Authorizations .........cccccceeciiieennneanin. 80
FInancing......cccccoveveeniiviiiniiceene, 75
Form S-4 ..o 20
GAAP .o 19
Good Condition.........cceceeeeereiiniiesieeine 32
Governmental Entity........cococeenviiiniiinnnnne. 89
Hazardous Materials .........cccoccevviiiiniinannnn. 89
Houlihan Lokey ....ccoccoeoiiiiiniiiiiei, 50
HSR ACt .ot 18
Improvements .........cccccoevciiiiiicnennnen. 31
Indemnified Parties .......c..ccoccereriineennnnnn. 68
Independent Director .........cccceevviieiiiirenen. 5
Industry Standards .........ccoeceeeeivieeiiiienne. 32
Intellectual Property.......ccooevvevvnrieicnnennne. 89
TRUS ottt 21
Joint Proxy Statement ............cccoovvirnennns 20
Knowledge .......ccoveevveieiieeeiiieeiiiee e 90
Leased Network Facilities........c....ccocee.ee. 90
Leased Real Property .......ccoooeeiiininnnnnne. 90
LICTIS .euiviereee et ettt 13
Material Adverse Effect.........c.......ocoo.n 90
Merger Consideration ...........ccoeveevveeereennn. 7
Merger SUb P ..ooeveviieiie e 1
Merger Sub Ui, 1
METZETS .eveiiiiieeeeeeer et 1
Mertill ...oooiiieiiiie e 29
Minimum Trading Price Test.........cccec....... 8
NASDAQ .ottt 8
Network Facilities.......coooeeeericeriierieennnane 90
Network Facility Agreement..................... 32
New Equity Plan .......cccceeoieniiiniiininen. 74
Non-Compete Agreement..........cccceeeueeenns 32
Note Purchase Agreement.........c....ccceeeee. 36

553062.07-New York Server 3A - MSW

93

Outside Date........ccoveeeeveiieiiieeiieeecee 82
Owned Network Facilities ........................ 91
Owned Real Property......c..ccoeveriennennnien. 91
PAETEC ..o, 1
PAETEC 1998 Plan ..........cccoveeeeieeicnnne 14
PAETEC 2001 Plan .......cccoccvveeerieeeniecnne 14
PAETEC Agent Plan..........ccoccovveneinn. 14
PAETEC Ancillary Agreement................. 91
PAETEC Audited Financial Statements... 19
PAETEC Balance Sheet............cccccoeunnn. 20
PAETEC Benefit Plans............ccccoeneen. 24
PAETEC By-Laws....cccccooviiniiiniiiinnnn 13
PAETEC Certificate of Merger .................. 3
PAETEC Certificates.........ccccceeevveeennennen. 9
PAETEC Charter ........cocceeevevvveviieeines 13
PAETEC Common Stock .........ccooeeeuneennene. 1
PAETEC Disclosure Schedule.................. 12
PAETEC Effective Time ..............ccceeeee. 3
PAETEC Exchange Ratio.........ccccecvrnnnne.. 7
PAETEC Executive Plan .......................... 14
PAETEC Financial Statements................. 19
PAETEC Indemnified Parties.................... 68
PAETEC Licenses or Permits................... 22
PAETEC Material Contract ...................... 30
PAETEC MeTgeT....ceiiiiiiiieiiieiccereceee 1
PAETEC Merger Consideration ................. 7
PAETEC Non-Plan Options .........ccc......... 14
PAETEC Non-Plan Warrants ................... 14
PAETEC Options......cccccevveenieenieencirennnnen 14
PAETEC Organizational Documents ....... 13
PAETEC Plan Options.........cccoeevveeerivienn. 14
PAETEC Plan Warrants..............ccceenei.... 14
PAETEC Preferred Stock ........cccooeevennen. 14
PAETEC Reports......cvovvevvciieeriiiiieneinns 21
PAETEC Rule 145 Affiliates.................... 74
PAETEC Senior Officer Agreement......... 33
PAETEC Stock Agreements..................... 14
PAETEC Stock Plans.........ccccoeevvvveiiniennnns 14
PAETEC Stockholder Approval................. 1
PAETEC Stockholders' Meeting .............. 63
PAETEC Sub ..ccooiiieeeeveieee 76
PAETEC Subsidiary Organizational
Documents ........cccveeeeviiiieieniieceneee, 13
PAETEC Surviving Corporation ................ 3
PAETEC Termination Fee........................ 85
PAETEC Third Party Bidder.................... 85



PAETEC Unaudited Financial Statements 19 US LEC Common StocK.....ocoveeeeeeveeeiiii 1

PAETEC Unit Award .....c.cocooevveniinninenne. 72 US LEC Disclosure Schedule................... 34
PAETEC Voting Agreements............ccc...... 2 US LEC Effective Time...........cc.covvevenn.ne. 3
PAETEC Voting Debt.......cccoovvvreniniennee 15 US LEC Exchange Ratio ............cccoevven.n. 6
PAETEC Warrants......ccccceccvievinieenneennen. 14 US LEC Indemnified Parties .................... 68
PAETEC's Counsel.........cccccvvviinienniannnen. 70 US LEC Licenses or Permiits .................... 43
Permitted Liens.......cocceeveveniniiirniiicnnnn 91 US LEC Material Contract....................... 51
Person.....oooviiviiiiciiic e 91 US LEC Merger ....cocceeoiviviricieccrie e, 1
Prospective PAETEC Financial US LEC Merger Consideration................... 7
Statements. .......ccoovveereeecieiereeeeie s 59 US LEC NOES.c..ecvieeriiiiniraieeie e, 76
Recommendations........c..cccevereeeieeenieenenens 2 US LEC Options ....ccccveeveeereeeeriesieeneeennnnn 36
Representatives .......cecveveveiciineenenireenn 59 US LEC Organizational Documents......... 35
Repurchase Agreement ...........c.cooeeivenenne. 2  US LEC Preferred Stock........cccooeveuennen.n. 35
Right-of-Way Agreement ...............ccoeue.. 31 US LEC Preferred Stock Agreements....... 92
SEC ottt 19 US LEC Preferred Stock Repurchase....... 50
Securities ACt.......ceeverereeicierieneneeeeeen 20 US LEC Purchase Plan ..........ccoccoeeeein. 36
SOX it 27 US LEC Purchase Right............ccccvvne. 71
Subsidiary .......coooeeiiienie e 91 US LEC Rule 145 Affiliates ..................... 75
Superior Proposal.......cccccoceeviiiniciiiinnne. 91 US LEC SEC Documents ..........ccccceevene.. 40
Surviving PAETEC Common Stock........... 1 US LEC Stock Plan........cccoeoevvecieiennennene, 35
Surviving US LEC Common Stock ............ 1 US LEC Stockholder Approval .................. 2
Tax Authority......ccoceeevieneiiiniinceereee 26 US LEC Stockholders' Meeting................ 63
Tax Representation Letters............co..c..... 70 US LEC Subsidiary Organizational
Tax Return ......cccoooeniiiiiiien 26 Documents ........ccveeieieiieniieniieecenn 35
TAXES c.vvereieeerieiieeeeeree e 26 US LEC Surviving Corporation.................. 3
Trade Secrets.....coovenevciiiciiincinccicnnen 92 US LEC Termination Fee .........ccocee. 85
US LEC it 1 US LEC Third Party Bidder..................... 85
US LEC Balance Sheet......c..cooovieieennns 41 US LEC Voting Agreements ...........c.......... 2
US LEC Benefit Plans .......ccccooeevveieeennens 45 US LEC Voting Debt.........cceeevevrieennnene 36
US LEC By-Laws ..oveeevieiiiiiieiieeeiie, 35 US LEC Voting StocK.......cccocvvireecienennnn, 92
US LEC Certificate of Merger.................... 3 US LEC Warrants ..........ccccccoveveeeeveeeennenn. 36
US LEC Certificates ......cccooeveeriienecennecnnn 9 US LEC's Counsel ......c.cceevereerveeeiencennnns 70
US LEC Charter.......ccccceevrieieenieiceienees 35

SECTION 8.5 Interpretation. When a reference is made in this Agreement to
an Article, Section or Exhibit, such reference shall be to an Article or Section of, or an Exhibit to,
this Agreement unless otherwise indicated. Whenever the words "include," "includes" or
"including" are used in this Agreement, they shall be deemed to be followed by the words
"without limitation." The words "hereof," "herein" and "hereunder” and words of similar import
when used in this Agreement shall refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular
provision of this Agreement. All terms defined in this Agreement shall have the defined
meanings when used in any certificate or other document made or delivered pursuant hereto
unless otherwise defined therein. The definitions contained in this Agreement are applicable to
the singular as well as the plural forms of such terms and to the masculine as well as to the
feminine and neuter genders of such term. Any agreement, instrument or statute defined or
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referred to herein or in any agreement or instrument that is referred to herein means such
agreement, instrument or statute as from time to time amended, modified or supplemented,
including (in the case of agreements or instruments) by waiver or consent and (in the case of
statutes) by succession of comparable successor statutes and references to all attachments thereto
and instruments incorporated therein. References to a Person are also to its permitted successors
and assigns. Nothing in any representation, warranty, covenant or condition in this Agreement
shall in any way limit or restrict the scope, applicability or meaning of any other representation,
warranty, covenant or condition set forth in this Agreement, and each representation, warranty,
covenant and condition in this Agreement shall be given full separate and independent effect.

SECTION 8.6 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or
more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall
become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and
delivered to the other parties.

SECTION 8.7 Entire Agreement; No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This
Agreement (including the documents, agreements and instruments referred to herein) (a)
constitutes the entire agreement, and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, both
written and oral, among the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and
neither party is relying on any other oral or written representation, agreement or understanding
and (b) except for the provisions of Section 5.5 (which are intended to benefit the Indemnified
Parties, including Indemnified Parties who or which are not parties hereto), is not intended to
confer upon any Person other than the parties any rights or remedies; provided, that, prior to the
Effective Time, US LEC shall be entitled to pursue damages on behalf of its stockholders in the
event of an intentional breach of this Agreement or fraud by PAETEC, the Company, Merger
Sub U or Merger Sub P, and PAETEC shall be entitled to pursue damages on behalf of its
stockholders in the event of an intentional breach of this Agreement or fraud by US LEC, and
each of such rights of US LEC and PAETEC are hereby acknowledged and agreed by each of the
parties.

SECTION 8.8 Governing Law. This Agreement and any disputes arising out
of or related to this Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws
of the State of Delaware, regardless of the laws that might otherwise govern under applicable
principles of conflict of laws thereof.

SECTION 8.9 Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights,
interests or obligations under this Agreement shall be assigned, in whole or in part, by operation
of'law or otherwise by any of the parties hereto without the prior written consent of the other
party. Any assignment in violation of the preceding sentence shall be void. Subject to the
preceding two sentences, this Agreement shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and be
enforceable by, the parties and their respective successors and assigns.

SECTION 8.10  Consent to Jurisdiction. Each of the parties hereto (a) consents
to submit itself to the personal jurisdiction of the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware and,
in the absence of jurisdiction of such court with respect to the applicable matter, any federal
court located in the State of Delaware or any Delaware state court, in the event any dispute arises
out of this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (b) agrees that
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it shall not attempt to deny or defeat such personal jurisdiction by motion or other request for
leave from any such court, and (c) agrees that it shall not bring any action relating to this
Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement in any court other than the
Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware and, in the absence of jurisdiction of such court with
respect to the applicable matter, a federal court sitting in the State of Delaware or a Delaware
state court.

SECTION 8.11  Headings, etc. The headings and table of contents contained in
this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or
interpretation of this Agreement.

SECTION 8.12  Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreement
is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced by any rule of law or public policy, all other
conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect,
insofar as the foregoing can be accomplished without materially affecting the economic benefits
anticipated by the parties to this Agreement. Upon such determination that any term or other
provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the parties hereto shall negotiate in
good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as
possible to the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Laws in an acceptable manner to the end
that the transactions contemplated hereby are fulfilled to the extent possible.

SECTION 8.13  Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver; Remedies Cumulative. No
failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in the exercise of any right hereunder shall impair
such right or be construed to be a waiver of, or acquiescence in, any breach of any representation,
warranty or agreement herein, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right preclude
any other or further exercise thereof or of any other right. All rights and remedies existing under
this Agreement are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies otherwise
available.

SECTION 8.14  Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH OF US LEC, PAETEC, THE
COMPANY, MERGER SUB U AND MERGER SUB P HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES
ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM
(WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE) ARISING OUT OF OR
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED
HEREBY OR THE ACTIONS OF US LEC, PAETEC, THE COMPANY, MERGER SUB U
AND MERGER SUB P IN THE NEGOTIATION, ADMINISTRATION, PERFORMANCE
AND ENFORCEMENT OF THIS AGREEMENT.

SECTION 8.15  Specific Performance. The parties agree that irreparable
damage would occur and that the parties would not have any adequate remedy at law in the event
that any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with their
specific terms or were otherwise breached. It is accordingly agreed that the parties shall be
entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce
specifically the terms and provisions of this Agreement in the Court of Chancery of the State of
Delaware and, in the absence of jurisdiction of such court with respect to the applicable matter,
any federal court located in the State of Delaware or in Delaware state court, this being in
addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at law or in equity.
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, US LEC, PAETEC, the Campany, Merger Sub U and
Merger Sub P have caused this Agreement to be executed under seal by their respective officers
thersunto duly authorized, all as of the dats frst written above.

: Ril . Aab
Titlg! Chairman of the Board
PAETEC CORP.

By: .
Name:
Title:

WC ACQUISITION HOLDINGS CORP.

By:

Name;
Title:

WG ACQUISITION SUB U CORP,

By

Name:
Title:

WC ACQUISITION SUB P CQRP.

¥
By: A
Name: .
Title:




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, US LEC, PAETEC, the Company, Merger Sub U and
Merger Sub P have caused this Agreement to ba executed under seal by their respective officars
thereunto duly suthorized, all as of the date first written above.

US LEC CORP,

i M. COi

Tl gup + CFO

WC ACQUISITION SUB U CORP.

WC ACQUISITION SUB P CORP.
By: l -
e H . !

Tle P 1 Treagurer



Exhibit R-1

Repurchase Agreement
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Exhibit R-2

PAETEC Voting Agreements
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Exhibit 1.7(a)-1

Company Charter
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Exhibit 1.7(a)-2

Company By-Laws
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Exhibit 1.7(b)
Certain Officer Positions of the Company

At the Effective Time, the following persons shall hold the Officer positions with the
Company set forth opposite their names below:

Name QOfficer Position

Mr. Edward J. Butler, Jr. Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Keith M. Wilson Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. J. Lyle Patrick Executive Vice President of
Integration
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Exhibit 1.8
Members of the Board of Directors of the Company

The members of the Board of Directors of the Company at the Effective Time shall be the
following:

* Class I (term expires at the 2007 annual meeting of stockholders):
1. Michael C. Mac Donald
2. James A. Kofalt
3. Future PAETEC Designee to be designated prior to the Effective Time

* Class II (term expires at the 2008 annual meeting of stockholders):
1. Mr. Tansukh V. Ganatra
2. William R. McDermott
3. Mark Zupan

* Class III (term expires at the 2009 annual meeting of stockholders):
1. Mr. Richard T. Aab
2. Arunas A. Chesonis
3. Keith M. Wilson
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Exhibit 3.1(c)(vi)
Independent PAETEC Designees

1. William R. McDermott
2. Mark Zupan
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Exhibit 3.2(c)(vi)
Independent US LEC Designees

1. Michael C. Mac Donald
2. Tansukh V. Ganatra
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Exhibit 5.12
Form of Affiliate Letter Agreement

WC Acquisition Holdings Corp.
One PAETEC Plaza

600 Willowbrook Office Park
Fairport, NY 14450

Ladies and Gentlemen:

[ have been advised that as of the date hereof [ may be deemed to be an "affiliate"
of PAETEC/US LEC, a Delaware corporation ("PAETEC/US LEC"), as the term "affiliate" is
defined for purposes of paragraphs (c) and (d) of Rule 145 of the Rules and Regulations (the
"Rules and Regulations") of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"). Thave been further advised that pursuant to
the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of August 11, 2006 (as it may be
amended from time to time, the "Merger Agreement"), by and among US LEC CORP., a
Delaware corporation ("US LEC"), PAETEC CORP., a Delaware corporation ("PAETEC"), WC
ACQUISITION HOLDINGS CORP., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
PAETEC (the "Company"), WC ACQUISITION SUB U CORP., a Delaware corporation and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company ("Merger Sub U"), and WC ACQUISITION SUB P
CORP., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company ("Merger Sub
P™), Merger Sub U and Merger Sub P will merge, respectively, with and into US LEC and
PAETEC, respectively, pursuant to which mergers each share of Class A Common Stock, par
value $.01 per share, of US LEC will be converted into the right to receive one share of common
stock, par value $.01 per share, of the Company (the "Company Common Stock") and each share
of Class A Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, of PAETEC will be converted into the right
to receive 1.623 shares of Company Common Stock (such transactions are referred to herein
individually as the "US LEC Merger" and the "PAETEC Merger," respectively), as a result of
which the holders of US LEC Common Stock and PAETEC Common Stock will together own
all of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock. All terms used in this letter (the
"Letter Agreement") but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the
Merger Agreement.

[ represent, warrant and covenant to the Company that in the event I receive any
Company Common Stock as a result of the PAETEC/US LEC Merger:

[ shall not make any sale, transfer or other disposition of Company Common
Stock in violation of the Act or the Rules and Regulations.

I have carefully read this Letter Agreement and the Merger Agreement and
discussed its requirements and other applicable limitations upon my ability to sell, transfer or
otherwise dispose of Company Common Stock to the extent I believed necessary with my
counsel or counsel for PAETEC/US LEC.

[ have been advised that the issuance of Company Common Stock to me pursuant
to the PAETEC/US LEC Merger shall be registered with the Commission under the Act on a
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Registration Statement on Form S-4. However, | have also been advised that, since at the time
the PAETEC/US LEC Merger will be submitted for a vote of the stockholders of PAETEC/US
LEC I may be deemed to have been an affiliate of PAETEC/US LEC and the distribution by me
of Company Common Stock has not been registered under the Act, [ may not sell, transfer or
otherwise dispose of Company Common Stock issued to me in the PAETEC/US LEC Merger
unless (i) such sale, transfer or other disposition has been registered under the Act, (ii) such sale,
transfer or other disposition is made in conformity with the volume and other limitations of Rule
145 promulgated by the Commission under the Act, or (iii) in the opinion of counsel reasonably
acceptable to the Company, or as described in a letter from the staff of the Commission
specifically issued with respect to a transaction to be engaged in by the undersigned, such sale,
transfer or other disposition is otherwise exempt from registration under the Act.

[ understand that the Company is under no obligation to register the sale, transfer
or other disposition of Company Common Stock by me or on my behalf under the Act or to take
any other action necessary in order to make compliance with an exemption from such
registration available.

[ also understand that stop transfer instructions will be given to the Company's
transfer agents with respect to Company Common Stock and that there will be placed on the
certificates for Company Common Stock issued to me, or any substitutions therefor, a legend
stating in substance:

"The securities represented by this certificate have been issued in a transaction to
which Rule 145 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933 applies and may
only be sold or otherwise transferred in compliance with the requirements of Rule
145 or pursuant to a registration statement under said act or an exemption from
such registration."

[ also understand that unless the transfer by me of my Company Common Stock
has been registered under the Act or is a sale made in conformity with the provisions of Rule 145,
the Company reserves the right to put the following legend on the certificates issued to my
transferee:

"The shares represented by this certificate have not been registered under the
Securities Act of 1933 and were acquired from a person who received such shares
in a transaction to which Rule 145 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933
applies. The shares have been acquired by the holder not with a view to, or for
resale in connection with, any distribution thereof within the meaning of the
Securities Act of 1933 and may not be sold, pledged or otherwise transferred
except in accordance with an exemption from the registration requirements of the
Securities Act of 1933."

It is understood and agreed that the legends set forth above shall be removed, at
no cost to me, by delivery of substitute certificates without such legend, and/or the issuance of a
letter to the Company's transfer agent removing such stop transfer instructions, and the above
restrictions on sale will cease to apply, if (A) one year (or such other period as may be required
by Rule 145(d)(2) under the Act or any successor thereto) shall have elapsed from the Closing
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Date and the provisions of such Rule are then available to me; or (B) if two years (or such other
period as may be required by Rule 145(d)(3) under the Act or any successor thereto) shall have
elapsed from the Closing Date and the provisions of such Rule are then available to me; or (C) 1
shall have delivered to the Company (i) a copy of a letter from the staff of the Commission, or an
opinion of counsel in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Company, or other
evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company, to the effect that such legend and/or stop
transfer instructions are not required for purposes of the Act or (ii) reasonably satisfactory
evidence or representations that the securities represented by such certificates are being or have
been transferred in a transaction made in conformity with the provisions of Rule 145 under the
Act or pursuant to an effective registration under the Act.

1 recognize and agree that the foregoing provisions also apply to (i) my spouse, (ii)
any relative of mine or my spouse occupying my home, (iii) any trust or estate in which [, my
spouse or any such relative owns at least 10% beneficial interest or of which any of us serves as
trustee, executor or in any similar capacity and (iv) any corporate or other organization in which
I, my spouse or any such relative owns at least 10% of any class of equity securities or of the
equity interest.

It is understood and agreed that this Letter Agreement shall terminate and be of no
further force and eftect if the Merger Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms.

Execution of this Letter Agreement should not be construed as an admission on
my part that [ am an "affiliate"” of PAETEC/US LEC as described in the first paragraph of this
Letter Agreement or as a waiver of any rights [ may have to object to any claim that [ am such an
affiliate on or after the date of this Letter Agreement.

Very truly yours,

By:

Name:

Accepted this[ ] day of
[ ], 2006

WC ACQUISITION HOLDINGS CORP.
By:

Name:
Title:
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Exhibit 5.14(a)

Commitment Letter
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Exhibit 8.3(r)

PAETEC Ancillary Agreement
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VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEW YORK

U L o

COUNTY OF MONROE

I, Daniel J. Venuti, hereby verify under penalty of perjury that [ am Executive
Vice President and Secretary of PAETEC Corp; that | am authorized to make this
verification on behalf of the company; that I have read the foregoing document and know
the contents thereof; and that the same are true of my own knowledge, except to those

matters therein stated upon information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them

ol | i

to be true.

Daniel J. Venutl\
Executive Vice Prgsident and Secretary
PAETEC Corp.

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this 15 day of August, 2006.

My commission expires: _// / 3o /76

5582
oneoe Lounty
ow. 30, o <O O,

Tennessee



VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF MONROE

won U U

I, Keith M. Wilson, hereby verify under penalty of perjury that [ am the Chief
Financial Officer of PAETEC Corp.; that I am authorized to make this verification on
behalf of the company; that I have read the foregoing document and know the contents
thereof; and that the same are true of my own knowledge, except to those matters therein
stated upon information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them to be true. 1

further verify that the proposed financing arrangements described therein comply with all

applicable laws. /[ M n Q)VL

Keith M. Wilson
Chief Financial Officer
PAETEC Corp.

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this /5 th day of August, 2006.

%

My commission expires: / {A‘j/ 06

KAREN F FERRINI
Motary Public Stcm. o New Yoik
No. 4755553
Oualified in l\nonroe County 200 (.
“eemreisgion Expires Nov. 30,

Tennessee



VERIFICATION

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  §
COUNTY OF MECKLENBURG g

1, J. Lyle Patrick, hereby verify under penalty of perjury that [ am Executive Vice
President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer of US LEC Corp.; that | am authorized to
make this verification on behalf of the company; that I have read the foregoing document
and know the contents thereof; and that the same are true of my own knowledge, except
to those matters therein stated upon information and belief, and as to those matters |
believe them to be true.

I further verify that the proposed financing arrangements described therein

comply with all applicable laws.

J. Lylg"Patrick

Executive Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer

US LEC CORP.

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this /3 th day of August, 2006.




